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OUR VISION

AP Ry FE =

To give everyone access to trusted
and affordable care, so that everyone
can freely pursue their dreams without
worrying about their health
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CHAIRMAN STATEMENT
ERBE

OVERVIEW

COVID-19 has continued to present unprecedented challenges
to the overall business environment of the Group during the last
financial year. As a socially responsible healthcare group, we
expanded our online product offerings in a timely manner to include
virtual care telemedicine services and same-day-delivery COVID-19
screening test kits in the past year to help individuals and enterprises
overcome the barriers of social distancing and achieve peace of
mind amid concerns over the lingering healthcare crisis.

Despite the challenging economic environment, our Group
continued to record steady performance for the financial year ended
30 June 2021. Our revenue increased by 11.7% from HK$557.5
million in FY2020 to HK$622.8 million, mainly due to strong
growth in our imaging and specialist lines of business and health
assessments performed. Our reported net profit decreased by 47.7%
from HK$60.3 million in FY2020 to HK$31.5 million, mainly due to
one-off adjustments recognised in both the current and prior year.
Despite the macroeconomic uncertainty, we have taken prompt
measures to mitigate the adverse impact of the pandemic on our
operations, and the Group’s financial position has remained healthy.
Our adjusted EBITDA increased by 29.6% from HK$70.7 million
in FY2020 to HK$91.7 million in FY2021, mainly attributable to
strong growth in our imaging and specialist lines of business and
health assessments performed which enjoyed relatively higher
margin, while our corporate healthcare solutions service has been
affected by the knock-on impact on corporates, particularly those in
the travel, hospitality and retail sectors. Backed by our recognised
business and financial strengths, the Board has recommended,
subject to shareholders’ approval, a final dividend of HK2.8 cents
per share, taking our full year dividend to HK3.8 cents per share
(FY2020 full year dividend: HK3.3 cents per share).

To achieve our strategic goals of expanding the number of
our online and offline patient visits in Hong Kong, Macau and
the Mainland China markets, we are determined to realise
transformation on our solid foundation and have carried out a
number of strategic decisions to update our internal governance

structure and external business approaches during the year.
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ENHANCED CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
STRUCTURE

To foster growth of our business, ensure our strategic goals are
aligned among our business units and streamline decision-making
process, we have created UMP functional units comprising
medical, finance and internal audit, legal and compliance, investor
relations, technology and innovation as well as brand management
reporting directly to a newly-established UMP Group management
committee consisting of our Executive Directors. We believe strong
commitment and clear strategic direction from the board is essential
for our Group to achieve further milestones in our expansion plan.
The synergies inspired by the newly-created functional units will
allow us to retain, upskill and expand our talent pool and ensure we

have the right enablers to achieve our strategic goals.

As part of our continued strategic approach of talent recruitment
and retention, we expanded our senior management team during
the year by on-boarding professionals that have significant
experience and knowledge in clinic chain management, information
technology, finance, legal, and talent acquisition and resources to
support the robust growth of our businesses.

TALENT ATTRACTION AND RETENTION

We place an immense emphasis on strategic talent acquisition and
efficient talent retention which we believe have lasting impact
on our long-term business sustainability and growth. Employee
engagement and competency building remain a key priority of our
talent management approach. As an incentive scheme for our senior
management members, we granted a total of 20,686,000 share
options during the year to attract and retain talents who have made

significant contribution to our business performance and results.

Despite the ongoing influence of the pandemic, our Group remains
optimistic of the business outlook and seizes the opportunity of
business expansion. As such, in July 2021, we expanded and
relocated our headquarters in Central, Hong Kong to accommodate
our rapid business growth. The new, enlarged office space supports
our growth strategy and allows us to further expand our team and

capabilities to serve a wider range of patients in the region.
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CHAIRMAN STATEMENT
ERBE

BUSINESS OVERVIEW & STRATEGIES

Hong Kong and Macau

Leveraging 31 years of strong development and industry experience,
our Hong Kong and Macau business is the foundation for our
past and future success. With a well-established team of clinical
and business development professionals, we continue to generate
good investment returns for our Hong Kong and Macau business
notwithstanding the recent challenges imposed by COVID-19 and
the associated economic worries. We continue to see significant
potential for growth in our Hong Kong and Macau business, which
allows us to cement our leading position in healthcare management
services, as well as to expand our scope of clinical services.

As with many other developed economies around the globe, Hong
Kong is witnessing a rapidly aging population. Such demographic
traits lead to the rising prevalence of chronic diseases such as
hypertension, diabetes and heart diseases. A full-service medical
care is therefore crucial to serve the needs of individuals across
different demographic.

With our proactive approach in seizing market opportunities, the
Group is expanding its flagship medical centre at Wing On House in
Central, Hong Kong, with a newly leased floor on 16/F with a total
gross floor area of approximately 11,000 sq. ft. The new medical
centre will provide dedicated specialist medical services, including
the Group’s first cardio metabolic centre, first physiotherapy
and rehabilitation centre and a newly-extended specialist centre
featuring elderly care, diabetes and chronic disease management, as
well as preventive cardiology. This new flagship centre will be used
to fulfill the huge demand rising from the aging population for years

to come.
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Health assessment is another key segment of our clinical healthcare
services, which has seen rapid growth during the year driven by
enhanced focus on healthcare in the post-COVID era as well as
immigration visa requirements. To cope with such growing demand,
the Group is also renovating its existing leased floor on 14/F Wing
On House with gross floor area of approximately 16,000 sq. ft.
The floor will be dedicated to the Group’s businesses of general
medical services, including but not limited to a new dedicated
health checkup centre and a new business unit targeting the B2B2C
market, which is expected to be our growth engine for the next
financial year. The expansion of our two medical floors will allow
us to realise a one-stop medical care ecosystem to cater the needs
of the B2B2C market, particularly in Central district. It is within our
strategic plan to develop such healthcare ecosystem in areas with

increasing demand.

As part of our growth strategy, we are also strategically expanding
our medical network to untapped locations to expand the offerings
of our offline clinical services to areas that have seen the most rapid
population growth in recent years. Consumer behaviour has seen
expected changes due to the pandemic. The launch of new medical
service points at strategic locations will further expand our large
medical networks to enable our Group to cater for patients with

different demands and preferences.

Our professional team of General Practitioners, specialist
practitioners and other medical specialists are our valuable assets
to help us realise our mission of becoming a trusted and preferred
partner offering quality and affordable healthcare services to an
inclusive clientele. We have been growing our professional medical
team and have recruited additional medical expertise in specialties
including family medicine, internal medicine, geriatric care,
radiology, imaging and laboratory during the year to support the
aforementioned expansion and development.
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CHAIRMAN STATEMENT
ERBE

Against the backdrop of the profound impact of COVID-19 and
increasing healthcare concern driven by an aging population in
Hong Kong, the demand for advanced medical imaging services
has seen rapid growth with enormous development potential.
Our medical imaging and laboratory business delivered strong
performance during the year, achieving significant revenue growth

of over 50% year-on-year.

To support our growth in this sector, we completed the acquisition
of 75% of the beneficial interests of an MRI centre. Following the
acquisition, UMP has become one of the largest private medical
imaging and laboratory operators in Hong Kong with 10 service
points, offering a broad service coverage including PET-CT, CT
Scan, MRI, ultrasound, mammogram and other medical imaging
and laboratory services in some of the most populated areas in
Hong Kong such as Causeway Bay, Central, Tsim Sha Tsui and
Mongkok. Smooth business integration of the acquired MRI centre
has generated revenue growth of more than 20% as at 30 June 2021.

With our diversified development strategy, we have been proactively
exploring new mergers and acquisitions opportunities to expand the
scope of our advanced medical imaging and laboratory services.
Our other acquired units of medical imaging and laboratory services
continued to deliver strong growth during the year. Axon Scanning
Centre Limited, our wholly-owned subsidiary engaged in the
provision of magnetic resonance imaging, scanning and laboratory
services in Hong Kong, achieved strong growth of over 70% in
revenue since its acquisition in FY2020. Acton Digital PET-CT
Centre, which commenced operations in January 2021, achieved
cash flow breakeven in merely 6 months as at 30 June 2021. In
addition, we upgraded the equipment and laboratory information
system for our ProCare laboratory during the year to enhance its
operating capacity and efficiency.
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Leveraging the economies of scale and synergy generated from our
acquired units of medical imaging and laboratory services, we have
been able to attract and retain a large team of radiologists to ensure
high standards of services. We believe our strong medical team and
extended business scale will provide a strong foothold to broaden
our presence in the medical imaging and laboratory business and
strengthen our customer base, enabling us to diversify our source of
income and achieve synergies with our other business units.

When social distancing in Hong Kong became commonplace,
our clients and their employees relied more than ever on our
continuous, innovative corporate healthcare solutions and
tailor-made third-party administration services such as 24/7
customer care hotline to address their rising needs. Our agile
business models also gave us the flexibility to seize online
business opportunities while contributing to the containment of the
COVID-19 impact as a socially responsible healthcare group. Our
UMP Health e-Shop has provided preventive care related packages
and online sales in response to higher health awareness and
changes in consumption behavior among the general public in the
post-COVID era.

We continued to expand the breadth and depth of our healthcare
services in Hong Kong through strategic cooperation during the year.
We collaborated with a virtual insurance company in providing
convenient healthcare services for members of its new health
membership programme boasting our extensive medical network
of more than 1,100 self-owned and affiliated service points. Our
strategic collaborations also encompassed joining hands with major
Hong Kong insurers to launch online outpatient insurance products
based on our virtual care telemedicine services. Such strategic
approach allowed us to complement our robust offline healthcare
services through collaborating with insurers with our expanding
online platform.
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CHAIRMAN STATEMENT
ERBE

We attach great importance to technology and believe that modern
healthcare providers must leverage technology to provide efficient
medical services. As part of our continuous digitalisation of patient
journey, we introduced a fully-digital clinic visit experience with
the use of electronic medical card and eVoucher device. Being the
first electronic medical vouchers system in Hong Kong’s healthcare
industry, our self-developed proprietary software eVoucher connects
with digital insurers to provide O20 medical services, offering
customers with contactless registration process and a comprehensive
clinic visit experience. Our robust data management strategy
contributed to the improvements of clinic operations efficiency
and patient data management to satisfy patients’ needs, ultimately
enhancing our patient relationship management.

Person-centric care and patient empowerment are imperative
for effective disease prevention and control. During the year,
we actively promoted preventive health education by sharing
trending medical knowledge on our website and social media
platforms. We believe strengthening individual participation and
patient empowerment in health promotion is of utmost importance
in sustaining a long-lasting service structure and establishing a

healthier community in the long run.

Mainland China

Headquartered in Shenzhen with clinical teams operating across
offices in Beijing and Shanghai, our Mainland China business is our
growth business, targeting ample opportunities driven by a huge
demand for accessible, affordable and quality healthcare services

across Mainland China.
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Our strategic approach in Mainland China differentiates us from
all our competitors. We go “upstream” to raise our own source
of qualified family doctors and primary care professionals to
comparable international standards. By engaging with medical
professionals through education and hands-on practice, we are
well-positioned to expand our medical footprint in Mainland China
with a focus in the Greater Bay Area (“GBA”). We developed a
revered General Practice Oriented Learning and Development
(“GOLD™”) Training Programme,

public-private-partnership (“PPP”) UMP medical centres and product

as well as innovative

innovations with insurance companies, all of which enable the
Group to capture the growing need for primary care professionals in
Mainland China.

GOLD™ Training Programme provides multi-leveled,
evidence-based practical training for General Practitioners (“GPs”)
in China. The excellence of the programme can be validated by the
accreditation by the Royal College of General Practitioners, and
was quickly recognised by Chinese local municipal governments.
Following the launch of GOLD™-EN Training Programme in
October 2019 to further empower nurses engaged in primary care,
the number of trainees rose from an original 11 GPs from Panyu
district in the GBA in 2018, to now over 1,200 GPs and nurses
across Mainland China.

The COVID-19 pandemic has presented a huge challenge for
our Mainland China business, but also a huge opportunity for
GOLD™ Training Programme. Our online training has been
extremely popular. We have also developed our telemedicine
platform in Mainland China, promoting a seamless integration for
patients to visit GOLD™-trained doctors online and offline at their

convenience.
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CHAIRMAN STATEMENT
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Beyond our one-of-a-kind training, we address the demand arising
from Mainland China’s recent healthcare reform with our continued
collaboration with the local government. UMP-branded PPP clinics
have been set up in over 150 government community healthcare
centres across the GBA as an initiative to deploy a sustainable
supply of trained GPs for our business expansion in Mainland China.
Gaining wide recognition from regional governments, our extensive
PPP clinic network has become one of the largest clinic networks
in the GBA. We will deploy more GOLD™-trained doctors and
GOLD™-EN-trained nurses to our existing and new PPP clinics or to
our virtual care platform in the near future to enhance the standard
and reach of medical services in the GBA.

To maximise the effectiveness of our GOLD™ training and
ensure the quality of clinical recommendations made by our
GOLD™-trained doctors, we believe the future of primary care
delivery lies in the power of data. Analyzing recorded consultations
and its available data using artificial intelligence (“Al”) are of
paramount importance in the continuous enhancement of our
service standard. In support of our Al initiatives, we are pleased
to have successfully achieved funding from the Enterprise Support
Scheme organised by Hong Kong Government’s Innovation and
Technology Commission, which aims to encourage private sector
investment in in-house research and development. The funding will
be used to develop an approx. HK$12 million project leveraging Al
and big data to produce quality services for the benefit of the wider
public.
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We are constantly in search of joining forces with medical expertise
to fulfil the rising needs of the GBA. Along this vein, we established
UMP Charity Foundation Limited (“UMP Charity Foundation”)
during the year with an aim to promote the enhancement of medical
care in Mainland China by working with outside expertise to provide
training and conducting clinical research to guide future health
policies. As one of our early initiatives, UMP Charity Foundation
established a strategic partnership with the Jockey Club School of
Public Health and Primary Care of the Faculty of Medicine at The
Chinese University of Hong Kong to promote the development of
an evidence-based medical platform for primary care doctors and
nurses. The platform will provide primary care professionals with
hands-on resources and international standards on training and
assessment leveraging our GOLD™ Training Programme, with an
aim to enhance the quality of primary care clinical services in the
GBA. We are excited to see the growth and transformation of many

more family medicine professionals to create value for our society.

With our strong confidence in the development potential of the
Mainland China market especially in the field of healthcare, our
stable cash flow position enabled us to ramp up our expansion plan
during the year to open a new headquarter in the central business
district of Shenzhen with a total floor space of approximately 11,000
sq. ft. This enhances our training facilities facilitating GOLD™ and
GOLD™-EN training as well as capturing of potential of GBA-based
business opportunities.

We believe the future of digital healthcare includes greater
connectivity between general and specialist medical services. As the
only Hong Kong-based healthcare platform with an Internet hospital
license during the year, our Hainan UMP Internet Hospital entered
into a strategic partnership with Aurora Tele-Oncology Limited, an
oncology-specific teleconsultation platform, to bring high quality
oncology medical services to Hainan Province and the rest of
Mainland China, leveraging our virtual care telemedicine services
and establishing a leading oncology medical services platform in
Mainland China.

CHAIRMAN STATEMENT
ERBE
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During the year we continued to explore strategic partnerships
based on shared vision and values. We partnered with Towngas
China Company Limited to join hands with its extended services
brand Towngas Lifestyle to provide comprehensive health
management services for residents in Panyu District, Guangzhou
City. We also partnered with Shenzhen Qianhai Shekou Free
Trade Zone Hospital to push forward cross-border integration of
quality medical resources through the introduction of our GOLD™
Training Programme and PPP clinics in the district, enabling GBA
residents to enjoy innovative healthcare services in line with
international standards. Other strategic partnerships fostered in
Mainland China during the year included the collaboration with a
reputable insurance company to launch the first online outpatient
and inpatient insurance product featuring our real-time virtual care
telemedicine services carried out by certified GPs from our GOLD™

Training Programme.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, I would like to extend my heartfelt
gratitude to our shareholders, clients and business partners for
their unwavering trust and steadfast support over the years. Sincere
gratitude also goes to our dedicated staff and management team for
their professional contributions and efforts to safeguard public health
under the challenging business environment.

Leveraging our solid business foundation, we will continue to carry
out our responsibility to contribute to the healthcare industry, while
steadily enhancing the quality and scope of our service offerings
to create sustainable value for our shareholders as we pursue our
vision: giving everyone access to trusted and affordable care, so that
everyone can freely pursue their dreams without worrying about
their health.

SUN Yiu Kwong
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUR BUSINESS

UMP’s business scope consists of the following business lines:

Hong Kong & Macau Corporate Healthcare Solution
Services

UMP provides corporate healthcare solutions through the
design and administration of tailored healthcare benefits
plans for its Contract Customers. The extension of Third Party
Administration service to our insurance company clients
since last year enriched UMP’s corporate healthcare solutions
scope. UMP aims to provide convenient, reliable, coordinated,
comprehensive and affordable healthcare services through the
well-established and multi-specialties UMP Network. As at
30 June 2021, the UMP Network comprises more than 1,100
points of services located across Hong Kong and Macau.

The Group’s Contract Customers comprise (i) insurance
companies, which enter into contracts with the Group for
healthcare services for their policyholders or employees
of their policyholders and (ii) corporations, which enter
into contracts with the Group for healthcare services for
their employees and/or their dependants. When designing
healthcare benefits plans, the Group collaborates closely with
the Contract Customers and designs and refines corporate
healthcare benefits plans, with each plan tailored to each
customer’s needs based on factors such as industry or
occupational health-related concerns, scope of healthcare
benefits desired, employee demographic as well as their
budget.

Hong Kong & Macau Clinical Healthcare Services

UMP provides Medical, Dental, medical imaging and
laboratory services, and Auxiliary Services to Self-paid
Patients. For medical services, UMP provides (i) general
practice services, which serves as the first point of contact for
the patients and (ii) specialist services covering more than 18
different specialties. For Dental Services, UMP provides both
primary dental care and secondary dental care such as dental
implants. For Auxiliary Services, UMP provides services such

as physiotherapy and vision care.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWERDN

3. Mainland China Healthcare Business
Our Mainland China Healthcare Business currently consists
of (i) health check-up business, (ii) corporate healthcare
solutions business (online merged to offline), (iii) within the
clinics we own and operate, revenue from selected outpatient
services such as family medicine and paediatric services and
(iv) provision of professional training to doctors and nurses
under our GOLD™ training programme. Our current focus is
on the development of our online merged to offline corporate
healthcare solution business in the Greater Bay Area where we
have made significant operating milestones in the past year in
building our core infrastructure, which is starting to reach a
critical mass. Number of GOLD™ doctors now exceeds 1,250
while the number of contracted PPP clinics has exceeded 150.
However, as the past year has been one of developments,
the revenue and operating result for this business segment
is primarily contributed by our health check-up business.
Our health check-up business in Mainland China has been
severely impacted over the past period by the travel restriction
measures arising from COVID-19. As measures have somewhat
eased, we saw a recovery in the second half of the year and

this has continued.

BUSINESS LINES ANALYSIS

Hong Kong & Macau Corporate Healthcare Solution Services
Revenue for this business line has marginally decreased by 4.3%
from HK$242.7 million to HK$232.4 million (before inter-segment
elimination) and our operating profit (operating profit before tax and
before non-recurring items) has decreased by 26.1% from HK$52.0
million to HK$38.4 million. COVID-19 has severely impacted
corporate clients particularly those relying on travel hospitality and
retail, hence putting pressure on covered members and margins.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Hong Kong & Macau Clinical Healthcare Services

Revenue for this business line has increased by 21.9% from
HK$368.7 million to HK$449.3 million (before inter-segment
elimination) and our operating profit (operating profit before tax and
before non-recurring items) has increased by 130.4% from HK$36.3
million to HK$83.7 million. This is mainly attributable to strong
growth in our imaging and specialist lines of business and health
assessments performed which enjoy relatively higher margin, and
which is point of focus and growth for the Group. During FY2022,
our specialist line of business will expand with a new flagship
medical centre in Central, Hong Kong with a total gross floor area of
approximately 11,000 sq.ft. while our imaging business acquisition

in FY2021 will contribute a full year of financial performance.

Mainland China Healthcare Business

Revenue for this business line has increased by 12.8% from
HK$38.4 million to HK$43.3 million (before inter-segment
elimination) primarily due to the increase in the number of patient
visits and health check-ups, while our operating loss (operating
loss before tax and before non-recurring items) has increased
45.1% from HK$33.5 million to HK$48.6 million. We continue
to invest in people and technology for the rapid development of
our GOLD™ medical professional training business in Mainland
China and mainly the GBA. Mainland China presents significant
growth opportunities and is a point of focus for us as we continue
to innovate and develop new business lines including our online

merged to offline corporate healthcare solutions.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFNWRDMN

The following table sets out the revenue and operating profit for our T Z& &7 F 7420218 B E K% 20208 B &

business lines for FY2021 and FY2020 for comparison: JE B TS AR M T 48 & 1) B DA it L 3
Revenue by business lines EEBRE S B HA

Year ended 30 June

BZE6H30RLLEE
2021 2020 Increase/
20214 2020%F (decrease)
HK$’000 HK$’000 &
FET THET CRA)
Hong Kong & Macau Corporate EANRBRPEEE
Healthcare Solution Services IRIE /R T RS 232,387 242,740 (4.3)%
Hong Kong & Macau Clinical BB KRR
Healthcare Services BB IRERS 449,326 368,710 21.9%
Mainland China Healthcare A B A Bt R R (R TS
Business 43,293 38,381 12.8%
Total before elimination of ERGHEHEE
inter-business lines sales KA ES 725,006 649,831 11.6%
Reconciliation: AR
Elimination of inter-business EREEIEEHE
lines sales (102,241) (92,347)
TOTAL A% 622,765 557,484 11.7%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Operating profit by business lines

BEEFWE DM

KRR E| 7 H4E 2 T8

Year ended 30 June

BZ6A30BLEE
2021 2020 Increase/
202145 2020%F (decrease)
HK$’000 HK$’000 141
THERT FHET OB )
Hong Kong & Macau Corporate EEIRMEEEE
Healthcare Solution Services TR 2 fRR T 2= AR TS 38,441 52,005 (26.1)%
Operating profit margin e ib-E 16.5% 21.4%
Hong Kong & Macau Clinical BB RRPIR IR B
Healthcare Services IR AR TE 83,727 36,337 130.4%
Operating profit margin AR T B 18.6% 9.9%
Mainland China Healthcare AR A It BE R R EE S
Business (48,602) (33,487) 45.1%
Operating profit margin AT T B E (112.3%) (87.2%)
Total operating profit by business &2 1542 & 5 H) 4248 & F))H
lines 73,566 54,855
Reconciliation: EE -
Other income and gains H bl A N b 2% 10,335 25,634
Share of profits/(losses) of: DEFE(ER)
A joint venture —MEeEERAQH (1,255) (167)
Associates iR /NE 1,333 1,677
Corporate and other unallocated NA R EMAE SRS
expenses (32,659) (8,593)
Profit before tax B 5% Al A1 E 51,320 73,406
(1) Business lines revenue presented above are before intersegment sales (1) £§ﬁﬁ%ﬂ%i%%?uﬁz)\%i’%ﬁ’ﬁ%ﬂf‘aﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬁ
elimination. Al °
(2)  Operating profit by business lines represent operating profit before tax for ~ (2) REBRE D OLENEREXBERORBA

each business line and excluding non-recurring items.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ﬁﬂﬂﬁgﬁhmli 1%

FINANCIAL REVIEW
FY2021 compared to FY2020

Revenue

During FY2021, we primarily generated revenue from (i) the
provision of corporate healthcare solutions to Contract Customers
in Hong Kong and Macau, (ii) the provision of clinical healthcare
services to Self-paid Patients in Hong Kong and Macau and (iii) the
provision of healthcare services in Mainland China.

Total consolidated revenue increased by 11.7% from HK$557.5
million in FY2020 to HK$622.8 million in FY2021, primarily due
to strong growth in our imaging and specialist lines of business and
health assessments performed, which enjoy relatively higher margin.

Provision of corporate healthcare solution services to Contract
Customers in Hong Kong and Macau

Revenue from the provision of corporate healthcare solution services
to Contract Customers in Hong Kong and Macau decreased by 4.3%
from HK$241.4 million in FY2020 to HK$231.1 million in FY2021.

Our corporate healthcare solutions services revenue model falls
under two main categories, those subject to capitation plans, and
those charged on a fee-for-service basis. Total registered members
under capitation schemes decreased by approximately 4.5% during
FY2021 reflecting a cut-back in insured members and employees,
an underlying impact of COVID-19 as certain sectors such as travel,
hospitality and retail being hit hard.

With this backdrop, patient visit count was also down 23.4% while
average spend per visit had conversely increased.

Provision of clinical healthcare services in Hong Kong and Macau
Revenue from the provision of clinical healthcare services in Hong
Kong and Macau increased by 25.5% from HK$277.7 million in
FY2020 to HK$348.3 million in FY2021.

This revenue growth in our clinical healthcare services was mainly
attributable to strong growth in our imaging and specialist lines of
business and health assessments performed which enjoy relatively
higher margin.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Mainland China Healthcare Business

Revenue contribution from Mainland China Healthcare Business
increased by 12.8% from HK$38.4 million in FY2020 to HK$43.3
million in FY2021, primarily due to an increase in the patient visit.
Our current focus is on the development of our online merged to
offline corporate healthcare solution business in the Greater Bay
Area where we have made significant operating milestones in
the past year in building our core infrastructure, which is starting
to reach a critical mass. Number of Gold doctor now exceeds
1,250 while the number of contracted PPP clinics has exceeded
150. However, as the past year has been one of development, the
revenue and operating result for this business segment is primarily

contributed by our health check-up business.

Our health check-up business in Mainland China has been severely
impacted over the past period by the travel restriction measures
arising from COVID-19. As measures have somewhat eased, we saw
a recovery in the second half of the year and this has continued.

Professional Services Expenses

Professional services expenses primarily comprise fees paid to
Doctors, Dentists and Auxiliary Services Providers for Medical
Services, Dental Services, medical imaging and laboratory services
and Auxiliary Services rendered within the UMP Network, as well as
fees paid to third party laboratories and medical imaging centres for
services rendered to the Group.

Professional services expenses increased by 2.2% from HK$216.7
million for FY2020 to HK$221.3 million for FY2021, in line with the

nature of the services provided and turnover growth during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWERDN

Employee Benefit Expense

Employee benefit expense primarily comprise salaries and related
costs, equity-settled share-based payment expense, as well as
pension scheme contributions for nurses and administrative
personnel, and also include those of the Directors and key
management personnel.

Employee benefit expense increased by 5.2% from HK$140.9
million for FY2020 to HK$148.3 million for FY2021. The increase in
employee benefit expense reflects the Group’s talent strategy as we
continue to increase the talent pool in preparation for the next phase
of our development strategy. While the employee benefit expense
is not a direct variable cost, its increase is in line with business

growth.

Property Rental and Related Expenses

Property rental and related expenses decreased by 12.5% from
HK$12.3 million for FY2020 to HK$10.8 million for FY2021,
primarily due to certain rent concessions granted by landlords as a

direct result of the economic conditions caused by the pandemic.

Other Expenses, Net

Other expenses, net primarily comprise provision for and reversals
of impairment of goodwill, prepayments, other receivables and
other assets, warrant expenses and general overhead expenses such
as utilities, operating and other administrative expenses such as
professional fees, repair and maintenance expenses incurred with
respect to the Group’s offices and medical equipment, printing

expenses and bank charges.

Other expenses, net, increased by 205.2% from approximately
HK$28.4 million for FY2020 to HK$86.6 million for FY2021,
primarily due to the following expenses in the current year (i)
impairment of goodwill of HK$20.0 million, (ii) impairment of
prepayments, other receivables and other assets of HK$4.1 million,
(iii) non-recurring project cost of HK$6.3 million, and other
expenditure due to business expansion, while there was a reversal of
equity-settled share-based payment expense of HK$15.2 million in
FY2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Summary of operational data for FY2021 with comparative figures

for FY2020:

Revenue by operating segment

B E

am & 7 4

2021 B EFE RS BIRE2020 BFEH

HERBEHME

BEE S ME DB A

Year ended 30 June

BZ6A30BLFE
2021 2020 Increase/
20214 2020%F (decrease)
HK$’000 HK$’000 191
FERT FAET OB )
Provision of corporate healthcare E{{H¥BERRE
solution services fBR T RRE 237,507 245,556 (3.3)%
Medical = 215,821 221,079 (2.4)%
Dental 7l 21,686 24,477 (11.4)%
Provision of clinical healthcare REHEKERRERE
services 385,258 311,928 23.5%
Medical B 329,831 260,310 26.7%
Dental FE 55,427 51,618 7.4%
TOTAL a3 622,765 557,484 11.7%
Number of visits by operating segment RREIHEINBZRE
Year ended 30 June Increase/
B Z6A30BILLEE (decrease)
2021 2020 #m,/
20215 20204 Rt 2)
Provision of corporate healthcare 2t ¥ BERRE
solution services BARFERE 848,024 1,106,304 (23.4)%
Medical B 820,648 1,082,228 (24.2)%
Dental 7 27,376 24,076 13.7%
Provision of clinical healthcare RERREERERE
services 276,641 242,769 14.0%
Medical BEE 247,201 211,786 16.7%
Dental TR 29,440 30,983 (5.0)%
TOTAL a5t 1,124,665 1,349,073 (16.6)%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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KEY FINANCIAL POSITION ITEMS

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. The
recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis

over the shorter of the estimated useful life and the lease term.

As at 30 June 2021, the Group’s right-of-use assets amounted to
HK$73.7 million (30 June 2020: HK$82.2 million).

Goodwill

Goodwill primarily represents the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration over the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. After initial recognition, goodwill is

measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

As at 30 June 2021 the Group’s goodwill amounted to HK$164.8
million (30 June 2020: HK$171.3 million). The net decrease in
goodwill is primarily due to (i) impairment of goodwill of HK$20.0
million during the year; (ii) additional goodwill of HK$18.8 million
in relation to the acquisition of 75% interest in Flash Mover Limited
(“Flash Mover”) during the year; and (iii) reclassification of HK$5.2

million to assets of disposal groups classified as held for sale.

Investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and financial assets at amortised cost

Investments at fair value through other comprehensive income,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial
assets at amortised cost primarily represent unlisted equity
investments at fair value, listed equity and debt investments at
fair value and investment funds. Certain equity investments are
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income as the

Group considers these investments to be strategic in nature.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 30 June 2021, the Group's investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and financial assets at amortised cost amounted to
HK$23.6million, HK$27.1 million and HK$33.1 million (30 June
2020: HK$23.2 million, HK$1.7 million and HK$55.9 million),
respectively. The increase is primarily due to changes in fair value

and acquisition of investment funds.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has historically funded its operations primarily by cash
generated from operating activities. Upon the listing of the shares of
the Company on the Stock Exchange, the Group intended to satisfy
its liquidity requirements using a combination of cash generated
from operating activities, net proceeds from the Global Offering
and the net considerations received from the series of transactions.
As of 30 June 2021, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
HK$294.0 million.

As of the date of this report, the Group did not have any bank
borrowings or outstanding bank loans and did not enter into any
bank loan facilities.

GEARING RATIO
As at 30 June 2021, the Group had no net debt. The Group’s gearing

ratio was not applicable as at 30 June 2021.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Issue of unlisted warrants

The Company entered into a subscription agreement with Zheng
He and LAW Siu Wah, Eddie, the ultimate beneficial owner and
ultimate controller of Zheng He on 24 October 2018.

Details regarding the issue of unlisted warrants were already set out
in the Company’s announcements dated 27 July 2018, 30 August
2018, and 6 December 2018, and in the Company’s circular dated
29 October 2018. On 6 December 2018, the Company issued an
aggregate of 110,411,000 Warrants to three (3) Zheng He Parties
as nominated by Zheng He, entitling them to subscribe for up to an
aggregate of 110,411,000 Warrant Shares at HK$2.06 per Warrant
Share in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Warrant
Instrument. During FY2019, 36,803,667 Warrants were vested and
the remaining 73,607,333 unvested and unexercised Warrants
lapsed on 14 November 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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During FY2019, the subscription price of 36,803,667 Warrants
were adjusted due to the distribution of the interim dividend of
HKO0.65 cent per Share for the six months ended 31 December
2018 resulted in the adjustment of the initial subscription price
(“Initial Subscription Price”) of the issued unlisted warrants of the
Company from HK$2.06 to HK$2.0521 (the “First Adjusted ISP”) in
accordance with the Warrant Instrument.

In January 2020, the distribution of the final dividend of HK2.55
cents per Share for year ended 30 June 2019 by the Company
resulted in the adjustment of the Initial Subscription Price from the
First Adjusted ISP of HK$2.0521 to HK$2.0136 (“Second Adjusted
ISP”) in accordance with the Warrant Instrument.

In April 2020, the subscription price of 36,803,667 Warrants were
further adjusted due to the distribution of the interim dividend of
HKO0.65 cent per Share for the six months ended 31 December 2019
resulted in the adjustment of the Initial Subscription Price from
the Second Adjusted ISP of HK$2.0136 to HK$2.0042 (the “Third
Adjusted ISP”) in accordance with the Warrant Instrument.

In January 2021, the distribution of the final dividend of HK2.65
cents per Share for year ended 30 June 2020 by the Company
resulted in the adjustment of the Initial Subscription Price from
the Third Adjusted ISP of HK$2.0042 to HK$1.9609 (the “Fourth
Adjusted ISP”) in accordance with the Warrant Instrument.

In April 2021, the distribution of the interim dividend of HK1 cent
per Share for year ended 30 June 2021 by the Company resulted
in the adjustment of the Initial Subscription Price from the Fourth
Adjusted ISP of HK$1.9609 to HK$1.9382 in accordance with the
Warrant Instrument.

There has been no change in the capital structure of the Company

during the year ended 30 June 2021. The capital of the Company
comprises ordinary shares and other reserves.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSAL OF

SUBSIDIARIES
On 31 March 2021, the Group acquired 75% equity interest in Flash

Mover from several independent third parties in a consideration
of HK$15.1 million. Flash Mover is engaged in the provision of
magnetic resonance imaging, scanning and laboratory services in
Hong Kong. Upon the completion of the acquisition, Flash Mover
became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Save as aforesaid, there was no material acquisitions or disposal of

subsidiaries undertaken by the Group during FY2021.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any specific
future plan for material investments or capital assets as of 30 June
2021.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The capital expenditure during the year was primarily related
to deposits paid for and expenditures on additions of property,
plant and equipment for the Group’s Medical, Dental and
Auxiliary Services centres. For FY2021, the Group incurred capital
expenditure in an aggregate amount of approximately HK$32.3
million (FY2020: HK$26.8 million).

INDEBTEDNESS

Contingent Liabilities

As at 30 June 2021, the Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities.

Capital Commitment

As at 30 June 2021, the Group has material capital commitments
of approximately HK$2.4 million in relation to the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Foreign Currency Risk

During the reporting period, the Group undertook certain
transactions in foreign currencies, which exposed the Group to
foreign currency risk, primarily relating to the Renminbi against
Hong Kong dollars.

The Group did not use any derivative contracts to hedge against its
exposure to currency risk. The management manages the currency
risk by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency
rates and will consider hedging against significant foreign exchange
exposure when the need arises.

Credit Risk

The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets arises from default of
the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 30 June 2021, the Group has pledged certain deposits with

an aggregate carrying amount of HK$1.9 million (30 June 2020:
HK$1.4 million) in connection with a surety bond issued by a
bank in favour of respective independent third parties for potential
damages of Dental equipment and potential disruption of Medical
Services, and a bank guarantee issued by a bank in favour of a
landlord for leasing of a medical centre of the Group.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY
As at 30 June 2021, the Group had a total of 519 full-time

employees (FY2020: 452 full-time employees). For FY2021, the
staff cost (including Directors’ remuneration in the form of salaries
and other benefits) was approximately HK$148.3 million (FY2020:
HK$140.9 million).

The Group ensures that the pay levels of its employees are
competitive and employees are rewarded on a performance
related basis, together with reference to the profitability of the
Group, prevailing remuneration benchmarks in the industry, and
market conditions within the general framework of the Group's
remuneration system.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, where eligible participants are
entitled to subscribe for the ordinary shares in the Company for their
past and potential contribution to the growth of the Group. As at
30 June 2021, 27,008,000 options under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme remained outstanding and none of share options under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme have been exercised during FY2021.
As at 30 June 2021, 36,286,000 options remained outstanding under
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and none of share options under
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme have been exercised during
FY2021.

In addition, the Company has also adopted the Share Award Scheme
on 30 June 2016 to provide an incentive and reward to selected
participants for their contribution or potential contribution to the
Group. During FY2021, 600,000 awarded shares have been granted
under the Share Award Scheme (2020: 1,390,000 awarded shares)
and 600,000 awarded shares have been vested (2020: 2,555,000
awarded shares).

The remuneration of the Directors are reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board, according
to the relevant Director’s experience, responsibility, workload and
the time devoted to the Group, the Company’s operating results and
comparable market statistics.

FINAL DIVIDEND
The directors proposed the payment of a final dividend of HK2.80

cents per Share for FY2021 (FY2020: HK2.65 cents) and proposes
that Shareholders be given the option to receive the proposed 2021
final dividend of HK2.80 cents per Share in new Shares in lieu of
cash (the “Scrip Dividend Option”). The Scrip Dividend Option is
subject to the approval of Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM
and the Stock Exchange granting the listing of and permission to
deal in the new Shares to be issued pursuant thereto. The proposed
2021 final dividend is expected to be distributed on Wednesday,
26 January 2022 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the
Register of Members of the Company on Friday, 10 December 2021.
A circular containing details of the Scrip Dividend Option will be
despatched together with a form of election for scrip dividend in
December 2021.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
EEEE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Dr. SUN Yiu Kwong (##J8°I), aged 78, is a founding member of
the Group and the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. He was appointed as a Director on 23 April 2015 and
re-designated as an executive Director on 29 August 2015. He is
primarily responsible for the overall formulation, supervision and
guidance of business strategies, planning and development of the
Group. He is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Dr. Sun is also a director of various companies of the

Group.

With over 45 years of experience in family medicine practice,
Dr. Sun is a Founder Fellow of the Hong Kong College of Family
Physicians. He is a Clinical Associate Professor (honorary) in Faculty
of Medicine, Jockey Club School of Public Health and Primary Care,
The Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Honorary Clinical
Assistant Professor in Department of Family Medicine and Primary
Care, The University of Hong Kong. Dr. Sun is one of the pioneer
Hong Kong doctors to participate in the healthcare development
and training of medical professionals in the PRC. With his wealth of
experience in the PRC, in particular his involvement and exposure
in the training programmes of various institutions, he plays a leading
role in the strategic planning and development of the Group’s
healthcare business in the PRC.

Dr. Sun is the father of Dr. Michael Sun and the father-in-law of
Mr. Patrick Tsang, both of whom are executive Directors. He is the
sole shareholder and a director of East Majestic Group Limited. He is
also the sole shareholder and director of EM Team Limited.

He obtained a Bachelor of Medicine, Bachelor of Surgery from the
University of Hong Kong in November 1967 and became a Fellow of
the Hong Kong College of Family Physicians in September 1987 and
a Fellow of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine in the specialty
of Family Medicine in December 1993. He was also registered as a

specialist in Family Medicine in March 1998.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Ms. KWOK Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen (ZEE£ &), aged 53, is the
Managing Director of the Company. She was appointed as a Director
on 5 November 2014 and re-designated as an executive Director
on 29 August 2015. She is responsible for the overall management
and business development of the Group and initiating and
leading business projects in collaboration with medical insurance
companies and corporate customers. Ms. Kwok is also responsible
for developing the management team with a view to enhancing
operational efficiency and expanding the Group’s business
activities. Ms. Kwok is one of the key members in establishing
the administration arm of the Group. She has over 25 years of
experience in health schemes management and providers network
administration to support the healthcare plan’s implementation in
the Group’s network. She is actively involved in developing the
infrastructure of the Group such as information technology platforms
and medical network facilities. In the recent years, Ms. Kwok is also
leading and managing the corporate development, the merger and
acquisition investments, and the business expansion in the mainland
China for the Group. Ms. Kwok is also a director of various
companies of the Group.

Ms. Kwok obtained a Bachelor of Arts in International Business
Studies (Hons) from the City University of Hong Kong in November
1991 and obtained a Bachelor of Laws from Peking University in
July 1996. She also obtained a Master of Science in Management
(Health Services Management) from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in November 2003.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
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Mr. TSANG On Yip, Patrick (& & 3), aged 50, was appointed as
a Director on 18 August 2015 and re-designated as an executive
Director on 29 August 2015. He is a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Tsang is primarily responsible
for providing strategic directions on co-operations with different
business stakeholders in China and globally. He is the Chief
Executive Officer and a director of CTFE. He is also a director of
Healthcare Ventures Holdings Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
CTFE and a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Tsang has
over 25 years of international capital markets experience, and was
previously managing director, head of Asia Fixed Income Capital
Markets at Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch, where he worked
from 2003 to 2012. He is currently a director and a shareholder of
UMP Healthcare China.

Mr. Tsang is an executive director of Melbourne Enterprises Limited
(stock code: 158) and a non-executive director of Integrated Waste
Solutions Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 923), Greenheart
Group Limited (stock code: 94), i-Cable Communications Limited
(stock code: 1097) and SJM Holdings Limited (stock code: 880), all
being companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Tsang is the son-in-law of Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer of the Company and an executive Director
and the brother-in-law of Dr. Michael Sun, an executive Director.

Mr. Tsang obtained a Bachelor of Arts in Economics from Columbia
College of Columbia University in New York, USA in May 1994.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Dr. SUN Man Kin, Michael (28 X &), aged 43, was appointed as
a Director on 18 August 2015 and re-designated as an executive
Director on 29 August 2015. He is a specialist in Radiology and is
responsible for expanding the global imaging business of the Group
as well as building the physician networks. Dr. Sun has over 15
years of experience in medicine and has been the Chief Radiologist
of the Group since July 2012. He is currently a radiologist, a director
and a shareholder of ProCare Medical Imaging and Laboratory
Centre Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. He
is also a consultant radiologist of the Group and a director of various

members of the Group.

Dr. Sun is the son of Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, the Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer of the Company and executive Director and the
brother-in-law of Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick, an executive Director.

He is also a director of East Majestic Group Limited.

Dr. Sun obtained a Bachelor of Medicine, Bachelor of Surgery from
the University of Hong Kong in December 2002. He became a
Fellow of the Royal College of Radiologist in October 2007 and a
Fellow of the Hong Kong College of Radiologists in October 2010.
He also became a Fellow of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine in
the specialty of Radiology in June 2010.
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Mr. LEE Kar Chung, Felix (FXH), aged 40, was appointed as a
Director on 18 August 2015 and re-designated as an executive
Director on 29 August 2015. Mr. Lee is also serving as President
and Chief Executive Officer of UMP Healthcare China Limited.
He is responsible for corporate development, international
operations and merger and acquisitions for the Group. Mr. Lee
joined the Group as director, corporate development and strategy
of the Group in September 2014. He is currently a Senior Vice
President of CTFE with responsibilities in making investments
in the healthcare sector in Asia and globally and a director of
Healthcare Ventures Holdings Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
of CTFE, a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Lee is also
an independent non-executive director of CR Medical (stock code:
1515.HK), a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Lee is also
an independent non-executive director of Asymchem Laboratories
(Tianjin) Co., Ltd (stock code: 002821.SZ). Mr. Lee is also a director
of various companies of the Group. He has over 15 years of
experience in law and finance. He was an associate with the law
firm Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer before he left in February
2008 to join UBS AG, Hong Kong branch as an analyst in the
investment banking department until January 2009. He then joined
the investment banking department of Deutsche Bank AG, Hong
Kong branch and last held the position of director in the Corporate
Advisory Group, where he worked from January 2009 to August
2014. Mr. Lee is also a Vice Chairman of the China Committee, the
Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce.

Mr. Lee obtained a Bachelor of Laws from the London School of
Economics and Political Sciences and a Postgraduate Certificate in
Laws from the University of Hong Kong in July 2003 and June 2004,
respectively. He is a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong since
September 2007 and a solicitor (non-practising) in the Senior Courts
of England and Wales since February 2013.
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Dr. LEE Pak Cheung, Patrick (Z#1%¥), aged 56, was appointed as
an executive director on 28 February 2018. He joined the Group
in 2003. He was appointed as the Dental Director for the Group
since 2014, primarily responsible for supervising the dental practice
of the Group and advising on the continuing training of dental
professionals and development of clinical and professional services.
Dr. Patrick Lee is one of the major contributors in the Group’s dental
centre chain, he keeps an active practice to nurture and inspire
his dental colleagues. Dr. Patrick Lee also performs a key role in
business development and quality assurance in the Group’s dental
centre chain. Dr. Patrick Lee obtained a Bachelor of Dental Surgery
from the University of Hong Kong in 1988. He became a member of
the faculty of general dental practitioners (UK) of the Royal College
of Surgeons of England in 1995 and a member in general dental
surgery of the Royal College of Surgeons of Edinburgh in 1997.
In 1999, he became a Fellow of the Royal Australasian College of
Dental Surgeons. In 2007, he was granted a Diploma of Membership
in General Dentistry by the College of Dental Surgeons of Hong
Kong. Dr. Patrick Lee currently also serves as dental consultant for
the Group.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEE Luen-Wai, John 8ss jp (), aged 72, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 6 November 2015.
He is the chairman of Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Lee is an independent
non-executive director of New World Development Company
Limited (stock code: 17), an associate of CTFE. Mr. Lee is also the
managing director and chief executive officer of Lippo Limited
(stock code: 226), an executive director and the chief executive
officer of both Lippo China Resources Limited (stock code: 156) and
Hongkong Chinese Limited (stock code: 655), all being companies
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He resigned as a
non-executive non-independent chairman of Healthway Medical
Corporation Limited, a company listed on the Catalist Board of the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited with effect from 26
April 2019.

Mr. Lee is a Fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales, the Association of Certified Accountants and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was a
partner of Pricewaterhouse (now known as PricewaterhouseCoopers)
in Hong Kong and has extensive experience in corporate finance
and capital markets. Mr. Lee is an Honorary Fellow of the City
University of Hong Kong and a Justice of Peace in Hong Kong and
an awardee of the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

Mr. Lee is active in public service. Over the years, he has served
as a member or chairman of different government boards and
committees in Hong Kong, including a member of the Hong Kong
Hospital Authority and the chairman of the Hospital Governing
Committee of the Queen Elizabeth Hospital. Currently, he serves as
the Chairman of the Hospital Governing Committee of Hong Kong
Children’s Hospital, a member of the Public Service Commission
and the Investment Committee of the Hospital Authority Provident
Fund Scheme.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Dr. LI Kwok Tung, Donald s8s j» (ZBI#R), aged 67, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 6 November 2015.
He is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company. He is also an independent non-executive director
of C-MER Eye Care Holdings Limited (stock code: 3309), Sino
Biopharmaceutical Limited (stock code: 1177) and New Horizon
Health Limited (stock code: 6606) and Dr. Li has been appointed
as the medical international advisor of Ping An Healthcare and
Technology Company Limited (stock code: 1833), all being
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, with
effect from 5 May 2018. Dr. Li is a specialist in Family Medicine in
private practice in Hong Kong. He is the past President of the Hong
Kong Academy of Medicine, the President of the World Organisation
of Family Doctors (WONCA), senior advisor of Jiahui Health and
Censor of the Hong Kong College of Family Physicians. Dr Li is also
the Chairman of the Governing Board of Hong Kong Jockey Club
Disaster Preparedness and Response Institute.

Dr. Li obtained a Bachelor of Arts from Cornell University, USA,
and a Bachelor of Medicine and a Bachelor of Surgery from the
University of Hong Kong in June 1975 and November 1980,
respectively. He became a Fellow of the Hong Kong College of
General Practitioners in September 1987, Honorary Fellow of the
Hong Kong Academy of Medicine in December 1993, Honorary
Fellow of the Hong Kong College of Dental Surgeons in August
2004, Honorary Fellow of the Royal Australian College of General
Practitioners in September 2005, Honorary Fellow of the Hong Kong
College of Family Physicians in May 2007, Fellow of the Faculty
of Public Health of the Royal Colleges of Physicians of the United
Kingdom in February 2010, Honorary Fellow of the Academy of
Family Physicians of Malaysia in April 2011, Registered Mainland
China Medical Practitioner in April 2013, Honorary Fellow of the
Royal College of Physicians of Thailand in April 2013, Fellow of
the Academy of Medicine, Singapore, in August 2013, Honorary
Fellow of the Royal College of Physicians of Ireland in October 2014
and Honorary Fellow of the Royal College of General Practitioners
in November 2014. He took office President of the WONCA since
November 2018.

He served as Member of Council of Cornell University. He is a
Clinical Associate Professor (honorary) in Family Medicine at the
Chinese University of Hong Kong and Honorary Professor of the Li
Ka Shing Faculty of Medicine of the University of Hong Kong.
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Dr. Li is the Director of the Hong Kong St. John Ambulance
Association. He is the chairman of the board of directors of the
Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council Limited, Honorary
Steward of the Hong Kong Jockey Club. He is the Honorary Adviser
of The Hong Kong Award for Young People. He is the chairman
of the Action Committee Against Narcotics of Security Bureau,
member of the Chief Executive’s Council of Advisers on Innovation
and Strategic Development, the Steering Committee on Primary
Healthcare Development of Food & Health Bureau, and also
chairman of Professional Committee on Medical Health of Belt and
Road General Chamber of Commerce. Dr. Li retired as the chairman
of Bauhinia Foundation Research Centre on 17 January 2019 and
retains as directors. He is also the independent non-executive
director of ZA Life Limited.

Mr. YEUNG Wing Sun, Mike (%% #%), aged 68, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 6 November 2015.
He is a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Yeung is an independent
non-executive director and a member of the audit committee and
nomination committee of Hong Kong Shanghai Alliance Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1001), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. He has over 40 years’ working experience
in banking industry. Mr. Yeung began his career with the HSBC
Group in 1972 and advanced himself in the organisation by taking
up different positions under various business streams including
personal banking, sales and marketing, branch operation and
trade service. In 2001, Mr. Yeung was relocated to Shanghai and
took up the role of branch manager of HSBC Shanghai. In June
2006, he was seconded to Hang Seng Bank (China) Limited and
appointed as the Head of Personal Financial Services and Wealth
Management, China Business. He assumed the role of Deputy Chief
Executive and Head of Personal Financial Services and Wealth
Management in May 2007. Mr. Yeung retired from HSBC Group in
January 2014. Mr. Yeung is the Honorary President of Hong Kong
Chamber of Commerce in Shanghai. He was awarded the “Magnolia
Gold Award” presented by the Shanghai Municipal government.
Mr. Yeung was also awarded a Professional Diploma in Company
Direction by The Hong Kong Institute of Directors in 2017.
Mr. Yeung was a member of the 11th and 12th Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference Committee in Shanghai.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and transparency. The Company believes that
high standards of corporate governance provide a solid foundation
for the Group to manage business risks, enhance transparency and
maintain high standards of accountability. The corporate governance
principles of the Company emphasise sound internal control and

aim to protect Shareholders’ interests in general.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code during FY2021, except for the
deviation as disclosed in this annual report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises nine Directors, consisting of six
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong as Chairman, Chief Executive Officer
and executive Director, Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen, as
Managing Director and executive Director, Mr. Tsang On Yip,
Patrick, Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael, Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix and
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick as executive Directors, and Mr. Lee
Luen Wai, John BBS JP, Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald SBS /P and
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike as independent non-executive Directors.

Biographical details of the Directors and their relationships, where
applicable, are contained in the section headed “Biographical

Details of Directors” of this annual report.

The Company has maintained on its website and on the website
of the Stock Exchange an updated list of its Directors identifying
their roles and functions, and whether they are independent non-
executive Directors. Independent non-executive Directors are
identified as such in all corporate communications that disclose the
names of Directors.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company considered diversity
of Board members can be achieved through consideration of a
number of aspects, including but not limited to the gender, age,
cultural, educational background and professional experience of the
Board members. The appointment of Directors will be based on the
Group’s own business model and specific needs, having due regard
to the benefits of diversity of the Board.

The Company believes that the current Board composition is well-
balanced and of a diverse mix appropriate for the business of the
Company. The Board will review and monitor the implementation of
board diversity policy on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness
on determining the optimal composition of the Board.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

According to code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the roles of the chairman and chief executive should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Dr.
Sun Yiu Kwong, the Chairman, is also the Chief Executive Officer.
The Board believes that vesting the roles of both chairman and
chief executive officer in an experienced and qualified person
such as Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong provides the Company with strong and
consistent leadership while allowing effective and efficient planning
and implementation of business decisions and strategies. The Board
considers that this structure will not impair the balance of power

and authority between the Board and the management of the Group.

The Board will review the corporate governance structure and
practices from time to time and shall make necessary arrangement

when the Board considers appropriate.

Independent non-executive Directors

During FY2021, the Board at all times met the requirements of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors representing one third of
the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of
his independence in accordance with the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Roles of the Board and Management

The Board oversees the management, business, strategic directions
and performance of the Group. It is collectively responsible for
the management and operation of the Company. The Board is the
ultimate decision making body of the Company except for matters
requiring the approval of the Shareholders in accordance with the

Articles, the Listing Rules or other applicable laws and regulations.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to the
management of the Company. The Board and the management have
clearly defined authorities and responsibilities under various internal
control and check and balance mechanisms. The Board does not
delegate matters to the Board committee(s), executive Directors or
management to an extent that would significantly hinder or reduce
the ability of the Board as a whole to perform its functions.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board plays a major role in the supervision of corporate
governance to ensure that the Company maintains a sound
governance framework and the long-term sustainable Shareholders’
value by way of, among others:

(a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the

Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code and Corporate

Governance Report).
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During the year, the Board has reviewed the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance, and reviewed and monitored
the training and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management. The Board has also reviewed and ensured
compliance of the relevant legal and regulatory requirements, the
code of conducts, the code and the disclosure in the Corporate

Governance Report.

Board Meetings and Supply of and Access to Information
Under code provision A.1.1 of the Corporate Governance Code, the
Board should meet regularly and Board meetings should be held
at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals and
under code provision A.2.7 of the Corporate Governance Code, the
Chairman of the Board should at least annually hold meetings with
the non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) without the executive Directors present. During FY2021,
the Board held four meetings and Directors’ attendance records are
set out below:

FR EZGCEHARANEEERARK
RESR UTEHREREERSMEEASR
MBI EEXER -EESNCENYL
BRETHBERMERESR TR
SRR EEEARETORE -

EEeeBRENRMURER
RIFEEEATRINTRAMRNEAIUE &
EERTEHHE EZ2CREEFAHE
PR ROBF R MREBEEERERT
AINTRMEX FA2. 71K EEQLFRED
BFEFNTES (BRBIIFNTES) S
T—RATEFTEFENGZE - N2021 8 R EF
ER EFQ@CBTHASH SEEFNH
PSR

Meeting(s)
Attended/Held
HE BT
Directors BEE SERE
Executive Directors BHITEE
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong FRIBE (L/EHFRTHAEE)

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) 4/4
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen SPBEER LT (BEFHIIE)

(Managing Director) 4/4
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick BRERE 4/4
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael RN EBREE 4/4
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix FREELE 4/4
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung Patrick FlaEBEL 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHHTEE
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP PHBRE(WEFAEE X FHL) 4/4
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald SBS JP FERBE (REHEE X FHL) 4/4
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike 5 R B A 4/4

In addition, the Chairman held a meeting with the independent
non-executive Directors without the presence of executive Directors.
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Notice incorporating the agenda for each regular Board meeting is
given to all Directors at least 14 days in advance. For other Board
meetings and Board committee meetings, reasonable notice will
be given. All Directors or Board committee members are given the
opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. Meeting
agenda and accompanying meeting papers are sent to all relevant
Directors at least 3 days in advance of every regular Board meeting

or committee meeting.

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman of the Board and
the chairmen of Board committees in preparing meeting agendas
and ensures that the Corporate Governance Code as well as all
applicable laws and regulations are duly complied with. Minutes
of Board meetings and Board committee meetings are recorded in
sufficient details of the matters considered and decisions reached
at the relevant meetings. Draft and final versions of the minutes
in respect of Board meetings and Board committee meetings are
sent to all Directors or Board committee members respectively for
comment and records within a reasonable time after the relevant
meetings. All minutes are properly kept by the Company Secretary
and are available for the Directors’ and Board committee members’

inspection.

All Directors are entitled to have access to timely information in
relation to the Company’s business and make further enquiries
or retain independent professional advisors where necessary. The
management provides all relevant explanation and information
to the Board so as to give the Board the information it needs to
discharge its responsibilities. During FY2021, the management
has provided all members of the Board with adequate information
giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects.

TRERBE

MEESEERAeRAE AL ERRE
FEVURFIREERRES  ENAREM
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CEMERXNZEEER AR ELIRAIAE
TREFEE -
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N EZETERNEFEETZRETIRL
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NAERBEXERESHEETEETZE SN
B VhlEEREEFSETZEENXER
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TRERBE

GENERAL MEETINGS

During FY2021, the Company has convened and held one annual
general meeting (“AGM”). Attendance record of the Directors at the

general meeting is set out as follows:

BRERRE

R2021BFER  RABIE AR MEIT—
KERRBEFRG ((RERAFAE]) ~BEER

BERAGH HFLEEIT

Number of
meeting
attended/held
HES
BITRERE
AGM
Name of Directors EEns RRBFRE
Executive Directors HITEE
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong RIBIE
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (EEFHITIEAEE) 1/1
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen LEE T
(Managing Director) (BEFHHE) 11
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick B ERE 11
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael A B EE 1/1
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix TRPESE 1/1
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick TR 1/
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHHITEE
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP FPMEBEE (WEHEE K FHL) 171
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald SBS JP FTERBLE (REHEE  KFHL) 1
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike R B & 1/1
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Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and Removal

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years subject to the provision
of retirement and rotation of Directors under the Articles and the

provision under the service contract.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on the date of his appointment subject to the provision
of retirement and rotation of Directors under the Articles and the

provision under the letter of appointment.

The Articles provide that each Director is subject to retirement
from office by rotation and re-election once every three years and
that one-third (or the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
of the Directors shall retire from office every year at the annual
general meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting after
his appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting while
any Director appointed by the Board as additional Director shall be
subject to re-election at the next following annual general meeting.

Directors’ training and Professional Development

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a Director and of
the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.
Every newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction package covering the statutory and regulatory
obligations of Directors, organizational structure, policies,
procedures and codes of the Company, terms of reference of board
committees and charter of responsibilities of internal audit. The
Directors are encouraged to attend seminars and conferences to
enrich their knowledge in discharging their duties as a director. The
Company Secretary from time to time updates and provides written
training materials to the Directors, and organizes seminars on the
latest development of the Listing Rules, applicable laws, rules and
regulations relating to Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

TRERBE

ESNERE EERER
WTEECRAEARRAFLRBAN B
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BEEERAIERFERETNRENARAEAR
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TRERBE

The Company Secretary maintains records of trainings received by
the Directors. The trainings received by the current Directors during

FY2021 are as follows:

NEAWEBFESEIBINLE - 12021
PRFE BEEFEXEINBERAT

Training

Matters™oe

Name of Directors EENA $ 8| =g
Executive Directors PITEE

Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen
(Managing Director)

Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick

Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael

Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix

Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP

Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald SBS JP

Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike

Note: A. Corporate governance

B. Regulatory updates
C. Directors’” Duties
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Directors’ and officers’ Liabilities Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liabilities insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Company.

CODES FOR DEALING IN THE COMPANY’S

SECURITIES
The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code for

dealings in the Company’s securities by the Directors.

Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, the Company
confirmed that the Directors have complied with the Model Code
during FY2021.

Relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of inside
information of the Group are also subject to compliance with the
Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by Employees on terms
that are no less exacting than those set out in the Model Code.
To the best knowledge of the Company, there was no incident of
non-compliance of the Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions
by Employees during FY2021.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established its Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference, which is available at the Company’s
website at www.ump.com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s website at

www.hkexnews.hk.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing such remuneration policies. In arriving at its
recommendations to the Board, the Remuneration Committee
will consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group. The Committee either determines or makes
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration package of
individual executive Directors and senior management, and it also
makes recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee meets at least
twice a year and is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties.

TEEL®ME

EERERABEER
ARFEAEERAAABMA BRIREE
MEEREBAREER -

BEEARARESHNTA
ARRERBEETUEAEEEEAAA
BEHETFA -

KH2EEREHLETENE  ARAER
ZEEER2021 B FEETIZAESTA -

ARENMEAEEANEBEEMNBHEES NE
BT RERBETESFIHMIETER - HER
B PMZAESFAIFTETIZ A - AR BIFTAN -
2 BFETEHNRERRBEETESR
SRR TERIMIBER o

EEeBETZEE

FMEES
RAREKMFINE B &30 6l F £ EmBE
EE - AR R (www.ump.com.hk) &
Bt 22 BT 48 0 (www . hkexnews.hk) 2| & -

FMEZESAERARFAEREZTRERE
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The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three members,
including two independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Li
Kwok Tung, Donald SBS JP and Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike, and an
executive Director, namely Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick. Dr. Li Kwok
Tung, Donald SBS JP serves as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The composition of the Remuneration Committee meets
the requirements of chairmanship and independence of the Listing

Rules.

During FY2021, the Remuneration Committee had performed the

following works:

. determined and reviewed the remuneration policy of the

executive Directors;
. assessed the performance of executive Directors; and
. made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration

packages (including the granting of share options and

share awards) of individual executive Directors and senior

FHZESR M=K EAKR  BEMEE
VIHTESFTEREL (REFEE  LF
ML) RIGRERERATESTELRERLE -
TERBE (REHEE X FHL)EETH
MEEETF -FMZBEEMARTA LD
MBI EEMNIBILIERRTE ©

R2021BM B E - HFEESERBITUT S
7% -

o FIEUBRBPITEFAFBIEEK

o FHERTESEHRE R

o BENRTEERSREZEABNZH
FB(BEREETERENREZRRD) ME

EERRES -

management.
The attendance records of the committee members to committee ZEENKEBHELZESLRNLHEHIIWT
meeting(s) are set out below:

Meeting(s)
Attended/Held
HE BT
Remuneration Committee Members FHMEESHRE =E P8

Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald SBS JP (Chairman) FERE
(REHFIEE » X F#HL)(F/E) 2/2
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike BT L 2/2
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick BRESRE 2/2

Details of Directors’ emoluments for the year are disclosed in note 9

to the consolidated financial statements.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established its Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference, which is available at the Company’s
website at www.ump.com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s website at

www.hkexnews.hk.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for regularly reviewing
the structure, size and diversity of the Board and making
recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy. Its duties include
making recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships, the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors,
reviewing the leadership needs of the Company to ensure the
continued ability of the Company to compete effectively. The
Committee is also responsible for assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors and reviewing their annual
confirmations on independence. The Nomination Committee meets
at least once a year and is provided with sufficient resources to
perform its duties.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members,
including two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee
Luen Wai, John BBS /P and Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald $SBS /P, and
an executive Director, namely Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong. Dr. Sun Yiu
Kwong serves as the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The
composition of the Nomination Committee meets the requirements
of chairmanship and independence of the Listing Rules.

During FY2021, the Nomination Committee had performed the

following works:

. reviewed the current structure, size and composition of the
Board;
e assessed the independence of independent non-executive

Directors; and

. reviewed the time commitment of the Directors.

TRERBE
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The Board adopted the policy of the nomination of Directors in EZE®R2018F12 ARMRESIRZHE (£
December 2018 (the “Director Nomination Policy”). Pursuant to ZEZREHKEK]) - BEEZREHE £
the Director Nomination Policy, the nomination committee of the ENRZEZESANEESRA[BEA AEHE
Board shall nominate suitable candidates to the Board for it to HZEE  WHRAQARBRRAG LBBENE
consider and make recommendations to Shareholders for election TEZLEHEHERAIEAREST TN
as directors at general meetings of the Company or to appoint as MR EIELEEREZR - FHBL2HARQF
Directors to fill casual vacancies or as an addition to the existing  #8hwww.ump.com.hk °

Board, for details of which, please refer to the Company’s website at

www.ump.com.hk.

During the year, the Board reviewed the overall contribution and F KX EFCEEHRTEETHAQAME
service to the Company, expertise and professional qualifications of BEERERH  HENEXNEREEE
the retiring Directors and recommended them to be re-elected at the 1§ + WEFHR B FR AR BRI EERFBF K

Company’s forthcoming annual general meeting. o FERET -
The attendance records of the committee members to committee ZEE@KEHFEELZES@HENLEEIWT :
meeting(s) are set out below:
Meeting(s)
Attended/Held
HE BT
Nomination Committee Members REZEERE BERY
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong (Chairman) BT, () 11
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP MBS E (KA EE - X F#HT) 1/1
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald SBS /P FTERBLE (REHEE X FHL) 11
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Audit Committee

The Company has established its Audit Committee with written
terms of reference, which is available at the Company’s website
at www.ump.com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s website at

www.hkexnews.hk.

The Audit Committee reports to the Board and holds regular
meetings to assist the Board in discharging its responsibilities
for effective financial reporting controls, internal controls and
risk management. The Committee monitors the integrity of the
Company’s financial statements, annual report and accounts
and half-year report and reviews significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them. It reviews, makes recommendations
and reports to the Board on findings relating to the financial
statements, reports and accounts, systems of internal control and
risk management and compliance issues on an annual basis. The
Audit Committee also oversees the Company’s relationship with
the external auditor, reviews auditor’s letter of engagement and
makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment and re-
appointment of external auditor. It is empowered to review and
monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards. It reviews external auditor’'s management letter and any
material queries raised by the auditor to the management and the
management’s response. The Committee meets at least twice a year
and is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to discharge its

duties.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, all of
whom are independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee
Luen Wai, John BBS JP, Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald SBS /P and
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike. Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP serves
as the chairman of the Audit Committee. The composition of the
Audit Committee meets the requirements of chairmanship and
independence of the Listing Rules.

TRERBE

EREES
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o

BEEITIATE

\

During FY2021, the Audit Committee had performed the following 20218 BFE « BixE
works: 7%

reviewed the interim and annual financial statements and

made recommendation to the Board;

reviewed the annual caps on continuing connected

transactions of the Company;

reviewed the remuneration, terms of engagement and the
independence of the external auditor and considered the re-
appointment of the external auditor;

reviewed the arrangements for raising concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other

matters;

reviewed the Group’s financial controls, risk management and
internal control systems and the effectiveness, adequacy of

resources and competency; and

e EHTHIFEMBRRIANEFTSR

R

s RUARAFEFEIFFELR:

o RITINERBEINFH - RRGREE
S W E BB IMNSRZ B

e MNBEMMEHER AMEEAEMLE
HR AR EAETNEETRAIRE I
R

s RENARENMBEE - AREENA
MEERGURBEYRE BRERMER
N R

ZENRBRHRE HelERAWE -

o considered and reviewed the Environmental, Social and

Governance Report.

The attendance records of the committee members to committee ZEE@KEHFEEZE@HEMLEEIWT :

meeting(s) are set out below:

Meeting(s)

Attended/Held

HE BT

Audit Committee Members EREEEHE BRRE
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP (Chairman) FHERE

(HEHFEZE - XFHH1L)(FE) 2/2

Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald SBS JP FTERBLE (REHEE X FHL) 2/2

Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike BT L 2/2
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements which should give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the financial performance and cash flows
for such reporting period. In preparing the financial statements,
the Board has adopted generally accepted accounting standards
in Hong Kong and suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair
and reasonable, and prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis. The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Group
keeps proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable

accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt over the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Board has continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing

the financial statements.

The auditor is responsible for auditing and reporting its opinion on
the financial statements of the Group and the independent auditor’s
report for FY2021 is set out in the section headed “Independent
Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledged its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and overseeing their effectiveness.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement

or loss.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk management
procedures and guidelines with defined authority for implementation
by key business processes and office functions, including clinic
chain operations, business development, financial reporting, human
resources, information technology and handling and dissemination
of inside information.
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All departments conducted internal control assessment regularly to
identify risks that potentially impact the business of the Group and
various aspects including key operational and financial processes,

regulatory compliance and information security.

The management, in coordination with department heads, assessed
the likelihood of risk occurrence, provide treatment plans, and
monitor the risk management progress, and reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board on all findings and the effectiveness of the

systems.

The internal audit team is responsible for providing the internal audit
function and performing independent review of the adequacy and

effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems.

The key elements of the Group’s risk management and internal

control structure are as follows:

o well-defined organizational structure with appropriate
segregation of duties, limit of authority, reporting lines and
responsibilities to minimize risk of errors and abuse;

o establish written policies and procedures for major functions
and operations;

o important business functions or activities are managed by
experienced, qualified and suitably trained staff;

. continuous monitoring of the key operating data and
performance indicators, timely and up-to-date business and
financial reporting, immediate corrective actions are taken

where necessary; and

o internal audit function to perform independent appraisal of
major operations on an ongoing basis.
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A risk-based approach is adopted to ensure that a methodical
coverage of the Group’s operations and resources are focused on
high risk areas. The internal audit team takes the lead to evaluate
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group
by reviewing the major operations of the Group on a rotational
basis every year. The review covers all material controls including

financial, operational, compliance controls and risk management.

Review results and recommendations in the form of written reports
are submitted to the Audit Committee for discussion and review.
Follow up actions will be taken up by the internal audit team
to ensure that findings previously identified have been properly
resolved. The Board had discussed and reviewed the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems for the
FY2021, and considered them effective and adequate.

The Company also established a procedure to facilitate employees
of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters

of the Company.

During FY2021, the Board, in conjunction with the Audit
Committee, conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Company and its subsidiaries, including the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting function. The Board considered that the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems for FY2021
was effective and adequate and no significant areas of concern has
been identified.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided to
the Company and its subsidiaries by the external auditor of the
Company for FY2021 are set out below:

P B0 B BN

K202V B - AR RSB R M A A
B ELH B 2 R AR (AR M 3E 4 R 75 10
EMFIWMT :

HK$’000

FHET

Audit service % EUR S 1,780
Non-audit services IERZEUR TS 670
2,450

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary General Meeting

Article 58 of the Articles of the Company provides that any one or
more members of the Company holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

A Shareholder may lodge a notice of his intention to propose
any person (other than himself/herself) for election as a Director
together with a notice signed by the person to be proposed of his/
her willingness to be elected to the head office of the Company
or at the registration office where the branch register of members
of the Company is kept provided that the minimum length of the
period, during which such notice(s) are given shall be at least 7
days and that (if the notices are submitted after the despatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election) the
period for lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence on the day
after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such

general meeting.

Other than the above concerning a proposal of a person for election
as a Director, there are no provisions in the Articles of Association
or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for putting forward
proposals of new resolutions by Shareholders at general meetings.
Shareholders may follow the procedures set out above to convene
an extraordinary general meeting for any business specified in such

written requisition.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not
normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned

above to the following:

Address: 27th Floor
Wing On House
71 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2511 1152

Email: ir@ump.com.hk
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For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by

law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain good
communication with Shareholders and in particular, through its
annual general meeting and other extraordinary general meetings.
At the annual general meeting, Directors (or their delegates as
appropriate) are available to meet Shareholders and answer their
enquiries. The Directors, Company Secretary or appropriate
members of senior management, where appropriate, also respond to

inquiries from Shareholders and investors on a timely basis.

Under the Listing Rules, all resolutions proposed at Shareholders’
meetings must be voted by poll except where the chairman of
a general meeting, in good faith and in compliance with the
Listing Rules, decides to allow resolutions to be voted on by the
Shareholders on a show of hands. Details of the poll procedures
will be explained during the proceedings of Shareholders’ meetings.
The poll voting results will be released and posted on the websites
of the Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company at

www.ump.com.hk.

To provide effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at www.ump.com.hk. All the financial information and other
disclosures including, inter alia, annual reports, interim reports,
announcements and Articles are available under the section of
“Investor Relations” on the Company’s website.
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Shareholders can direct their questions about their shareholdings
to the Company’s Share Registrars. To the extent the requisite
information of the Company is publicly available, Shareholders
and the investment community may at any time make a request
for such information. Designated contacts, email addresses and
enquiry lines of the Company have been provided in the “Corporate
Information” section of this annual report to enable the Shareholders
and the investment community to make any enquiry in respect of the
Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During FY2021, the Company has not made any changes to its

memorandum and Articles of Association.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE - HERERHBE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Overview

This Environmental, Social and Governance (‘ESG’) Report of UMP
Healthcare Group provides an overview of the material ESG issues
we have identified and the related practices that help us drive
sustainable development. We are committed to engaging with our
key stakeholders and complying with applicable regulations and
guidelines on ESG matters. The reporting year of our ESG Report is
aligned with our financial year.

Reporting scope

This report covers UMP’s ESG management approach and
performance for the period from 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2021.
Unless otherwise specified, the contents and metrics reported cover

our operations in Hong Kong'.

Reporting standard

This ESG Report was prepared according to the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix
27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. It is reported in compliance
with the “comply or explain” provisions and with reference to
the “recommended disclosures” of the ESG Reporting Guide. For
more information relating to the Group’s business and its corporate
governance practices, please refer to the Corporate Governance
section in this Annual Report.
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! Environmental data only covers our operations in Hong Kong as the relevant figures for our operations in Mainland China and Macau

are considered relatively insignificant to the Group.
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In the preparation of this ESG Report, the Group follows the four

reporting principles as set out in the ESG Reporting Guide:

Reporting principles

BE ¥ R Al

Materiality
EEH

Quantitative

Bt

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HERE

AWE

REWEARE HEREARSEK  A&E

MRS -
HEREA -

Balance

P4

HERERMERESTEINM

Consistency

— Bt

Application

in this ESG
Report

RAERE - HER
ERBEPNER

Material
environmental
and social issues
were identified and
prioritised with
inputs from internal
and external
stakeholders of the
Group, and are
disclosed in this
ESG Report.
PR &R B A B R SED
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The Group accounts
for and discloses
KPIs in quantitative
terms for proper
evaluation of the
effectiveness of

ESG policies and
actions.
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This ESG Report
aims to disclose
data in an objective
way, which

aims to provide
stakeholders

with a balanced
overview of the
Group’s overall ESG
performances.
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B mARNnER
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The Group

adopts consistent
measurement
methodology to
achieve meaningful
comparison of ESG
performances over
time whenever
practicable. Any
updates in the
methods or KPIs used
will be disclosed.
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Sources of data and assurance to reliability
The data reported in this ESG Report was prepared based on our

internal statistical reports,

internal policies, and other internal

documents. The Board hereby confirms that, to the best knowledge

and belief, no false or misleading statements have been made in this

ESG Report.

Board approval

The board of directors (the “Board”) is responsible for overseeing

the statutory compliance, stakeholder engagement, ESG performance

and risk management. The approval of this ESG report from the

Board was obtained on 23 September 2021.
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OUR COMPANY

UMP is a leading medical and healthcare solution provider in Hong
Kong and Macau. The Group offers a wide range of healthcare
services suited for diverse individual needs, and also partners
with corporate and insurance companies to administer customised
corporate healthcare benefit plans for their members. In recent
years, UMP has been establishing joint-ventured medical centres
with local health service partners in major Chinese cities, as well
as providing family doctor trainings. The UMP network has served
over 1.12 million clinic visits in FY2021, and currently encompasses
more than 1,100 self-owned and affiliated medical service points
across Hong Kong, Macau, Tianjin, Shanghai, as well as major cities
in the Greater Bay Area such as Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Zhuhai,
Zhongshan, Dongguan and Foshan.

The Group has been dedicated to providing trusted and affordable
services since its inception in 1990. We strive to act with integrity
and maintain a high standard of professional practice. UMP aligns
operations and services with ESG management principles of
sustainable development and ensure ESG fairs and effectively and
responsibly handled. We recognise ESG matters as an important part
of our business strategy and the journey to our sustainable growth.
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MANAGEMENT OF ESG ASPECTS

ESG risk management is key to ensuring sustainable growth of our
business. The Board holds ultimate responsibility for assessing and
determining our ESG-related risks and ensuring that our ESG risk
management and internal control systems are suitable and effective.

The Group has established a ESG working group to assist the Board
of Directors in supervising ESG-related matters and to incorporate
ESG considerations into day-to-day operations. Our ESG working
group is tasked with allocating resources to enhance our ESG
management. The working group led by the senior management
is comprised of various departments that support different ESG
issues, including the clinic chain management team, finance team,
human resources team, legal & compliance team, and third-party
administration team. The working group meets twice a year to
discuss ESG related roles and responsibilities, ensure new ESG
requirements and policies are being adhered to, and oversee the
Group’s data collection tools. The working group report to the Board
on the progress of implementation and take their suggestions.

Our commitment to environmental protection, community service,
upholding decent labour practices, maintaining occupational health
and safety, protecting patients’ rights, and responsible procurement
is outlined in our Corporate Social Responsibility policy (‘CSR
policy’). All staff are expected to comply with our CSR policy.
We also have measures in place to monitor the quality of services
delivered by our affiliated practitioners to our customers.

Compliance with ESG related regulations

UMP’s business operations strictly comply with the relevant
extensive laws and regulations, which include the registration
and licensing of clinics, processing of radioactive substances and
apparatuses, clinical waste treatment, marketing and promotion of
healthcare products and services, possession and distribution of

drugs, and the protection of customer and patient privacy.

The Group has established internal policies and systems to ensure
compliance with these relevant laws and regulations. Standard
written procedures guide our staff and medical/dental practitioners,
while training and development programmes are also provided to
staff to keep them updated on recent developments in compliance

matters.

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

- HEREREBE

RE -#HESRERIFEANER
RIE - HEgRERNEREESHEERET X
BAREEENBER ESHNTHRE
EREBRE g RER/NER - U RER
RIE HEgRERRAREERANBEIZRR
BEEREMBERKEE-

AEBKRIRE HEREARAIENE  #B
PDEZSEERR HehERHEBEER "
YRR HELREAZEEERZMAATE
EoRE g REATHENENTIHED
RERANMBRE HEREREE -BAS
RERERENTHENMEBXIHIRERE
HeRELREENTEMPIENK  RIEEK
RLERERK - BEEE - ANBRER
EREAREFRE=ZTEEEK - TE/)
HEBEFARAMAEE  TwHEARE Hek
E/ME?A%”J%@&AE FEORFTHYIRIR 4L
RERERNBERFEET YEBELAE
IE’U%(TJ%H&Z%IE c TENEREESER
THERER URNEZTSNESR -

B EHeEIBRR([CELSE IR

R ABHBEMYFREFRE  QELE 18
TERBETIER #FBREREEZE 4

ERERMNEAREERBENAG 2RET
HRETEELEEEREK - AT KR
it NERBEERCEABRATPREH
RIFWER -

BFRE HEREAR/EBER
BEBBNEBLEERTAERBERLR
Bl BIERDAEMEER B EDE &
ECDHEEVER BEREBEMERS
BHNEE ZVEBERDHE UERREER
PEBEME -

B

AREEC BT AR R R 5
HEZERERA - %ZTF?LM?
BIRBE TBEMHRES
% {8 uaﬂ\&ﬁf}?&%&'
EENRHMER -

C AREARE T
HEEIR T A
IR B TR
EMMZEFHEGR

2021F% » BMEBBKEERRAA

65



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RG> HERERRE

Stakeholder engagement BEhEZH

We value the trust and support of our stakeholders and strive to FKFIERFTHENETRIE  MOHSEK
align our business practices with their needs and expectations to FHREEMEFNENTERIPE - EMiKEH
drive the sustainable development of the Group. We have engaged ZASBHAFEEE - HAOETRMEERZHE
key stakeholders throughout various points to discuss and review EZ#HHHESH - AT MR ARIE - &

topics related to this ESG Report. gRERABEHERMEE -
Stakeholders Engagement
B0 E BARFR
Government and . Respond to inquiries with government department
regulatory authorities [l /& B B P & 5
IEQ/SPNE R 2
Investors J Issue timely announcements and circulars
REE BT RS M
o Convene regular shareholder meetings
EHARREAE
J Public financial and ESG reports
TIEFBRRE HEREARSE
Employees e  Training and employee-caring activities
(= B NBEERREEES
o Grievance mechanism
FR &% 14 1l
. Company intranet
X A P B A
Customers o UMP Service Point app
5P UMPJik 75 % & F3 72 5\
. Customer hotline
BEERR
J Feedback surveys
BERAE
Suppliers and contractors o Supplier rating system
HEmRARE HEEFRER
J Regular communication
EHER
Community . Cooperation with social enterprises
= it EhEEE
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Materiality assessment

In FY2020, we conducted a stakeholder engagement survey to
identify stakeholder opinions and concerns regarding our business
and sustainable development. Based on last year’s survey results and
with reference to global sustainability trends, peer benchmarking
and reporting standards, a list of 10 sustainability issues have
been identified as material for the Group’s internal and external
stakeholders in FY2021.

Material topics of the Group

Hazardous Waste Management
Employee relations

Occupational Health and Safety
Labour Standards

Supply Chain Management
Customer satisfaction

Service quality & safety

Patients data protection and privacy

Anti-corruption

Business integrity
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OUR SERVICES

UMP recognises the importance of our role in safeguarding
community health and take pride in our service quality and patient
satisfaction.

The Group has established a Quality Assurance and Safety
Committee which is responsible for monitoring the performance of
our clinics and providing advice on professional standards, clinical
governance, clinical risk, and continuous professional development
of clinical and professional services. It also develops policies and
procedures concerning the healthcare and medical services of the
Group. The Committee consists of medical practitioners and senior

management.

During FY2021, there have been no instances of non-compliance

related to our products and service quality.
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Clinic hygiene and infection control

Maintaining environmental hygiene in our medical centres is our
overriding priority. Good ventilation and lighting systems ensure a
healthy and comfortable clinical environment. We procure personal
protective equipment (‘PPE’) from global sources to maintain
sufficient stock across our clinic chains and also equip clinic with
special suction apparatus to reduce aerosols in the air. To prevent
the transmission of disease within clinics we have patient triage
and placement procedures and also implement strict sterilisation
of reusable medical equipment. We ensure that sufficient sanitary
and hand-washing facilities are available to all patients and staff.
The clinics display posters of good cough etiquette and hand
hygiene tips to act as reminders for all, and we train our clinic staff
on clinical infection control to improve knowledge on epidemic
diseases and further limit the risk of transmissible disease. Proper
handling of clinic-generated waste is also a measure to control
infection. This is further detailed in the “waste treatment” section.
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Case study: Guidelines on COVID-19 prevention, reporting and
handling procedures

UMP has developed guidelines on infection control and prevention
for clinic staff to reduce the risk of spreading and contracting
COVID-19. Practical measures are in place to enhance personal
and workplace hygiene and safety. For instance, maintaining good
ventilation, disinfecting commonly used equipment, providing
hand soap in toilets, and regularly checking body temperature
protect both our clinic staff and patients. We advise staff to
stagger their meal times and maintain a 1.5 metre distance when
having meals. The Group also provides surgical masks and other

protective equipment as necessary to frontline staff.

BRWE : BRFETRHESHOERL - &
EMEERFHNER

e BB ARDME THIR] T RAZES A
Bt al Lxxmfﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁfaﬁﬂ{%%ﬂ@
ZRE R o FAPIE BRERY)E AT 1T B 48 b LA AN
BIEARTIESAOEERRZE - film -
RERFBER HERRBETHES R
RIFTHREE TR - WE B ER - R
EDBENBE - RMEABTHMAM
FERTTE - MAERREF5KIERE - XEE TR
RAARE TR AEREAM B EN

27 [}
=M e

Patient relationship management

Listening to our patients’ needs and concerns guides our professional
and quality services. The Group engages with patients to build
stronger relationships through established communication platforms,
primarily our mobile app UMP AR#5E. The app gives customers
access to the latest information on doctor availability, the range
of healthcare services offered, and the location and operation
hours of our medical centres. Patients can communicate feedback
or suggestions through our hotline and website. Any complaints
launched about medical practice are handled by our Healthcare
Relations Department and are investigated thoroughly in an

impartial manner.
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Safeguarding patients’ rights and their privacy

The Group is committed to welcoming patients regardless of their
different backgrounds. We have a strict no tolerance policy on
discrimination of age, race, sex, marital status, pregnancy, disability,

or any other characteristic protected by anti-discrimination laws.

UMP maintains a positive and open relationship during the entire
healthcare process to protect and promote patients’ rights. We
guarantee the confidentiality of patients’ medical status and respect

all decisions to accept or refuse medication or treatment.

The Group complies with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
regarding the collection, retention, handling, disclosure and use
of personal data including medical history. To avoid information
leakage to unauthorised third parties, we have an effective data
storage system in place that regularly monitors and evaluates the
risk of improper use of information. Our Employee Handbook
stipulates that staff may only access confidential information on a
need-to-know basis, and are expected to follow the procedures in
place when handling printed and electronic documents related to
personal data. To further safeguard the protection of confidential
patient information, UMP provides trainings on Personal Data
Privacy to guide staff in upholding their responsibilities on privacy
matters.

Professional practitioners

To promote and safeguard the quality of healthcare services, all
medical practitioners engaged by UMP have valid and subsisting
practical certificates and qualifications to provide medical services
and handle drug and pharmacy matters. All doctors, dentists and
certain auxiliary service providers are required to comply with the

applicable code of professional conduct or discipline.
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We identify qualified and suitable practitioners to join our network
through a deliberated process to ensure all practitioners are
competent in providing quality healthcare services. Our recruitment
process for doctors is involving more than one Senior Executives
in UMP in order to secure a fair and objective selection decision
to select qualified and capable doctors. Human Resources Director
will review the doctor candidate’s background through the resume
followed by a video meeting or face-to-face meeting. Suitable
candidate will then be interviewed by Managing Director and
General Manager. The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer will
also be involved before the decision of hiring is made. Professional
qualification and certificates will be collected for future reference.

UMP also provides necessary resources in supporting practitioners
to enhance their skills and knowledge. A dedicated team conducts
regular clinical visits to engage with our affiliated practitioners.
Senior management periodically reviews policies on selection,
remuneration and training to ensure that clinical care is delivered
according to industry standards and contributing to the sustainable
development of the Group’s business.

Supply chain management

UMP procures medicine and medical equipment from
pharmaceutical companies and suppliers of medical consumables
that are qualified under the applicable laws and regulation.
Our Procurement Policy sets a framework for all procurement
related activities in the Group, which is supplemented by specific

procedures as necessary for different business units.

The Procurement and Supplier Management processes aim
to continuously improve both supplier performance and the
relationship between suppliers and UMP, facilitating the long-term
business development of UMP. Suppliers are rated according to
their performance based on criteria including the quality of goods,
delivery time, brand reputation, and environmental and social
factors. A list of preferred suppliers is maintained so preferred
suppliers are engaged when procuring a particular good or service.
The Group aims to foster constructive relationships with suppliers
through encouraging feedback from the supplier to reflect progress
along the procurement process. The preferred supplier list is
assessed at least biennially to ensure supplier development meets
the UMP procurement standard.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

BRETEENRFAYEEERESH
BEEEABMARMNMEE LHERERZE
BEUEZEABOBIRAEENERRFRRR
%o MM BEEREBIES R — R EHR
EEBERERAR  URARBEREAT
B BHAEREBENELE - ANER
REFRBNEEEBLMREANSESR  #
METHREEFXEA - RK - AENKRE
ABRESTHLERBEEETHEM - TF
RITHRAETNG2ERED  REBREEE
B ZAKRREEERREE IR
HERSE -

BaBBETREBEERMEBELRA
BREXEENAH - RANEEESKE R
SRR BERNEEABRRR  aRER
B Hma AREUE « 3 RIE I EER
ARERIZIRIT R AR IR IR R 12 - WIRE
AEBEBOABEER -

ftrEEER
BEBBRARBERERZILERNAERE
BRmRBEREREMHERREEY R BE
B RPNERBRRAAEENMARSE
MEESHIEER  WRE TR EREMLH
FE BEBEFIMAME -

KEMENEEEFEEEDHERNE
BRHERERABB 2 HNBETEH X
# REBABBNRERHER -HER
MERBLIREEmmE  XNER - mE2
BURRBELEHEREFHEB MAFH - M
BEAERERRE REBRTNEDX
REEZEHEEMER AKEEBBIE
HEMRHEREARRRBERETNER
et EmET ARRENAIERE - &
EHERREZLEMFNME IR LR
HEANERTAMABHENRBRE -



ENVIRONMENTAL,

A centralised procurement system is used for the ordering and
distribution of medical supplies to individual UMP Medical Centres,
while UMP Medical Centres are responsible for maintaining their
own drug and medical consumable inventory. This system enhances
the effective control on the quality and costs of procurement while
also mitigating risks of corruption and bribery.

Number of suppliers by geographical region

ZES S WEEREE
Hong Kong No.
B 2 H
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BUSINESS ETHICS

The Group strives to maintain high ethical standards and work
closely with our employees to uphold our strong ethical values.

UMP does not tolerate any form of corruption. Our Staff Handbook
contains guidelines that establish the expectations for our employees
regarding gifts from suppliers and clients. To avoid any conflict
of interest we recommend employees to either return gifts with a
written explanation, donate the gift to charity through the Group,
or keep the gift and donate a sum of equal market value to charity.
If deemed necessary, we will require employees to report instances
to their supervisors and the Human Resources and Administration
department.

Openness, accountability, and transparency are esteemed values of
the Group. The Group has a Whistleblowing Policy in place as part
of the internal risk management system. If inappropriate behaviour
or a violation of UMP’s Code of Conduct is observed, employees
can file a written report directly to the Head of Human Resources

and Administration department, General Manager, or the Chairman.

There have been no legal cases regarding corruption brought against

the Group or our employees in this reporting year.
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OUR EMPLOYEES EMHES
Social KPIs FY2021
HEHERARER 2021 BEE
Number of employees
BEAH
Total number of employees No. 682
BEAR A
Number of employees by employment type
BEEBEAEINES AY
Full-time No. 495
s A
Part-time No. 187
BB 2R
Number of employees by gender
BUERESNEEAR
Male No. 140
S A
Female No. 542
oy 2B
Number of employees by age group
BERMARE D WES AR
Below 30 No. 233
3058 A T A
30 - 40 No. 238
307% — 405% LS
41 - 50 No. 101
415% - 505% 2B
Above 50 No. 110
505% A £ A
Number of employees by employment category
BRERERNE S NES AR
Chief level executives No. 2
BEMITBAR 2R
Senior management No. 17
SREBAR A
Middle management No. 49
PEEEAE A
General staff No. 614
—RET A
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Social KPIs FY2021

HEREBENEE 20218 BUFE

Number of employees by geographical region

BtEESNWEEAR

Hong Kong No. 512
&8 A

Mainland China No. 164
B 2B

Macau No. 6
JBRFT A

Turnover

BERXLER

Total number of resigned employees No. 233
EEHERNEE A 21 B

Number of employees turnover by gender

BRI D I EE R A AR

Male No. 43
B A

Female No. 190
ik A

Employee’s turnover rate by gender

BEHRE D NWEERAR

Male % 31%
St

Female % 35%
e

Number of employees turnover by age group

BRERADNEINEEREAH

Below 30 No. 104
308 A T B

30 - 40 No. 79
305% — 405% A

41 - 50 No. 29
415% — 505% %A

Above 50 No. 21
508 A 2B
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Social KPIs FY2021

HEREBENEE 20218 BUFEE

Employee’s turnover rate by age group

BERARNE T WESRAR

Below 30 % 45%
305 A T

30 - 40 % 33%
308% — 408%

41 - 50 % 29%
418% — 508%

Above 50 % 19%
508% A F

Number of employees turnover by geographical region

B EE D WEERA AR

Hong Kong No. 179
B A
Mainland China No. 53
B A 3 #H B
Macau No. 1
B FY Qe

Employee’s turnover rate by geographical region
ZEB S NWEESRAE

Hong Kong % 35%
FB
Mainland China % 32%
B A i

Macau % 17%
JEPY
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Employee benefits and welfare

UMP has established human resources management policies and
procedures to ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations.
The relevant laws and regulations include the Employment
Ordinance, the Sex Discrimination Ordinance, the Disability
Discrimination Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong and the Labour
Law of the PRC and the Labour Contract Law of the PRC. Our
Staff Handbook includes detailed rules and guidelines that lay out
our expectations for employee conduct as well as the rights and

responsibilities of staff in the workplace.

We hope to foster a positive work culture and create an environment
that enhances the well-being of staff. The Group respects staff
opinions and encourages staff from all departments and ranks to
express their views on improving internal communication and work

efficiency through various communication platforms.

UMP staff benefits include comprehensive medical insurance,
employment compensation insurance, directors’ and officers’
liability insurance and mandatory provident fund to employees.
Our employees are also entitled to annual leave, maternity
leave, paternity leave, marriage leave and examination leave. As
a healthcare service provider, we recognise the importance of
ensuring staff wellbeing and have clear policies to outline overtime
working arrangements. We strive to find creative ways in promoting
healthy career development and enhancing a unified spirit across
the Group.

Development and training

UMP is dedicated to supporting the career development of Group
employees. We provide professional support to ensure employees
can effectively manage and administer the Group’s operations. Aside
from mandatory orientation training, the Group provides Education
Sponsorship for clinical staff to receive additional external training
relevant to their duties. These may include training on administering
injections, practice on collecting blood tests, pharmaceutical
dispensing, and other skills and knowledge related to their duties.
This sponsorship programme that aims to enhance the working
capabilities of UMP employees and their individual development is

open to nursing staff and other clinical support staff.
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UMP has a policy to encourage the internal transfer of employees
to broaden their exposure and provide opportunities for career
advancement within the Group. This gives staff the chance to pursue
development in other streams within the Group, while also enabling
us to deploy employees to areas where they can best contribute to
our services. We ensure that all staff have equal opportunities to
transfer to different posts, and that the purpose of internal transfer is
solely for career development or operational reasons.

We offer competitive remuneration and performance incentives as
motivation for employees to collectively pursue UMP’s goals. These

include a share options scheme and share awards scheme.

BeBBITARK  BRENANIHED
NBATEEEHEE  TIRHASERNN
SXURKE ELHRETIAREHELSE
BMAmEMEBPrIS RER - R REEFIE
WK EEAREERABEFAELRETRD
B RMBRABEETIHEEAEELTR
RMAUNFERE MABABNENTER
ENFXBERULERA -

HMREARFIOME RAERER 81
BT B R BT 8 LHESEEBRR
DB NERBEBHENAR -

Training

=l

Number of trained employees No. 411
XllfEE A8 2 A

Number of trained employees by gender

EHRE S NZIEE AR

Male No. 84
St 2B

Female No. 327
oy A

Percentage of trained employees by gender

BERESNZIEREE DL

Male % 60.0%
EeRid

Female % 60.3%
oy

Number of trained employees by employee category

BESEANETNIZIES AR

Chief level executives No. 1
BREMITBAR 2 A

Senior management No. 18
SEEEAR 2 A

Middle management No. 47
FEEEAER %A

General staff No. 345
—RET 2 A
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Training
523
Percentage of trained employees by employee category
RESERNEBINZIEERTS L
Chief level executives Yo 50%
BEFERITHRAR
Senior management % 100%
BEEEAR
Middle management % 96%
TEEEAE
General staff % 56%
—MEBT
Average training hours by employee category
BEESER DK T2 B
Chief level executives Hours 0.5
BERTHBAE N
Senior management Hours 4.5
BEBTEAB N
Middle management Hours 22.9
TEEEASR N
General staff Hours 5.5
—MET i

Health and safety at workplace THESHFNRERZ2

UMP highly prioritises safeguarding the health and safety of
employees and patients. In pursuit of this, health and safety
strategies are integrated into our business operations and activities to
minimise safety hazards.

Infection control is strongly emphasised in every clinic, with
personal protective and preventive equipment in place. These
include hand-washing facilities, adequate surgical masks as well as
sharp disposal containers. We educate our clinical staff on health
and safety instructions and encourage them to be proactive in
raising awareness of infection control and reporting potential disease
outbreak to the clinic-in-charge.

BEBEREERRERENBENRER
ZEe Rt RAKREEZT 2RERAX
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We ensure staff are aware of unsafe medical procedures and
mandate that special medical equipment such as irradiating
apparatus are only operated by certified staff. Clinical staff undergo
regular trainings on the safe and proper use of medical equipment.
General office safety and housekeeping rules are also mandated for
all employees.

During FY2021, the Group strictly complied with all relevant laws
and regulations on occupational health and safety, including but not
limited to Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance and the laws
of the PRC on prevention and control of occupational diseases.

Health and Safety

RERZZ

HMERETIBE T REBREFNER
RTERESSHEARBERBEIHERE
BTHRIF - PHABETEMREILZE RIEEE
REERENE) - 2RBEENTAERE K
MAEZ2RTERBRA -

K221 RFE - AEBEEBERETHAEA
RBERERLZEHERRER  BHEEAR
R EZ 2 RREGDD RHEBRKE
B EED o

Number of work-related fatalities No. 0
AT AR LSS
Number of lost days due to work injury Days 0
AIBEERXIEAH R

OUR ENVIRONMENT

The Group recognises and takes responsibility for the environmental
impact of our operations by incorporating our commitment to
environmental protection and conservation of resources into our
Corporate Social Responsibility policy. While maintaining the
reliability of services and the highest standard of hygiene is of our
utmost priority, our policy also stipulates strict compliance with
requirements of applicable environmental laws and standards;
to actively minimise the environmental impact of our operations
through energy saving, waste reduction and recycling; and, raising
employees’ awareness of environmental issues and mobilising their
support to improve our environmental performance.
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Waste treatment

UMP’s operations are subject to environmental regulations, particularly
those relating to medical waste disposal including Hong Kong’s Code
of Practice for the Management of Clinical Waste and the PRC's
Regulations on the Administration of Medical Wastes. Given the
potential risk posed to the environment and human health from the
improper disposal of medical waste, we have extensive measures in

place to handle waste in a safe, legal, and professional manner.

Our Code of Handling Medical Waste identifies and categorises
medical waste such as used syringes, contaminated pads, cotton
balls, human tissue specimens from examination, dental amalgams,
and expired medicines. The Code specifies waste handling
procedures to guide staff to implement the proper management and
safe handling of medical waste. Medical waste is sealed, labelled
and stored at a designated area inside our centres until a licensed
waste contractor collects it for further treatment. We keep a detailed
record of medical waste with traceable information such as the date
and address of delivery, quantity, and the name of the licensed
collector. All our clinical staff undergo training to ensure they are
aware of these procedures and proper implementation. During
FY2021, we have produced 1.33 tonnes of medical waste.

To maintain clinic hygiene and protect patients from infections,
disposable items are necessary in providing medical services.
However, to limit the production of non-hazardous waste, we
educate staff on avoiding unnecessary consumption and disposal
of materials. During FY2021, we have produced 215,915 litres of

general waste?.
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RIEEERY)
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2021 E - BMEE1I3AMEEFEER
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RERBDEERRESERIRLE  =BHt
BEREVAGSH - IEY R - R BR
FEEEEVNEL  RAKXEEIRET
VEHMEBRERESE - R2021MBFE -
HAFIEE215,915F 8 — REEEY? -

2 The calculation methodology has been fine-tuned this year to consolidate a more accurate dataset.
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Resource consumption

The most significant source of energy consumption at UMP is
purchased electricity. General lighting and the operation of medical
equipment, including sterilisation with high temperatures and x-ray
imaging apparatus, consume the most energy. We strive to strike a
balance between maintaining our high-quality services for diagnosis
and treatment and reducing energy consumption. Hence, we are
continuously exploring energy conservation initiatives in our daily
operations, such as installing LED lighting in some of our medical

centres for greater energy efficiency.

The Group is actively shifting to using IT systems to reduce paper
consumption and promote centralised information management.
Clinical management and administrative work, such as the Group’s
E-Claims system, involve patient registration forms, medical records
and prescription labels; this has now been digitalised and is another

step towards reducing our paper consumption.

The Group’s consumption of resources by type are listed in the

following table.

BiRE#
BeBBEIENERERRBEE N - —
RRAREABERE (EERRBESRXK
THRE)ERRZESN - RAUBNEZH K08
BB M 5B RIS SR A BE R OB RE 2 RS
T Bk RMEEXRAELERRRE
BetE it (Pl B D B O L KLEDIR AR &
BIARSBERME) °

AEBELEGEEBEMBRES - LD A
MESRESTHNEMAER - BAEERTT
BT AE (IR EE R [E-Claims | & 48) % K
BEEBLERR BELBRETES JHE
2EBFL TRMABRSARON TR -

AEBMZBEREDNERBRENTEK -

FY2019 FY2020 FY2021
2009 BEFE 2020 EEFE 2021 BFE
Purchased electricity MWh 1,120.9 1,106.8 1,099.0
BEED K
Energy consumption intensity MWh/visiting patient 0.0007 0.0008 0.0010
REROH FE M E KEE, §%BE
GHG Emission?® tonnes CO,e 769.97 763.78 758.41
BERBHER N SALIRE S
3 Calculation methodologies for GHG emissions: “Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals

for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes) in Hong Kong” published by the Environmental Protection
Department and the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department of the Hong Kong SAR Government. GHG emissions include

indirect GHG emissions from purchased electricity.

BERBHMOAE T BEEFITRRRFREREZELREIERZEHRA(EERZEY (BE ETHAHAR)NAERE

PERORR Bt SIS - RERBNEBEBEES INREAERE
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OUR COMMUNITY

Our mission is to promote public health to the communities that
we serve. We strive to go beyond providing healthcare services to
our patients and to care for the health and well-being of the wider
public. Our continual commitment in caring for the community has
earned us the recognition of “Caring Company” by the Hong Kong

Council of Social Services for the second consecutive year.

This year, our Chairman and Executive Director Dr. Sun Yiu
Kong has committed to a donation of HK$5 million to UMP
Charity Foundation Limited to further the objectives of a strategic
partnership between the Foundation and the Jockey Club School
of Public Health and Primary Care (‘JCSPHPC’). The partnership
aims to promote the development and training of an Asia-specific
evidence-based medical training platform for primary care doctors
and nurses in the Greater Bay Area. The first round of donation
amounting to HK$600,000 is to be used for healthcare training
projects and other strategic research endeavours in conjunction with
JCSPHPC and The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

The Group has also cooperated with Taishan Charitable Association
Limited and The Neighbourhood Advice-Action Council on a
virtual care charity program. The program is carried out through
the donation of time by UMP’s General Practitioners to provide
telemedicine service via the Group’s Virtual Care platform for
patients from the charity clinics to promote community care.

In the future, the Group will continue to be proactively committed
to corporate social responsibility and sustainable development, with
an aim to care for the health and well-being of the wider public and

create long-term value for society.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RG> HERERRE

THE STOCK EXCHANGE ESG REPORTING GUIDE HEXFIBIE - HEe@RERBEIE

INDEX 5l &5l
Mandatory Disclosure Requirements Section Remarks
BERERE 3] B
Governance Structure A statement from the board containing Management of
ERRE the following elements: ESG aspects

RE - -8Rk
(i) adisclosure of the board’s oversight | & & 75 E & 12
of ESG issues;

(i)  the board’s ESG management
approach and strategy, including the
process used to evaluate, prioritise
and manage material ESG-related
issues (including risks to the issuer’s
businesses); and

(iii) how the board reviews progress
made against ESG-related goals
and targets with an explanation
of how they relate to the issuer’s
businesses.

HEFERLNER  ETFHATIRE:

(i) BEEFSYHRR HEREREE

PEE

(i) EFEMRR HERERBEETH
KRB - B - BB REE
EZNRE HEMERHABEER
(BREEFTARBORER) OBIE
54

(i) EFSMARRE LB REAEH
B EE - WRET I
TAEBERE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

BERERE

Reporting Principles
- Materiality
PERRA -EE

(i)  the process to identify and the
criteria for the selection of material
ESG factors;

(ii)  if a stakeholder engagement
is conducted, a description of
significant stakeholders identified,
and the process and results of the
issuer’s stakeholder engagement.

() BAIEBRE HEREARENG
BRERELERRMNED:

(i) WEBEITADETHOHELE  BHEA
MEZHDENRLRETAEDE
2ERBRERER -

RE - HERERBE

Section Remarks
=41 B
Reporting

standard

PEE % R A

Reporting Principles
— Quantitative

ERRA-21L

Information on the standards,
methodologies, assumptions and/or
calculation tools used, and source of
conversion factors used, for the reporting
of emissions/energy consumption (where
applicable).

ERE®RRE, RFER (WER) A
BB 7705  BRE /R ETANE
K AR R B 4 (R = 10 R B T 1R

= o

Reporting
standard

bEE 3 R A

Reporting Principles
— Consistency

BEE R R Al — — Bk

The issuer should disclose in the ESG
report any changes to the methods or
KPIs used, or any other relevant factors
affecting a meaningful comparison.
BITARERE HEMNELRSTRE
BETERBRAEBIEENE R (11F) K
THEMTEEERLBNEBMRAER -

Reporting
standard

BEE % JR A

Reporting Boundary

A narrative explaining the reporting
boundaries of the ESG report and
describing the process used to identify
which entities or operations are included
in the ESG report.

MERE HeRERENERDE -
NAgai B PR LL B sk RIE M AIRIE -
e REARETHBIE -

Reporting scope

bE ¥R %0 &
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RG> HERERRE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

FEHER EBEH —REERBEEARER

Section

B

Remarks

L

A. Environmental
A. IRIE

Aspect Al: Emissions

AT : ZEY)

General Disclosure

—RIE

Information on:
(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that
have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to
air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges
into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.

BRABRMREREHR - KR

TS AEREEEEDND

EEEFH

(@ BR: M

b) BTHETABERTZENMN
RAA 1 R AR B

BE R -

Our environment

HFIRIRE

As our major purpose is
to operate clinics, provide
medical services and
corporate health solutions,
our activities do not emit
significant quantities of
air pollutants or discharge
into water.
HRERMOETEZERH
EREDH REEER
BREFERRERRT
FORMMEBZPHALE
REFHRZERISEYHM
IKBEIS °

KPI A1.1
B S AR IR IRATLT

The types of emissions and
respective emissions data.

BEmm e E AR BB -

As our activities do not
emit significant quantities
of air pollutants and
effluents, this issue is not
material to the Group.
BRI RS RS AL E
REBVFHMZERITEY RS
K EREAEBEIL T
BKRe
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ENVIRONMENTAL,

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

IRER BEH  —REERBEREMER

KPI A1.2
BB AR SRR IRAT .2

Greenhouse gas emissions in

total (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit
of production volume, per facility).
BERBAIRE (UME) &
(mER)ZmE (MNESESEM -
FEEMBTHE) ©

Section
=421
Our environment

BAIERE

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - -HERE

Remarks
Bt

Apart from indirect
emissions reported, direct
but fugitive emission

of hydrofluorocarbon
(HFC) is expected in

small quantities as the
Group uses HFC-based
refrigerants for pharmacy
refrigerators.

BB WA R REE R
Sh o oB R AR KB o B
&R & By
(hydrofluorocarbon - f& 7
HFC) S XM ELL B - 838
HelmPENEEES
BUEIHEC -

AWE

KPI A1.3
B SR AE IR 1ZAT1.3

Total hazardous waste produced
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g., per unit of
production volume, per facility).
PRELAZEEMAE (UMEE
REm mE (MLEEESE
i - BERMEEE)

Our environment

B RIR

KPI A1.4
BAERAR AN IEIRAT 4

Total non-hazardous waste
produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g., per
unit of production volume, per
facility).

ELAEEEREMAE CAME)
E(mEm) BE (MASEES
i - FIER AT HE)

Our environment

BAFIEIRE

202155 » MAER
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RG> HERERRE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

FEHER EBEH —REERBEEARER

KPIA1.5
B S AR IUIRIRALLS

Description of emission target(s)
set and steps taken to achieve
them.

R E R E R R PTISARR -

Section
= 4:1
Our environment

BPIERE

Remarks

L

Emissions are not

considered to be the

most material issues
comparatively given the
Group’s business nature.
We have not set specific
targets with respect to

this aspect. The Group
reviews its operations

and environmental
performance on an
ongoing basis and will
consider setting targets as
appropriate.
ERAEENEHEEL
BERERMBEM S KRS
WHFKREZFEHE - HMAL
BT ENAER
R AKEBEERLE
EBRERE THREE
RZBRIZLBIE -

KPI A1.6
BASEARANIRIRAT.6

Description of how hazardous

and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, and a description of
reduction target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

WA RERENBEEEEZYNT
- ORBEEEENERLAERR

Our environment

BFIRIRE

Our Code of Handling
Medical Waste is in

place which outlines

our commitment and
management on medical
waste management. We
have not set specific
targets with respect to

this aspect. The Group
reviews its operations

and environmental
performance on an
ongoing basis and will
consider setting targets as
appropriate.
BHMFIERIBEEEERY
SR R AR
BEZEYERNAGLE
B RMIE|AT LU T E
MERBER AEERKSE
EREENRRERR I
BREEREEILBR -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HERERRE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls Section Remarks

IRER -BH - —REERBEEERER B B
Aspect A2: Use of resources

EEA2 : EREA

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of Our environment We consume municipal
—REE resources, including energy, water | B f{#IRE water mainly for dental
and other raw materials. services but not in
BRERER(BIEER - KEHEM significant quantities;
JREE) B BR - therefore the issue is not
material to the Group.
A E B R IF B RES W £

F#ETK - BEET K
o ZEEEAKEL T
ENL

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy Our environment
B A B IEA2.1 consumption by type (e.g. R IRE
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh
in “000s) and intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per
facility).
RSN ER R KRR
(NE - matom) MEE (A TET
EEFHE) REE (MUBEEE
7 - BERMEETE) °

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total - We do not consume

BB B 1RA2.2 and intensity (e.g. per unit of municipal water in
production volume, per facility). significant quantities;
BEXKERTE (MABESEM - therefore the issue is not
FIEHRMmEETE) o material to the Group.
BMYEREERDD
KR RFRHAK
B NEX -
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

FEHER EBEH —REERBEEARER

KPI A2.3
S AR SR FE1RA2.3

Description of energy use
efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

e BE TR B A e st B R PSR ©

Section
= 4:1
Our environment

BPIERE

Remarks

L

Energy uses are not
considered to be the
most material issues

comparatively given

the Group's business
nature. While we put
effort to improve our
energy efficiency, we
have not set specific
targets with respect to

this aspect. The Group
reviews its operations

and environmental
performance on an
ongoing basis and will
consider setting targets as
appropriate.
ERNAEENEBKEES -
RERE ARE M & W RS
VTHREEEHR -BER
PMENRSERM = - B
HPYEET U T EA R
BEHE - AKERKERG
EERRERE  UHR
HERERIAR -

KPI A2.4
BASEAR IR IRA2 .4

Description of whether there is
any issue in sourcing water that

is fit for purpose, water efficiency
target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.

fi st SR EUGE B KR £ R A A A
B AR RKME B RS
PR

Water consumption

is minimal within our
operation. Therefore, the
issue is not material to the
Group and we have not
set specific targets with
respect to this aspect.
BANEHRKED - E
b RFEBEHSAEEL T
BRI AT S
TERAERR-

KPI A2.5
B S AR AN IRIRA2.5

Total packaging material used for
finished products (in tonnes) and,
if applicable, with reference to per
unit produced.

R mAABRMENEE (LA
A8 R (ER) BEEEBMEE

During FY2021, we have
used 1,807kg of packaging
materials.
R2021H B F E - R AIE
1,807 Ty B #Y -
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R HERERRE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls Section Remarks

IRER BEH  —REERBEREMER 3] E

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

EBEA3 : RIELRARER

General Disclosure

—REE

Policies on minimising the

issuer’s significant impact on

the environment and natural
resources.

AR ET ABRRE R RAEREK
BERFENREK -

Our operation does not
have significant impact on
the natural environment
and the availability

of natural resources.
Therefore, the issue is not

KPI A3.1
BB AR IR 1RAS.T

Description of the significant
impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources
and the action taken to manage
them.

MR B AR HRERRAERD
EARERERREEAAZEN
78 -

material to the Group.
BN EBERARER
RABRNAAELES
FE Nt %FREY
REBELFERK -

Aspect A4: Climate Ch
BHA4 : RIKEL

ange

General Disclosure

—RIE

Policies on identification

and mitigation of significant
climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer.

BN ESDERAREEHEITA
EERENEARBRHEBEENK
R o

Climate change is not
considered to be the

most material issues
comparatively given the
Group’s business nature.
ERAEENEBLEE
RAIRZEARE NS WRA
WIFKEESRR -

KPI A4.1
BB AR AR 1R AT

Description of the significant
climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer, and the actions
taken to manage them.

HE R EHRTAELEY
ENBEARRHEBEE - REHTT

B o
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RIR-#HE8RE

Subject Areas, Aspects,

BWE

General Disclosures and KPIs

FEHER EBEH —REERBEEARER

Remarks

L

Section

B

B. Social
B. ft &

Aspect B1: Employment
EMEBI : EE

General Disclosure

—REE

Information on:

(a)

the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that
have a significant impact

on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.
ERFMEERE HERENT
TS B FEHE 2T
1t~ RIBAR AR B A 15538 R R i -

(@ HE: K

(b)) BTHBETABEAZENM

BAA 1 KRB

BB -

Our employees

B E&

KPI B1.1
S AR IRE1EB1 .1

Total workforce by gender,
employment type (for example,
full- or part-time), age group and
geographical region.

R BREEL (MR RR
B FRANRMESSHEER
2 -

Our employees

BHES

KPI B1.2
8 52 48 B 1ZB 1.2

Employee turnover rate by gender,
age group and geographical
region.

BIUER - FEER KRS0 M E
Rt ® -

Our employees

mmES
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R HERERRE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls Section Remarks

IRER BEH  —REERBEREMER 3] E
Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EEB2 : RFEHEL %

General Disclosure Information on: Our employees
—REE HMWESR

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that
have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working
environment and protecting
employees from occupational
hazards.

FRRELZ2TERERRERE

MRBEMEREN

(@ BUR: K

(b)) BTHETABERTZENMN

BRORE R AR B

HE R

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related Our employees There were no

Bl B2 48 B 1EB2.1 fatalities occurred in each of the BMMES occupational fatalities in
past three years including the the past three years.
reporting year. BE=ZFUEZFLEATIC
BEZF (BRERFE)EFAT A= -
CTHEAABREE -

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Our employees

B B2 45 1R 1RB2.2 AIEERTIIERR - HMMESR

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health | Our employees

B AE B 1EB2.3 and safety measures adopted, HZMWER

how they are implemented and
monitored.

BORPT R AR B R RRELT 28
i ARMEERITRERTTX -
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

FEHER EBEH —REERBEEARER

Section

B

Remarks

L

EmB3 : #E ME

Aspect B3: Development and Training

General Disclosure

—REE

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.
BRRTTEEETT TIERE A&
R REH R o R IE A

Our employees

mFmES

KPI B3.1
B S AR AN R 1EB3.1

The percentage of employees
trained by gender and employee
category.

mIER R EB RS (e RERE
PREEE) ESNXIIEERD
Lt e

Our employees

nfmES

KPI B3.2
A S AR S IR1RB3.2

The average training hours
completed per employee by
gender and employee category.
BRI MEEERE D BRESR
TERZ AR EL

Our employees

#mmES

Average training hours by
gender are not available.
The Group will collect and
disclose relevant data in
the future as appropriate.
I R 1 Bl &) 9 F 159 2 F
B ] o 7N 5= B S 0 R R MK
SLBBERBEHEE (WME
) e

151ZB4 : & T %8|

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

General Disclosure

~ RS

Information on:
(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that
have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced
labour.

B IEET SRS T :
(@ B%E: K

(b) BFHBETABEAFENM
BROR KA B

BB -

Our employees

nfmES
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R HERERRE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls Section Remarks

IRER BEH  —REERBEREMER 3] E

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review | — The Group firmly opposes

8§ 45 WU FE FZEB 4.1 employment practices to avoid employing child labour
child and forced labour. and upholds high labour
it BB S EEAR R E standards and requires
TR d|& T - suppliers to apply the

same standard in their
operations to prevent child
and forced or trafficked
labour.

During FY2021, the
Group was not found
with nor involved in

any non-compliance in
employment and labour or
employment of any child
labour or forced labour.
AEBEBRRRERERAZE
T BFRKFHEIE
Al WERHEEENEE
BHRARESFEE - A
1FE T Jo 58 85 T k4% Bk
BHTA -

P21 REFE - A&EE
i35 S5 0) N 37 ) SR e ]
NEFERE RS THE R
EREMETIHEFST

GNP
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to - In the recruitment process,
Bl 5248 WIS 1T B4.2 eliminate such practices when identity checks are
discovered. performed by the human
R EERERBEARER GRS resource department
SURR EREX B 2 B o to ensure all recruited

employees are above the
legal working age.
RABRBIEF  ANER
MEZERKBENS D -
BRAEEEREAEF
mATE TIEFERIAL ©

2021F% » BMEBBKEERRAA 93
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

FEHER EBEH —REERBEEARER

Section Remarks

B B

[EEB5 : {fLEH@EIE

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

General Disclosure

Policies on managing

Our services

38 5 45 AN HE 13B5.1

— MR environmental and social risks of | FAFHY PR IE
the supply chain.
ERHEEARE ML g RARBR

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by Our services

geographical region.

mipmE D HEREE -

API B AR 75

KPI B5.2
B S AR I IR 1R B5.2

Description of practices relating
to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are
being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.

W ARERHEEENEN - [E
HITHREMNNHEERBE UK
HERATRERT A -

Our services

B IR0 IR

KPI B5.3
A S AR I IR1RB5.3

Description of practices used to
identify environmental and social
risks along the supply chain, and
how they are implemented and
monitored.

AR AR e R IR
BERtemRBHED - A RBBEH
TRESETE-

Our services

BT IRH5

KPI B5.4
A2 AR AN F5 15 B5.4

Description of practices used

to promote environmentally
preferable products and services
when selecting suppliers, and

how they are implemented and
monitored.

A ERE R EERRES ARR
EmERIEEEN - A RBBRT
MERITE -

Our services

BT AR H
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

FTEER EBEE —REBERBREAVER
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[ETHEB6 : EmET

Section
=421

B HERERB®RSE

Remarks

E

General Disclosure
— M E

Information on:
(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on
the issuer relating to health
and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy
matters relating to products
and services provided and
methods of redress.

EHMREHREMMRBORERE

2 RS BELALBEEALE

TR

(@ XK

(b) BTFHBEITABEAFENN
a0k 2 K8

B E R o

Our services

BT AR

KPI B6.1
B S 4R 3R $515B6.1

Percentage of total products sold
or shipped subject to recalls for
safety and health reasons.
EEXCEXEMBEHETRLEHE
BFIEmmARKNE DL -

Not applicable to the
Group’s business.

TEBRAEEER -

KPI B6.2
S AR AN 15 15B6.2

Number of products and
service-related complaints
received and how they are dealt
with.
EERNERMREIFEE A
NI »

Our services

BT ARF

KPI B6.3
B4R 95 15B6.3

Description of practices relating
to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.

it B R ARIE B ERE R B
Bl -

The Group has established
a Trademark Register
which records the
registration number, mark
image, class number,
owner’s name and expiry
date.
AEEEERZEELC
FeERREM SR AR E R
BRIk R AREEE
BB -
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ENVIRONMENTAL,
R -HEBRE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Di

FEHER -BEH —KREERBEER

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BWE

sclosures and KPIs

BERER

Section

B

Remarks

L

B B 45 XI5 15B6.5

monitored.

protection and privacy policies,
how they are implemented and

HlE & & & RHRE R ALBBUR
AR AR ENIT REER X -

B IR0 AR

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance - Not applicable to the
BG4 M IE12B6.4 process and recall procedures. Group's business.

il S S T B2 M E m E AR T - TERNAREEET -
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data Our services

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
EBHEB7 : RES

8 42 48 B 1ZB7 .1

employees
period and
cases.
N
TEEENE

EEAY R

cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its

during the reporting
the outcomes of the

HETASEEERY
SR EARIFR B E &

General Disclosure Information on: Business ethics
— R [EES L
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on
the issuer relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money
laundering.
ERLEBE 3% MFFRER
BH)
(@ BE: M
(b) FBTHBETABEATZENM
BEER R AR I
B EFL -
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal Business ethics

mERER
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R HERERRE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

IRER BEH  —REERBEREMER

KPI B7.2
S AR IR 1RBY .2

Description of preventive measures
and whistleblowing procedures,
how they are implemented and
monitored.

WS REIEF - AR
FITRERITA -

Section
=421
Business ethics

mERER

Remarks

E

KPI B7.3
BA S AR AN IR 1RBY .3

Description of anti-corruption
training provided to directors and
staff.

MM EERETRMHNRESE

al e

Business ethics

EES:E

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EMEBS : HRIKRE

General Disclosure

—RIE

Policies on community
engagement to understand

the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and

to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’
interests.

BN RBERTHREEMTML
EREMBREEB TG E BT
[ F 25 A B3R -

Our community

it

KPI B8.1
A S2 AR SR F515B8.1

Focus areas of contribution

(e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport).

BIEREHE (WHE  REEHE
BIHKk k- k- 85) -

Our community

IRt

KPI B8.2
B4R N5 1588 .2

Resources contributed (e.g. money
or time) to the focus area.
EHIBEMHAER (WEEX
BrfE) o

Our community

B4t &

2021465 o
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for FY2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development are set out
in “Chairman Statement” on pages 6 to 16 of this annual report and
n “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 17 to 31 of
this annual report, which forms part of this report of Directors. The
financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group are
set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial statements. Besides,
the potential risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, key
relationship between the Group and its employees, customers and
suppliers, the environmental policies of the Group and compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations which have significant impact
are set out below.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Groups’ results and operations are subject to various factors
with the key risks summarised below:

Strategy Risk

As part of business strategy, the Group is expanding its operations
to certain major cities in Mainland China, such expansion strategies
are subject to uncertainties and risks such as strain on managerial,
operational and financial resources, competition with existing
healthcare services providers in Mainland China, differences in
the business, regulatory and political environment, difficulties
in obtaining the requisite permits, licences, certificates or other
government approvals in connection with the Group’s operation in
Mainland China, difficulties in establishing a brand, reputation and
new customer base, difficulties in recruiting skilled and qualified
healthcare professionals and management personnel, and difficulties
in securing suitable premises for the medical centres. In addition,
the private healthcare market in Mainland China is still developing.
Medical expenses of corporate employees are currently covered
by mandatory government insurance programmes. There is no
assurance that corporations in Mainland China will be willing to
top up healthcare benefits payment for their employees and offer
additional healthcare services by private providers, such as the
Group.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

FERAL
wEREE

F2NRIFHRFENESTERER
B SRR o

FEEK
AKRNBMEBEF AR ELERK-
BRAIAMNIEEBHFBHNES
MFET o

HIEM
B 5 R

EBEEDERRSE
AEENEFEANEBOEREBAEE

RREBEROTRIEN AT FRECE16EH
[EEHMEIRAFRBEI7IZINENEREE
SRk (AR AEETGRE D) o
AEENFBRABREEBZRBRREARES
B RS aR MYiE46 o AN - AEEFEERHNE
fEREBETHAPEEZ  AEEHEES B
1 EEMEZERE AEENREEER
TFTHERERNZEMNHAEZER/NBERLE
ﬁllﬁéT‘Xo

i%@%&$%%5§

AEBNXEREEXZRBRARTE T2
R gt an ks

5 S L B

EREBRE 80 AKEBRLKLERE
REFEAMETEIERT  ZFERKE

FHETHBARRY S RER @ flnEER -
RELRVBERLENEN  EREAMIRE

BRRERFREREENES BX BEER
BURRBEMEZR  BSEASEE+TE AN

LEMBOEA MR EEREMBA
WXWRE ZT Mg BERREPFN
RE: BEARRAERBERREEEZAL
REBABHRE  RERBAENYEFRR
BEPLOMERE - 1IN FEAMHLEE
BRETSDENRERER ©XEEMNE
BEERE A HBARBRAELE - )5
R EPIWiﬂzE’JJL%HﬁEEF%EI\EELJJD
BREBMNER LG TLEREE (WAE
M) IR A fh B8 F1%&HE5‘%



Reputation Risk

The Group’s success in Hong Kong depends significantly on the
recognition of its brand and reputation as a leading corporate
healthcare solutions provider. However, Doctors, Dentists and
Auxiliary Services Providers working in the Group may from time
to time be subject to complaints, allegations or legal actions
regarding the adequacy of patient care, treatment outcome and
medical services provided, which may harm the business, results of
operations, financial condition, brand and reputation of the Group.

Compliance Risk

The Group’s business operations, Doctors, Dentists and Auxiliary
Services Providers in the Group’s network working in Hong
Kong, Macau and Mainland China are subject to extensive laws,
regulations and licensing requirements, any failure to comply with
such laws, regulations or licensing requirement could harm the
Group’s business, results of operations, financial condition, brand
and reputation.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN THE GROUP
AND ITS EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group fully understands that employees, customers and
suppliers are the key to our sustainable and stable development.
We are committed to establishing a close relationship with our
employees, enhancing cooperation with our suppliers and providing
high-quality services to our customers so as to ensure the Group’s

sustainable development.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

As a responsible corporation, the Group recognises the importance
of good environmental stewardship. In this connection, the Group
strictly adopted and implemented policies and procedures to ensure
environmental protection. To the best knowledge of the Directors,
the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group in relation to its business
including health and safety, workplace conditions, employment
and the environment. During FY2021, no environmental claims,
lawsuits, penalties or administrative sanctions were reported to our

management.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China while the
Company is a holding company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
with its Shares listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Our establishments and operations accordingly shall comply with
relevant laws and regulations in the Cayman Islands, Hong Kong,
Macau and Mainland China. During FY2021, our businesses were
in compliance with all the relevant laws and regulations in Cayman
Islands, Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China in all material

aspects.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The profit of the Group for FY2021 and the Group’s financial

position as at 30 June 2021 are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 141 to 144 of this annual report.

The Board proposed the payment of a final dividend of HK2.80
cents per Share for FY2021 (FY2020: HK2.65 cents) and proposed
that Shareholders be given the option to receive the proposed 2021
final dividend of HK2.80 cents per Share in new Shares in lieu of
cash (“Scrip Dividend Option”). The Scrip Dividend Option will be
subjected to the approval of Shareholders at the 2021 AGM to be
held on Friday, 26 November 2021 and the Stock Exchange granting
the listing of and permission to deal in the new Shares to be issued
pursuant thereto. The proposed 2021 final dividend is expected to
be distributed on Wednesday, 26 January 2022 to the Shareholders
whose names appear on the Register of Members of the Company on
Friday, 10 December 2021. A circular containing details of the Scrip
Dividend Option will be despatched together with a form of election
for scrip dividend in December 2021.

Together with the interim dividend of HK1.00 cent per Share paid
in April 2021, the total distribution of dividend by the Company for
FY2021 will be HK3.80 cents per Share (FY2020: HK3.30 cents per
Share).

DIVIDENDS POLICY
The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy (the

“Dividend Policy”). The Company is endeavor to maintain sufficient
operating capital to develop and operate the Group’s business, and
to provide stable and sustainable returns to the Shareholders.
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In considering the declaration and payment of dividends, the Board
will take into account the following factors:

financial results;

. cash flow situation;

. business conditions and strategies;

e future operations and earnings;

J capital requirements and expenditure plans;

J interests of shareholders;

e any restrictions on payment of dividend; and

J any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

The Board will also constantly review the Dividend Policy and
reserve the discretion to update, revise, modify and/or cancel the
Dividend Policy at any time. The Dividend will not in any way
constitute a legally binding commitment of the Group in relation to
its future dividends and/or will not in any way render the Company

obligated to declare dividends at any time or from time to time.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2021
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 23 November 2021 to Friday, 26 November 2021, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify as members entitled to attend and
vote at the meeting, investors should lodge all transfers of shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms
with the Company’s branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 22
November 2021.
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For determining the entitlement to the proposed 2021 final dividend,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 9 December 2021 to Friday, 10 December 2021 both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the entitlement to the proposed
final dividend, all transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 8 December
2021.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no material subsequent events undertaken by the
Company or by the Group after 30 June 2021 and up to the date of
this report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited financial statements, is set out on
page 292. This summary does not form part of the audited financial

statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the share capital and share options
of the Company for FY2021 are set out in notes 34 and 35 to the

consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Save for the purchase of shares for the share award scheme (as
detailed under Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements),
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold

or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during FY2021.
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RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group for FY2021
are set out in the section headed “Consolidated Statement of

Changes in Equity” of this annual report.

As at 30 June 2021, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution amounted to HK$493,103,000, of which
HK$21,710,000 has been proposed as final dividend for FY2021.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the Group’s property,
plant and equipment are set out in note 14 to the consolidated

financial statements in this annual report.

BORROWINGS
During FY2021, the Group did not have any bank borrowings

or entering into any bank loan facility and as at 30 June 2021,
the Group had no outstanding bank loans, other borrowings or
indebtedness.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of pledge of assets during the year are set out in section
headed “Pledge of Assets” in the “Management Discussion and

Analysis” of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During FY2021, the revenue attributable to the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 21.3% of the Group’s revenue for the
year and the largest customer included therein accounted for 8.7%.
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for less

than 30% of the total purchases for the year.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or
any of their close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or
shareholders of the Company that owned more than 5% of the
issued Shares had any direct or indirect interest in the five largest

customers or the five largest suppliers of the Group during FY2021.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during FY2021 and up to the date of

this annual report were:

Executive Directors
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen (Managing Director)
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John 88s jp

Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald sss jp

Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike
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RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first
general meeting of the Company after his appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed by
the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election. At each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years. The details of Directors (as
required by the Listing Rules) who will retire and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the AGM, will be provided in
the accompanying circular. The re-election of each Director will
be subject to vote of shareholders of the Company by separate

resolutions.

Accordingly, Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix, Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick
and Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John shall retire by rotation at the 2021 AGM
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Each Director has disclosed to the Company the names and the titles
and nature of office held in the public companies or organisations
prior to the acceptance of the appointment and promised to inform
the Company timely of any relevant change. The Company will also
require Directors to submit written confirmation twice a year, and

update their biographical details, if any.

THE BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE
DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in pages 32 to
40 of this annual report.
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INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATIONS FROM
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view

that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has an unexpired service contract which is
not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
employees in the Group are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the

consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Details of the remuneration payable to the senior management in the

Group are as follows:

BUFIITESENBELIRISE

ARARDEEBUFNTESTSARELD
BMANEI MR B EE] - LA B
HOEMFEER - ARARRRAABILIE
WTEFYBBILIAL -

EENBRBEEL
BEEERAQR LA MAAR LA
AT 2 B — 4 PO AR A TSR ZA 1 B 0 O
EEERIN) ORERRBALD -

EERGSREERE N MH

ExRASERIARRFRENHEMFER
RAFHERE M BRI EIRT0 -

ENAEESREREAENFHMFBOT

Number of senior
management
(FY2021)
SREEEAH
(2021 B F E)

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$1,500,000 or below
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group’s remuneration policies are based on the merit,
qualifications and competence of individual employees and are
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee periodically. The
emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the Remuneration
Committee and are decided by the Board, having regard to the
Group’s operating results, individual performance and comparable

market statistics.

The Company has adopted two share option schemes and a share
award scheme to motivate and reward its Directors and eligible
participants. Details of the schemes are set out in pages 112 to 120

of this report.

None of the Directors waived any emoluments during FY2021.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKINGS
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, East Majestic Group Limited and EM Team

Limited, our controlling Shareholders, have undertaken to the
Company in a deed of non-compete undertaking that, subject to and
except as mentioned in the Prospectus, they would not carry on,
engage, invest, participate or otherwise be interested in any business
which competes or is likely to compete with any of the existing
and/or future businesses carried on by any member of the Group
in relation to the provision of corporate healthcare solutions and
consultancy services in non- UMP medical centres in Hong Kong,
Macau and Mainland China.

Each of them has confirmed in writing to the Company of
their compliance with the deed of non-compete undertaking
for disclosure in this annual report during FY2021. No new
business opportunity was informed by them as at 30 June 2021
The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
implementation of the deed of non-compete undertaking and are of
the view that the non-competition undertakings have been complied
with by Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, East Majestic Group Limited and EM
Team Limited for FY2021.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from
the Group’s business, that competes or competed or is or was likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business
at any time during FY2021 and up to and including the date of this

report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVFE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

OF THE COMPANY OR ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 30 June 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and Chief Executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and/or debentures (as the case may be) of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
required to be entered into the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or which were otherwise
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the Model Code were set out below:

EENLFRBNES

#2021 BA TR 4E 8 P9 A 5 R R B ZE A 4R 45
B (RIF% B) L - B4 5 A 4 B 22 75 A
AR EEHEE R EBRREBRK
T B A S 8 T AR T B A T R
AR -

EERRETRAERAQAR
HEBZIENKRD  HERGOK
BEENERERAXR

MR2021F6A308  EERA R A H&REITH
ABRARANEFMEEEE (TERES
MHAEEHIEXVED) M5 - HERD &
SEHF(RTBERME)R BEREBEESFR
HEKAIEXVEE/RESHBMAMNS AR
AR TS AR (BRESREZSE
BHERHABBRMMEMERIEXNEFEERD
BERAR) + RELHERARRREFSF R
HEGROIEISEBEFEN SR MANER R
wE - HIRBIRETFRAIMANE AR R R
RS RABIT ¢

(i) The Company (i) &27
Number of Approximate
Long/short Shares/ percentage of
Name of Director position Capacity underlying shares  Note  shareholding (%)
Bt/ K8
EEpg BR/ KR L4 RG#E  WE BARREA%)
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong Long position Beneficial owner 22,926,000
BRRIBE ) EGAEEA
Long position Interest held by his
e controlled corporations 253,994,049 1
BEMERNZERE
Long position Beneficial owner 700,000 3
7R EEBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 3,300,000 4
fHR EEBAA
280,920,049 36.23
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Number of Approximate
Long/short Shares/ percentage of
Name of Director position Capacity underlying shares ~ Note  shareholding (%)
Rt/ 88
Esng #E/ KR gt Bo#E ME  BOBRLA%
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen Long position Beneficial owner 17,948,657
BEERSE iR ESBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 11,380,000 2
5y ERBEA
Long position Beneficial owner 500,000 3
8 ESBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 2,500,000 4
7e ERBEA
32,328,657 4.17
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick Long position Beneficial owner 100,000
BRERE e EABBEA
Long position Beneficial owner 600,000 2
R ESBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 400,000 3
e ERABA
Long position Beneficial owner 2,500,000 4
R ESBAA
3,600,000 0.46
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael Long position Beneficial owner 17,004,000
EXBEE #e EEBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 400,000 3
R ESBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 2,500,000 4
7R EREAA
19,904,000 2.57
202155 « BABHRERRAR
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Number of Approximate
Long/short Shares/ percentage of
Name of Director position Capacity underlying shares ~ Note  shareholding (%)
Rt/ 88
Esng #e/ %R af Bo#E ME  BOBRLA%
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix Long position Beneficial owner 11,388,000
* R ik
FRBEE Sy EEERA
Long position Beneficial owner 10,242,000 2
R Exl
R L §3:2-UN
Long position Beneficial owner 500,000 3
R ESfAA
Long position Beneficial owner 2,500,000 4
iR EmBAA
24,630,000 3.18
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick Long position Beneficial owner 20,668,959
SHEBL 8 ESBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 400,000 3
R ESBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 2,500,000 4
R BEBAA
23,568,959 3.04
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP Long position Beneficial owner 1,436,000
SUBRE(WEHEE X FHL) R BEBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 300,000 4
2 BEBAA
1,736,000 0.22
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald SBS JP- Long position Beneficial owner 328,000
PEARBE (HEHEE X FHL) R BEBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 300,000 4
fFR EafAA
628,000 0.08
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike Long position Beneficial owner 500,000
BRE&RE e BEAAA
Long position Beneficial owner 200,000 4
R BEAAA
700,000 0.09
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(i)

Notes:

Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong is deemed to be interested in the 207,988,049
Shares held by East Majestic Group Limited, being his controlled
corporation, and is also deemed to be interested in 46,006,000
Shares held by EM Team Limited, also being his controlled
corporation.

These Shares represented the underlying Shares under the options
granted by the Company on 18 August 2015 pursuant to the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme.

These Shares represented the share award granted by the Company
on 17 July 2018 pursuant to the Share Award Scheme.

These Shares represented the underlying Shares under the options
granted by the Company on 6 November 2018 pursuant to the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Associated Corporations (within the meaning of the

SFO)

Procare Medical Imaging & Laboratory Centre Limited®

REPORT OF DIRECTORS

(ii)

GEX

ESE®RE

RRIBEAEHGAREZTEZEE
East Majestic Group Limited$§ & £
207,988,049 N P HEB % - TRIEAR
BRERAEZIEAEEM Team Limited
F5H #946,006,0000 A% 17 7 A fE 25 o

ZERMIBEARRTN2015F8 18 AR
BRAFRBEMERETEELOER
HEIETHHEER®D -

ZERMIEARAN2018%7 A17BRIE
AR (5 S2 B &t B35 H WO B A9 58 R

ZERMIEARANR20185F11 Ao BRI
BRAFRBEZERETEFLOER
REIETHMERRG

HEZE (ERRBSZRAE KL

EEBEYEREBRPOBRLAFD

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding

Name of Director Long/short position Capacity shares (%)

A IR EE Bl

Exgs BR KR 514 R4 8 E (%)

Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael Long position Beneficial owner 625 6.25

BXREL e BEamEB A

Causeway Bay MRI Centre Limited® R HIRPOER DT

Approximate

percentage of

Number of shareholding

Name of Director Long/short position Capacity shares (%)
BE A #5 IR EE I

E=nSR BRKR 51 4 8B (%)

Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael ~ Long position Beneficial owner 95 6.33

BXERE8LE A BamEA A

Notes: B s -

(1) UMP Medical Centre Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the (1 ARAWNEZENBRARMEERFRLE
Company, holds 62.5% of the entire issued share capital of Procare BARBEEREZXEREBRTOLE
Medical Imaging & Laboratory Centre Limited. RAFH2EE BETRAN62.5%

(2)  UMP Medical Centre Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the 2) ZARAFNZEWNBARBMESBBRLOE

Company, holds 20% of the entire issued share capital of Causeway
Bay MRI Centre Limited.

RARFEREZMNERPOLBRA
A2 IPEHITRAR20% °

20215% o BABHEEARAH
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2021, none of the Directors
or Chief Executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or as otherwise notified to the Company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted two share option schemes, namely
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option

Scheme.

Pre-IPO Share option Scheme
The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme on 18
August 2015. Details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are as

follows:

(@) Purpose
The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
provide incentive or reward to eligible participants for their
contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests
of, the Company and to enable the Group to recruit and
retain high-calibre employees. In determining the basis of
eligibility of each eligible participants, the Board would take
into account such factors as the Board may at its discretion

consider appropriate.
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(b)

Summary of Key terms

The maximum number of Shares to be issued upon full
exercise of all outstanding share options granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is 27,008,000, being
approximately 3.48% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 30 June 2021.

The subscription price for the Shares under the options
granted pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is
HK$1.2228 per Share.

All holders of options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme may only exercise their options in the
following manner: (i) 10% of the option shares shall only
be exercisable from the first anniversary of the grant date
up to and including the end of the Option Period; and
(i) 90% of the option shares shall only be exercisable
from the second anniversary of the grant date up to and
including the end of the Option Period.

The “Option Period” means the period from the Listing
Date and end on the date immediately before the seventh
anniversary of the Listing Date.

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was only in force
during the period from 18 August 2015 to 9 November
2015, and no further options are to be granted thereunder
but in all other respects the provisions of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect
to the exercise of any options granted.
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(b) FERHERBE

EREE X AR ERERERE
ERERFARTEEREERR
TEMB TEITHNRMDEE LR A
27,008,0008% + Bl AR A & 782021
F6H30B 2 EHITRAHL3.48% °

RIBEB X FAEERERETS
HEMEREETROREES
FAX1.22287 T ©

REBEE R AR E S BRES
ERBRENAEREAERNR
T AT E M IR R AAE - ()8
PRAERZ A7 B9 10%E AT AR H A Bl —
FFREZBEREPRGER (2%
B H)ETTE - R)BBRERD S
0% EARELAHMEAFRES
BREBRER(BEEH) LT
f& -

(BRESRIELMAREER
& MM A BB -

BRAMBERBERESTEER
201548 H18H £201541159H
HEBW - ARSI BEBLE—F
REERE  EERAAMEEE
IR EIMIE XTI B M7 E
HETEEMEREBREDA
BEBETRBMAORER-
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(c) Outstanding options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option  (c)

Scheme

Details of movements of the share options granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme for the year ended 30 June 2021

are as follows:

BREEAAHREIERETSCE Y
WO R AT R R A
HE2021F6A30B IEFEREF XA
MEEmERESSRENBRES
HBmT

As at Granted Exercised  Cancelled/ As at
Exercise price  Exercise 1 July during during  Lapsed during 30 June
Grantee Position Date of grant per Share  period 2020 the year the year the year 2021
i i H2020% i mo Mg
ERA LAl RiAH ERRE TRA TRIB ERRE  FAME EE/AR 68308
(dd/mmYyy) (ng$) (dd/mmpyy) .
®/8)5 @ (B85
Directors
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen Managing Director and 18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2016-26/11/2022 1,138,000 - - - 1,138,000
Hi-FS Execuﬁve\Direcjgr 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 10,242,000 - - - 10,242,000
EZRARRUNES
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick Executive Director 18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2016-26/11/2022 60,000 - - - 60,000
BZENE i 18/082017-26/11/2022 540,000 - - - 540000
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix Exegg[ive Director 18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 10,242,000 - - - 10,242,000
FRERE HES
Sub-totl 22,022,000 - - - 22,022,000
g
Employees
28
In i@gregate
af - 18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 3,186,000 - - - 3,186,000
Sub-totl 3,186,000 - - — 3,186,000
g
Other eligible grantees
EfAERARA
In aggregate - 18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2016-26/11/2022 160,000 - - - 160,000
Ak 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 1,440,000 - - - 1,440,000
Sub-total: 1,600,000 - - - 1,600,000
gt
Total: 27,008,000 - - - 27,008,000
A
=]
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Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
The Company adopted the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme on 2
November 2015. Details of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme are

as follows:

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Purpose

The purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
incentivise and reward the Eligible Persons (as defined in
sub- paragraph (b) below) for their contribution to the Group
and to align their interests with that of the Company so as to
encourage them to work towards enhancing the value of the
Company.

Participants

The Board (including any committee or delegate of the
Board appointed by the Board to perform any of its functions
pursuant to the rules of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme)
may, at its absolute discretion, offer to grant an option
to subscribe for such number of Shares as the Board may
determine to an employee (whether full-time or part-time) or a
director of a member of the Group or associated companies of
the Company (the “Eligible Persons”).

Total number of securities available for issue

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes (including but not
limited to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme) of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of

Shares in issue as at the Listing Date.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

No options shall be granted to any Eligible Person under the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any other Share option
schemes of the Company which, if exercised, would result in
such Eligible Person becoming entitled to subscribe for such
number of Shares as, when aggregated with the total number of
Shares already issued or to be issued to him under all options
granted to him (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in the 12-month period up to and including the date
of offer of such options, exceeds 1% of the Shares in issue at

such date.
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(e)

)

(g

(h)

Period within which the shares must be taken up under an
option

Any vested option which has not lapsed and which conditions
have been satisfied or waived by the Board in its sole
discretion may, unless the Board determines otherwise in its
absolute discretion, be exercised at any time from the next
business day after the offer of options has been accepted. Any
option which remain unexercised shall lapse upon the expiry
of the option period, which period shall be determined by the
Board and shall not exceed ten years from the offer date of the
option.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised

The Board may in its absolute discretion set a minimum period
for which an option must be held and performance targets that
must be achieved before an option can be exercised.

Time of acceptance and the amount payable on acceptance of
the option

An offer of options shall be open for acceptance in writing
or by telex or facsimile transmission or (if the Board agree)
by electronic communication received by the Chairman (or a
person designated by him with the approval of the Board) for
such period (not exceeding 30 days inclusive of, and from,
the date of offer) as the Board may determine and notify to
the Eligible Person concerned provided that no such offer
shall be open for acceptance after the expiry of the duration
of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. An offer of options not
accepted within this period shall lapse.

An amount of HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance of the
grant of an option and such payment shall not be refundable
and shall not be deemed to be a part payment of the exercise
price.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price shall be such price as determined by the
Board and notified to an option-holder and which shall not
be less than the higher of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the
date of offer of the option; (ii) the average of the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of offer of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of the Shares.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

(e)

)

(g

(h)

TEBRERBRG ZHR

HEFSREBHNBEESTEEI
EREISY NI GRS 30 S
HREFSRAEZERBRE MR
% AIRNERABREZORNT — @R
ERABER TR o (AR ARTT A B8 A
KRB RR fEim & A5 5 R &R R
HEZSET ATFEBBEREZN
BHEE R 4 -

TEBREMLASEBRENZED
fR
EEgn2RRNBERENBRERN] TT
FERIB AR AR RENREHR RAZE
RHRIE AR

EMBRENTREZERBRESES
A
BERENZOIRESSRELBNE
BAaERAINERYR(HEONRY
i (BHEZB)F30RR) i - 4
FTARBNEERANBBERKNBEESX
(WEZERB)BBEE (REELE
FERAERBEEN —RALD)RIINE
FRANTAER  EERAFAEER
BREFSNREMASFELERE
# o IAT R AN BEREZOSS

o

e

R P IR h E RE AR B R 111,008
T ZRERTTRE  ATERER
TTEEE MR D 3R

EETEENEE
THEEEAREFEE T AMNERE
BEANER  RTESERUTHNES
F (RO EIREZ A A H R AT
BRAMERMAIOHWTE: ()RH R
EREREZEORBEIAEAZZBR
B RMERMINFHETE: &
(iR EE °



REPORT OF DIRECTORS

(i) Life of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme )
The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will expire automatically
on the day immediately preceding the tenth anniversary of
the Listing Date, subject to early termination provisions in the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.

ESE®RE

BRAMBRERBRETENFH
RIBERNFEERBRER BIHREA
AR BRAHBERERER S
HEZEZ EMBEMHAFI—XEBE
o

The summary below sets out the details of the movement during the LA TEIZ2#EF|IRBEEH X QAMESEERET
year ended 30 June 2021 of all the options granted pursuant to the &% &)1 5 B ERE =2021F6A30R

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme: IEFENEHFIS
Number of Shares issuable under the share options
BREETIFRTRAZE
Cancelled/

[apsed As at
Exercise As at Granted Exercised during 30 June
Date of price  Exercise 1]uly 2020 during during the year 2021
Name grant per Share  period #2020% the year the year £ #0215
#e RERH BRORE TRE 7A18 EREd ERk HE/5N 64308

(dd/mm/yyyy) (HKS) (ddimmiyyyy) (Note 1)

(B/B/%) (Bt) (B/B/%) (W)
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong (Chairman, Chief 06/11/2018 2.06 30/06/2019-05/11/2023 2,300,000 - - - 2,300,000
Executive Officer and Executive Director) 26/05/2021 0.772  26/05/2022-25/05/2029 - 400,000 - - 400,000
BRIEBL(1E ARLAZH1EE) 26/05/2021 0772 26/05/2023-25/05/2029 - 300,000 - - 300,000
26/05/2021 0.772  26/05/2024-25/05/2029 - 300,000 - - 300,000
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen (Managing ~ 06/11/2018 2,06 30/06/2019-05/11/2023 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
Director and Executive Director) 26/05/2021 0.772  26/05/2022-25/05/2029 - 400,000 - - 400,000
JSERL (BELHEFHEE) 26/05/2021 0772 26/05/2023-25/05/2029 - 300,000 - - 300,000
26/05/2021 0.772  26/05/2024-25/05/2029 - 300,000 - - 300,000
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick (Executive Director) ~ 06/11/2018 2,06 30/06/2019-05/11/2023 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
YRERS (H7ES) 26/05/2021 0772 26/05/2022-25/05/2029 - 400,000 - - 400,000
26/05/2021 0.772  26/05/2023-25/05/2029 - 300,000 - - 300,000
26/05/2021 0.772  26/05/2024-25/05/2029 - 300,000 - - 300,000
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael (Executive Director) ~ 06/11/2018 2.06 30/06/2019-05/11/2023 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
EXBBL(5/728) 26/05/2021 0.772  26/05/2022-25/05/2029 - 400,000 - - 400,000
26/05/2021 0772 26/05/2023-25/05/2029 - 300,000 - - 300,000
26/05/2021 0772 26/05/2024-25/05/2029 - 300,000 - - 300,000
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix (Executive Director) ~ 06/11/2018 2.06 30/06/2019-05/11/2023 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
EX ST LAE o ) 26/05/2021 0772 26/05/2022-25/05/2029 - 400,000 = = 400,000
26/05/2021 0772 26/05/2023-25/05/2029 - 300,000 - - 300,000
26/05/2021 0.772  26/05/2024-25/05/2029 - 300,000 - - 300,000
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick (Executive 06/11/2018 2.06 30/06/2019-05/11/2023 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
Director) 26/05/2021 0.772  26/05/2022-25/05/2029 - 400,000 - - 400,000
TIREE (57EE) 26/05/2021 0.772  26/05/2023-25/05/2029 - 300,000 - - 300,000
26/05/2021 0.772  26/05/2024-25/05/2029 - 300,000 - - 300,000
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Number of Shares issuable under the share options

BRERTUTRORGEAR
Cancelled/
lapsed As at
Exercise As at Granted Exercised during 30 June
Date of price  Exercise 1]July 2020 during during the year 2021
Name grant per Share period 20208 the year the year £R R2021%
4] RiA% SRiRE TR 7R18 QL ERfTE HE/%H 6A30H
(dd/mmiyyyy) (HKS)  (dd/mmiyyyy) (Note 1)
(R/R/%) (87)  (R/R/%) (1)
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP 06/1172018 206 30/06/2019-05/11/2023 300,000 - - - 300,000
(Independent Non-executive Director)
FRRRE (BEHEE A FH1)
(BU#H17EZ)
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald $BS JP 06/1172018 206 30/06/2019-05/11/2023 300,000 - - - 300,000
(Independent Non-executive Director)
FTEREE (F27EE ATHL)
(BU#81783)
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike 06/1112018 206 30/06/2019-05/11/2023 200,000 - - - 200,000
(Independent Non-executive Director)
BRERE(BUAH17EE)
Sub-total: 10,600,000 6,000,000 - - 16,600,000
INgF
Employees
g
In aggregate
Aft 2310312017 206 30/06/2017-29/06/2022 340,000 - - 340,000 -
2310312017 206 30/06/2018-29/06/2022 330,000 - - 330,000 -
06/1172018 206 30/06/2019-05/11/2023 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
05/0512019 1.56  04/05/2020-03/05/2025 750,000 - - 500,000 250,000
05/05/2019 156 04/05/2021-03/05/2025 1,500,000 - - 1,000,000 500,000
05/0512019 1.56  04/05/2022-03/05/2025 2,250,000 - - 1,500,000 750,000
26/05/2021 0772 26/05/2022-25/05/2029 5,874,400 . 5,874,400
26/05/2021 0772 26/05/2023-25/05/2029 4,405,800 4,405,800
26/05/2021 0772 26/05/2024-25/05/2029 4,405,800 4,405,800
Sub-total: 6170000 14,686,000 - 3670000 17,186,000
N
Other eligible grantees
HBAERARA
In aggregate 06/11/2018 206 30/06/2019-05/11/2023 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
Akt 05/05/2019 1.56  04/05/2020-03/05/2025 250,000 - - - 250,000
05/0512019 1.56  04/05/2021-03/05/2025 500,000 - - - 500,000
05/0512019 1.56  04/05/2022-03/05/2025 750,000 - - - 750,000
Sub-total: 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000
g
Total 19,270,000 20,686,000 - 3,670,000 36,286,000
At
Note: Bt -
(1) The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the (1) EERBREERLZAINORHKTERS

share options were granted was HK$0.82 per share.
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The estimated fair value of the share options granted during the
year ended 30 June 2021 was approximately HK$7.2 million. The
estimated fair value of the share options granted was measured using
binomial model with the fair value per share option ranged from
HK$0.33 to HK$0.37, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted.

The fair values calculated are inherently subjective and uncertain
due to the assumptions made and the limitations of the model used.
The value of a share option varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions. Any change in variables so adopted may
materially affect the estimation of the fair value of a share option.

Save as disclosed above, no share option was granted, cancelled
or lapsed under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme during the year
ended 30 June 2021.

The maximum number of Shares to be issued upon full exercise
of all the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is 73,600,000,
being 9.61% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
Listing Date.

The total number of Shares currently available for issue under the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is 36,286,000 Shares, representing
approximately 4.68% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at 30 June 2021.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME
The Company has adopted the Share Award Scheme on 30 June

2016, to recognise the contributions of and provide incentives
for the key management personnel including Directors and senior
management, employed experts and employees of the Group.
Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the Board,
pursuant to the trust deed, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a term of 10 years commencing on the adoption
date. The maximum number of Shares which may be awarded to a
selected participant under the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed
one per cent (1%) of the issued share capital of the Company in
each year. The Board shall not make any further award of awarded
shares which will result in the nominal value of the Shares awarded
by the Board under the Share Award Scheme exceeding two per cent
(2%) of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.
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As at 30 June 2021, the details of the share award granted and

outstanding under the Share Award Scheme are set out as follow:

MR2021F6HA308 » H EEFEI A TE R

R RIT R Z Bty REVFHBEIIMT

Cancelled/
Granted during Vested during lapsed during As at
Name As at 1 July 2020 the year the year the year 30 June 2021
i3S 7202057 A1H ERRW FRERE FROEH/ AR R2021F6A308
Directors 2,900,000 - - - 2,900,000
(Note 1) (Note 1)
X (Kaz1) (BsE1)
Other eligible grantee(s) 400,000 - - 50,000 350,000
(Note 1) (Note 1)
Hi & ERARA (Kaz1) (F5E1)
2,330,000 - - - 2,330,000
(Note 1) (Note 1)
(M5E1) (MEE1)
- 600,000 600,000 - -
(Note 2) (Note 2)
(BaE2) (Fi5E2)
Total

BF 5,630,000 600,000 600,000 50,000 5,580,000

Notes: B EE
1. These awarded shares was granted on 17 July 2018 with the exercise price 1. UL S RENAR D = 72018F7 17 B &KL - 176(E

of HK$1.5 per award shares. REREERN1.58T -

2. These awarded shares was granted on 30 June 2021 without exercise price. 2. It 55 22N AR 19 2 70202156 A308 1% I i I £&

Certain Shares have been purchased and 600,000 awarded shares
have been granted under the Share Award Scheme and 600,000

awarded shares have been vested. 50,000 awarded shares was

lapsed during the year ended 30 June 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “Share Option
Schemes” and “Share Award Scheme” in this report, at no time
during FY2021 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement that would enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or

debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance subsisted in which a
Director or an entity connected with a Director was materially
interested, whether directly or indirectly, during or at the end of
FY2021.

DIRECTORS’ PERMITTED INDEMNITY
PROVISION

Under the Articles, every Director and officer of the Company acting
in relation to any of the affairs of the Company shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs and damages and expenses which
they or any of them shall or may incur or sustain by or omitted in
or about the execution of their duties in their respective office or
otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the

Group.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2021,

Company, the following persons/entities (other than the Directors
or Chief Executive of the Company) had, or were deemed to have,
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the
Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV

of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be

so far as was known to the Directors of the

kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

FTERRRAE2ARG REERK
DR R RE

R2021%F6 A30H

CBARBESHAA A
TAL /BB (BFIARAKRSTRAER
SN AR 2 B RO R A7) AR BA R0 P R B SRR
RERAREE %&Hﬂiﬂwﬂ%xv%%zm

D EMESC R AR % 22 BT I BR A A R 304
B _ﬁZaEﬁﬁf\‘ﬁ /,JE'JJ% 55 K ERE 1K)

FI6EFENELMANERS AR ¢

Interests Approximate
Name of substantial Long/short Number of Shares/  under equity percentage of
shareholder position Capacity underlying shares derivatives  Notes shareholding
. BAGTEIR
FERRER #R/ %R BB ke HERGBE  ET2EZE MW BA R
(%)
East Majestic Group Limited ~ Long position  Beneficial owner 207,988,049 - 1 26.83
IR EdfBA
EM Team Limited Long position Benefi_cial owner 46,006,000 - 1 5.93
iR EZBAA
Cheng Yu Tung Family Long position  Interest held by its 112,687,939 - 2 14.53
(Holdings 11) Limited HeE controlled corporations
BRBERBEESA
Cheng Yu Tung Family Long position  Interest held by its 112,687,939 - 2 14.53
(Holdings) Limited HE controlled corporations
B EXBEERSE
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited Long position  Interest held by its 112,687,939 - 2 14.53
HE controlled corporations
BRmERTEERE
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Long position  Interest held by its 112,687,939 - 2 14.53
Limited He controlled corporations
BAR (R BERAR BRBERBEERSA
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Long position  Interest held by its 112,687,939 - 2 14.53
Limited HE controlled corporation
AABREEBRAT BRmAXBEERA
Healthcare Ventures Long position  Ben fiaal owner 112,687,939 - 2 14.53
e EREAA
China Resources National Long position  Interest held by its 91,803,000 - 3 11.84
Corporation HE controlled corporations
TEEBALNAF B ERPEERE
CR Medical Long position  Interest held by its 91,803,000 - 3 11.84
ZEER HeE controlled corporations

BRHERBEESA
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Notes:

Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong was deemed to be interested in the 207,988,049 Shares
held by East Majestic Group Limited, being his controlled corporation, and
was also deemed to be interested in the 46,006,000 Shares held by EM
Team Limited, also being his controlled corporation. Dr. Sun’s interests in
Shares are disclosed in this annual report in the section headed “Directors’
and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company or its associated Corporations”.

Healthcare Ventures was wholly-owned by CTFE, which was wholly-owned
by Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited (“CTFH”). CTFH was held as to
81.03% by Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited (“CTFC”), which was in
turn held as to 48.98% by Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited
(“CYTF”) and as to 46.65% by Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited
(“CYTFII”). By virtue of the SFO, CTFE, CTFH, CTFC, CYTF and CYTFIIl were
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of Shares in which Healthcare
Ventures was interested.

Pinyu Limited was the beneficial owner of the Shares. Pinyu Limited was
wholly owned by Unison Champ Premium Limited, which was wholly
owned by CR Medical. CR Medical was held as to 35.76% by CRH
(Medical) Limited. CRH (Medical) Limited was wholly owned by China
Resources Healthcare Group Limited, which was wholly owned by CRH
(Healthcare) Limited. CRH (Healthcare) Limited was wholly owned by
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited, which was wholly owned
by CRC Bluesky Limited. CRC Bluesky Limited was wholly owned by China
Resources Inc., which was wholly owned by China Resources Company
Limited. Commotra Company Limited held 0.82% of CR Medical Commotra
Company Limited is wholly owned by China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited. By virtue of the SFO, Unison Champ Premium Limited,
CR Medical, CRH (Medical) Limited, China Resources Healthcare Group
Limited, CRH (Healthcare) Limited, China Resources Inc., China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited, CRC Bluesky Limited and China Resources
Company Limited were deemed to be interested in the same parcel of
Shares in which Pinyu Limited was interested.
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R —HRO T AR
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According to disclosure of interest filings available on the Stock
Exchange website, Snow Lake China Master Fund, Ltd. (“SLCMF”)
and Snow Lake China Master Long Fund, Ltd. (“SLCMLF")
beneficially owned 100,000,000 and 20,640,000 Shares
respectively. SLCMF was held as to 90.48% by Snow Lake China
Offshore Fund, Ltd. (“SLCOFL”) and accordingly SLCOFL was
deemed to be interested in the 100,000,000 Shares held by SLCMF
pursuant to the SFO. Snow Lake Capital (HK) Limited (“SLCHKL"),
which was wholly controlled by Mr. Ma Sean, was the investment
adviser to both SLCMF and SLCMLF respectively. Accordingly,
Mr. Ma Sean and SLCHKL were deemed to be interested in the
aggregate holding of 120,640,000 Shares owned by SLCMF and
SLCMLF pursuant to the SFO, representing, for illustrative purpose,
15.56% of the total issued share capital of the Company as at 30
June 2021. Out of these 120,640,000 Shares, 86,984,000 Shares
(representing, for illustrative purpose, 11.22% of the total issued
share capital of the Company as at 30 June 2021) are interests in
cash-settled equity derivatives.

Other than as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2021, the Directors
have not been notified by any person (other than the Directors or
Chief Executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save for the transactions mentioned below, none of such related
party transactions constituted a non-exempt connected transaction
or a continuing connected transaction of the Company pursuant to
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with
the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules

as and where applicable and relevant.
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Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
The Company has entered into certain non-exempt continuing
connected transactions, the annual caps and the actual transaction

amounts of which for FY2021 are set out as follows:
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FREBFERERS
ARBEBALETHRRFEBERS -
RV BRFENFELRERERR S SRR
o

H

o=

Actual transaction

Annual cap for Amount for

the year ended the year ended

30 June 2021 30 June 2021

Connected Transaction Connected Person (HK$’000) (HK$'000)

BZ2021%F 220215

6A30ALEE 6A30ALEE

MEELR MEBRRZLHE

HERXS BEAL (F#7x) (FEx)

A. Property Leasing Framework Agreement Rich Point Group 4,500,000 4,172,917
NEHRERRGH 2EXE

B. Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick  Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick 7,000,000 4,136,580
HEHEBENER DS FaEE

C. Medical Services Framework Agreement CTFE 29,000,000 17,497,030

ERERGERGH ARELE

The above non-exempt continuing connected transactions are
subject to reporting, announcement and, in respect to items (C)

above, independent shareholders” approval requirements.

In respect of item (C) above, upon the listing of the Company’s
Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, the Stock
Exchange approved the annual caps of this continuing connected
transaction and granted a waiver to the Company from compliance
with independent shareholders’ approval requirements.
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Property Leasing Framework Agreement

On 13 November 2015, the Company and Rich Point Group
entered into a property leasing framework agreement, and
on 6 September 2018, the Company and Rich Point Group
further entered into a first property leasing framework renewal
agreement (the “First Property Leasing Framework Renewal
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group leased properties
from Rich Point Group for the purposes of operating medical
centres and warehouses. During FY2021, the Group agreed
to continue leasing the properties leased from the Rich Point
Group after the expiry of the First Property Leasing Framework
Renewal Agreement. On 23 September 2021, the Company
entered into a second property leasing framework renewal
agreement with Rich Point (the “Property Leasing Framework
Agreement”) in respect of the properties of the Rich Point
Group for a term up to 30 June 2024. The major terms of the
agreement are set out as follows:

J with respect to the relevant leased properties, the
Company and/or its subsidiaries and the relevant
Rich Point Group member shall enter into individual
agreements which prescribe specific terms and conditions
of the leasing arrangements, including rental amount,
payment method and other relevant terms;

e the terms of the individual agreements shall be on normal
commercial terms or, from the Group’s perspective, more

favourable to the Group;

e the rental amounts payable under the lease agreements
shall reflect the then prevailing market rates and no less
favourable than the terms and conditions offered by
independent landlords or lessors of comparable premises;

and

e the Property Lease Framework Agreement shall
commence from the Listing Date until 30 June 2024 and
may be renewed by mutual consent of the parties.
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The management has made reference to the historical rentals
paid for such properties to ensure that the rents payable
under the Property Leasing Framework Agreement are fair
and reasonable to the Group. Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, the
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and executive Director of
the Company, holds more than 30% interests in Rich Point.
Accordingly, Rich Point is an associate of Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong
and a connected person under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The transactions contemplated under the Property
Leasing Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The annual cap for the total rent paid by the Company to
Rich Point Group for FY2021 was HK$4,500,000 and the
actual amount paid or payable to Rich Point Group was
HK$4,172,917.

Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick

On 13 November 2015, the Company and Dr. Lee Pak
Cheung, Patrick entered into a consultancy agreement, and
on 6 September 2018, the Company and Dr. Lee Pak Cheung,
Patrick further entered into a first consultancy renewal
agreement (the “First Consultancy Renewal Agreement with
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick”), pursuant to which the Group
appointed Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick, as a consultant to
provide Medical Services, in particular Dental Services, to the
Group. During FY2021, the Group agreed to continue engaging
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick as a consultant after the expiry
of the First Consultancy Renewal Agreement with Dr. Lee Pak
Cheung, Patrick. On 23 September 2021, the Company entered
into a second consultancy renewal agreement with Dr. Lee Pak
Cheung, Patrick (the “Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Lee Pak
Cheung, Patrick”) for a term up to 30 June 2024. The major
terms of the agreement are set out as follows:

o Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick shall provide Dental Services
to the Group;

e the annual fees charged by Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick
to the Group shall be negotiated on an arm’s length
basis, and shall be on normal commercial terms which,
from the Group’s perspective, are expected to be no less
favourable than those which the relevant members of
the Group could obtain from independent consultants of
similar expertise, experience and reputation for similar
role, scope of services and responsibilities; and
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e the Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Lee Pak Cheung,
Patrick shall commence from the Listing Date until 30
June 2024 and may be renewed by mutual consent of the

parties.

The Company has made reference to historical aggregate fees
paid by the Group for medical services provided by Dr. Lee
Pak Cheung, Patrick of similar scope of services to ensure that
the consultancy fees payable are fair and reasonable to the
Company.

Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick is a director of the subsidiaries
of the Company, and accordingly, a connected person of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
transactions contemplated under the Consultancy Agreement
with Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

The annual cap for the consultancy fees paid by the Company
to Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick for FY2021 was HK$7,000,000
and the actual amount paid or payable to Dr. Lee Pak Cheung,
Patrick was HK$4,136,580.

Medical Services Framework Agreement

On 13 November 2015, the Company and CTFE entered
into a medical services framework agreement, and on 6
September 2018, the Company and CTFE further entered into
a first medical services framework renewal agreement (the
“First Medical Services Framework Renewal Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Group shall provide Medical, Dental
and Auxiliary Services to the employees of CTFE and/or its
associates. During FY2021, the Group agreed to continue
providing medical, dental and auxiliary services to the
employees of CTFE and its associates after the expiry of the
First Medical Services Framework Renewal Agreement. On
23 September 2021, the Company entered into a second
medical services framework renewal agreement with CTFE (the
“Medical Services Framework Agreement”) for a term up to 30
June 2024. The major terms of the agreement are set out as

follows:

e  the Group shall provide Medical, Dental and Auxiliary
Services to the employees of CTFE and its associates;
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e the relevant members of the Group shall enter into
individual agreements which prescribe specific terms and
conditions, including scope of medical services, service

amount, payment method and other terms;

o the terms of, and the service amounts payable under,
each individual agreement will be negotiated on a case-
by-case and on an arm’s length basis, and shall be on
normal commercial terms which, from the Group’s
perspective, are no less favourable than those which
the relevant members of the Group could offer to
independent third parties, with a comparable scope of

services; and

e the Medical Services Framework Agreement shall
commence from the Listing Date for a term of three years

and may be renewed by mutual consent of the parties.

The management has made reference to the prevailing price of
medical services offered by the Group to other customers and
the historical service fees the Company received for medical
services with a similar scope to ensure that the service amounts
payable during the service period are fair and reasonable to the
Company.

CTFE is a substantial shareholder of the Company and,
accordingly, a connected person of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The transactions
contemplated under the Medical Services Framework
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the

Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap for the aggregate fees to be received by the
Company from CTFE for FY2021 was HK$29,000,000 and the
actual amount received or receivable by the Company was
HK$17,497,030.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

The Company’s independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the above non-exempt continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 30 June 2021 and confirmed
that:

(a) the transactions have been entered into by the Group in

the ordinary and usual course of its business;

(b) the transactions have been entered into either (i) on
normal commercial terms or (ii) (where there are not
sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether
they are on normal commercial terms) on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from

(as appropriate) independent third parties; and

(c) the transactions have been entered into in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

Shareholders as a whole.

KPMG, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. KPMG have issued their unqualified letter containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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The Company’s auditors have reported to the Directors that (i)
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Board; (ii) for transactions including the provision
of goods or services by the Group, nothing has come to their
attention that causes them to believe that the transactions were not,
in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group; (iii) nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions
were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and (iv) with
respect to the aggregate amount of each of the above continuing
connected transactions, nothing has come to their attention that
causes them to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.

The Company and all Directors had reviewed all connected
transactions and confirmed that the Company was in compliance
with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

The Company has not entered into any contract with any individual,
firm or body corporate to manage or administer the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Group during FY2021.
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EEEHRE

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Schemes and Share Award Scheme
as disclosed on pages 112 to 120 of this annual report, no
equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Company, or
existed during FY2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the relevant laws of the Cayman lIslands where the
Company is incorporated which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF THE PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
provided by the Snow Lake Group, and to the best knowledge,
information and belief of the Directors, the Directors confirm that
the Company had maintained a sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules during FY2021.

AUDITOR

KPMG retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditor of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming 2021 AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 September 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the shareholders of UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of UMP
Healthcare Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 141 to 291, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2021, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 30 June 2021 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBE RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement,
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. This matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on this matter.

FARETEE
MREAZTHEIREBERMANEERHE 2L
HARGEVBREANEAZR/REENS
He ERFAREHSRAMBHRABBETE
AUERERNE S TETREN - AT
HEZTHREHREBNER -

TEEERERFHNELEEZ2EERE
BREGRE I BEHRN T 18R &5 RN 124

Assessing potential impairment of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets
Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policy note 2.4.

The Key Audit Matter
BREBETER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWETNMEERARETEHR

As at 30 June 2021, the Group has goodwill of HK$165
million and indefinite-lived intangible assets of HK$57 million,
representing 23.8% and 8.2% of the Group’s net assets,
respectively.

R2021%6A308 - BEXEHEAEEISEEATRERTHN
EBVEES7ASET DRMEER ESREEEFEN23.8%K
8.2% °

Management performs impairment assessments of the goodwill
and indefinite-lived intangible assets which arose from business
combinations annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired.
EEEBFUHEGAHMELE R ERERFHNELEEETT
AR - KAEHHERB B REA L IRRERE AT
EITRERE ©

In performing such impairment assessments, management
compares the carrying value of each of the separately identifiable
cash-generating units (“CGUs”) to which goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangible assets have been allocated with their
respective recoverable amounts based on the greater of their fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use as determined by
discounted cash flow forecasts to determine if any impairment
loss should be recognised.

RETZZRENGEE  RETRSEIEMAHESRE BEE
HERESEBERERFUNBINEEZ B AIRBAIRACES
BUu(ReELEC]) WEAEREST KOS RETLER -
ARESRNIREAABEROEXAREAEEZESE RS
AASREFNEE °

Our audit procedures to assess potential
impairment of goodwill and indefinite-lived
intangible assets included the following:
BHEFEEERERFHNELEE LS
ERERRANETEZFAT

o assessing the management’s
identification of CGUs and the
allocation of assets to each CGU;

A EEEHReESAEUNEMNT
X URASREELFEUDENEE

o with the assistance of our valuation
specialists, assess the methodology
adopted by management in its
impairment assessments of goodwill
and indefinite-lived intangible assets
with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards;
ERMEEEROBET - £2ERTT
SR ERIMERR - FREEEBENG
BELERFHOELEE ZRERR
REMITE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

RS TR

ERETEE S

Assessing potential impairment of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets
Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policy note 2.4.

FEEERERFUNEBLEEZERERE
BRREGREBEHEZN T 18R S5 RN 6124

The Key Audit Matter
BRBEITER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BB NMEEERETEER

The preparation of discounted cash flow forecasts for the purpose
of assessing potential impairment of goodwill and indefinite-lived
intangible assets involves estimating future cash flows generated
from business and certain assumptions, including revenue growth
rates, professional services expenses rates and discount rates, can
be inherently uncertain.

ARAEEEMERFHNEBLEE CBEREMARBURIRR SR
EEAR  @FREAEEABOARARREREARETASGEF
ETHEAZENRR (BRBAZRR  EXRBEXRUEEX) -

We identified the assessment of potential impairment of goodwill
and indefinite-lived intangible assets as a key audit matter
because the year-end impairment assessments performed by
management contain certain judgemental assumptions which
could be subject to management bias.
BAKERERERFHNELEEZBERENETI REERE
FHEE WMDARERERFATERERSMASE THERR
HAugtaXeBB e RAMTE -

evaluating the key assumptions,
including revenue growth rates and
professional services expenses rates,
adopted in the preparation of the cash
flow forecasts for the purpose of the
impairment assessments of goodwill
and indefinite-lived intangible assets,
with reference to our understanding of
the business, historical trends, available
industry information and available
market data;

SERMEER  ELBY - G
EXEMETHEREN T BIE - FEFZ
RAEEERERFHNELEE 2R
EMmERSRERIMRANTIEZR
R(BERABEXREXERBEEX)

with the assistance of our valuation
specialist, assessing whether the
discount rates applied in the
discounted cash flow forecasts
prepared for the purpose of assessing
potential impairment of goodwill
and indefinite-lived intangible assets
were within a reasonable range by
comparing with companies operating in
the same industry;
ERFPEEERNH T BBEFE
NRAETH® - R ERmERER
FHNETEEZBEREMREHER
BeneRAMKRANUEREELES
BHEN
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FERETTEEH)

TEEERERFUNELEEZEERE
BRI BEREN F18R 25t B E N iE2.4 -

Assessing potential impairment of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets
Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policy note 2.4.

The Key Audit Matter
BRBEITER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BB NMEEFARETER

comparing the cashflow forecasts
prepared at the end of last year for the
purpose of impairment assessments
with the actual performance of the
businesses for the current year to
assess how accurate the cash flow
forecasts were, making enquiries of
management as to the reasons for any
significant variations identified and
considering if there was any indication
of management bias; and
BEFBEMGEMAEENRERER
BEANFEXBOBERRFETHLE
N ZREMETRBNEERE WA
EREEETAMBERENEREHNR
AR EREFEEFNEERERLD
PR R

performing sensitivity analyses on the
key assumptions, including revenue
growth rate, professional services
expenses rate and the discount rates,
adopted in the discounted cash flow
forecasts on the conclusions reached
in the impairment assessments and
assessing whether there were any
indicators of management bias in the
selection of these assumptions.

REBEFESLNGER  HHRRE
MEFARANTIERR (BRKALE
RX HERBEXRRRAEX) EITHU
Bof UHEEREZSBRERS
FEEMEEERZOTR -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting

process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations

or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

J Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

ITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
IT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
EMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we

have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

indepe
other

indepe
threats

ndence and communicate with them all relationships and
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
ndence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor’s report is Chui Kin Pong.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

23 September 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mERER

For the year ended 30 June 2021

EE2021F6A30HLFE
2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 THET THET
REVENUE A 5 622,765 557,484
Other income and gains E AU A K g 2 6 10,335 25,634
Professional services expenses EXEREEH (221,339) (216,653)
Employee benefit expense 8 THRHFAX (148,280) (140,923)
Property rental and related expenses ¥ 3 & & A3 5 &2 (10,784) (12,317)
Cost of inventories consumed BRETFERK (34,382) (30,851)
Depreciation and amortisation & N 5 (76,868) (78,269)
Other expenses, net Hth 32 1 # 58 (86,639) (28,384)
Finance cost A& AR 8 (3,566) (3,825)
Share of (loss)/profit of: ok (E51E), /A8 -
A joint venture —Ra&RrA (1,255) (167)
Associates = /N 1,333 1,677
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B B AT A 7 51,320 73,406
Income tax expense FSHE R 11 (19,783) (13,096)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FARRE 31,537 60,310
Attributable to: AT & 75 Ak
Owners of the Company ZAN/NSIEZ RSN 34,834 58,915
Non-controlling interests FEIE i an (3,297) 1,395
31,537 60,310
EARNINGS PER SHARE ARFREBEREFAA 13
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY LB R AR
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY
Basic BN HK4.58cents’Efll  HK7.79 cents/&
Diluted &8 HK4.58centsE{ll  HK7.76 cents/&fll
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEEBAR

For the year ended 30 June 2021

BIE2021F6HA30BILFE
2021 2020
2021%F 20204
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i FET THETT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRFE 31,537 60,310
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Htp2EB A (BE)
INCOME/(LOSS)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) HiEHHeEN»EEER
that may be reclassified to profit or ,Jﬂ’fﬁ%{)\/(ﬁéﬁa
loss in subsequent periods:
Changes in fair value of debt BRARBEFAEMEZE
investments at fair value through WARERIEER
other comprehensive income NhrEEE = (256)
Release of reserve upon disposal REEEARBETAEM
of debt investment at fair value THEENEBRER
through other comprehensive loss i 27) -
Exchange differences on translation HEINEBOEL Z5
of foreign operations 2,372 (1,463)
Share of other comprehensive DMh—EEERRH
loss of a joint venture H fth 2 H &5 18 - (44)
Share of other comprehensive Sh — & QR
loss of an associate Hih2HEEE - (37)
Net other comprehensive E/\\H%HH BRI REEM D EAE
income/(loss) that mHHMEEmB A (BE)
may be reclassified to profit or @%ﬁ
loss in subsequent periods 2,345 (1,800)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) RE®BBETEETmHEEEE
that will not be reclassified to profit HHEMEEU A (EE)
or loss in subsequent periods:
Changes in fair value of equity BEREARBEIA
investments designated at Hib2EBA(E8) 2
fair value through other Hx$&§ AR EEE
comprehensive income/(loss) 4,833 (29,495)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ FREMZEB A (FHE) -
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX IBR#H 18 7,178 (31,295)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME R 2HE KA #58
FOR THE YEAR 38,715 29,015
Attributable to: AT &5 M
Owners of the Company ZAN/NSIEZ ZSDN 42,012 27,620
Non-controlling interests FEFE RS FE 2 (3,297) 1,395
38,715 29,015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B B IR R 3R

As at 30 June 2021

R2021F6H30H
2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB RRE 14 99,430 96,424
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15(a) 73,666 82,152
Goodwill Bk 16 164,768 171,264
Other intangible assets Hith |\ & BE 17 61,681 76,972
Investments in joint ventures RaBRaKRE 19 7,970 -
Investments in associates REEE N AR E 20 4,501 8,546
Financial assets at amortised cost REHEAATENETREE 21 19,025 20,206
Investments at fair value through BAnBEFAHMLEE
other comprehensive income WA R E 22 23,603 23,187
Deferred tax assets BRI IA & B 32 1,417 1,691
Deposits RE® 25 20,544 21,977
Total non-current assets FnBEEME 476,605 502,419
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories "BE 23 9,198 9,083
Trade receivables 2 S EWFA 24 83,364 74,354
Prepayments, other receivables and  TE1J 518 + H {th i U 50 H
other assets NEADE B 25 18,088 32,423
Financial assets at fair value through &R BEFT AEBZER
profit or loss TREE 26 27,115 1,723
Financial assets at amortised cost HEEN AT ENETREE 21 14,046 35,646
Amounts due from associates JE Wk i N R FRIE 27 3,730 2,204
Amount due from a joint venture e & & R RIRIA 27 451 -
Amounts due from related companies J& U B i 2 5 308 28 1,220 1,220
Tax recoverable R 551 210
Pledged deposits EHRER 29 1,893 1,354
Cash and cash equivalents RelReEFEY 29 293,974 230,671
453,630 388,888
Assets of disposal groups classified SEABELRE
as held for sale MRl BE 47 39,742 =
Total current assets MENE ELRT 493,372 388,888
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B IR 3R

As at 30 June 2021

R2021%6H30H
2021 2020
20215 20204
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 3t FERT THET
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEE
Trade payables =) ANk 30 62,185 36,370
Other payables and accruals ﬁ{mﬁéﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁ'g%—l—%ﬁﬁ 31 64,376 62,584
Amounts due to associates FE < B 22 N B R IE 27 - 184
Amounts due to related companies AR NGIE O] 28 5,618 2,020
Amount due to a joint venture FEH—F'T—\,% EIEQE] 27 561 203
Lease liabilities HEAE 15(b) 38,731 43,420
Tax payable JE 15 1R 26,848 14,994
198,319 159,775
Liabilities associated with the disposal £ % 8 &35 {EH & 48 7
groups classified as held for sale B E 47 24,441 -
Total current liabilities MEVBEBTE 222,760 159,775
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFH 270,612 229,113
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERARBAE
LIABILITIES 747,217 731,532
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBRE
Lease liabilities HERE 15(b) 39,296 43,145
Deferred tax liabilities BEHIEAE 32 12,238 14,572
Provision Bt 33 2,627 3,308
Total non-current liabilities IR AaEEE 54,161 61,025
Net assets BEFE 693,056 670,507
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners KABEEAELER
of the Company
Issued capital B EITIRA 34 775 766
Reserves E 37 638,723 611,080
639,498 611,846
Non-controlling interests FEFE S A 2 53,558 58,661
Total equity R 693,056 670,507

Sun Yiu Kwong
Director

EZE
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Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GEEREER

Year ended 30 June 2021

BZE2021F6A30RILEFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
KLEREAEE
Shares held
under the ~ Share-
Share  Capital ~ share  based Fair Exchange Non-
Issued ~premium contrbuton ~ award  payment  value  Llegal fluctuation  Retained controlling ~~~ Total
apitl  account  reserve  scheme  reserve  reserve  reseve  reserve  profits Total  interests  equity
Rt
2B WRBA
B&f Rt g ETEE EEN OAEE EX FER
Ra %% BE  BRE  ARER BE EERE RORE GRAE ait BE RREE
Notes  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
it TEr  TRr TR TR TEn  TEn  TEr  TRT TR TR TR TR
note 34) (note 37) (note 36~ (note 37) note 37)
() () (Hbe) () (H7)
At30 June 2019 1019564308 758 387602F 37294 (14620F  58062F  7199% 12400 Q2M4F 1370604 61299 72967 085962
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 REERREEY
FlEN7E 22 - - - - - - - -8 RBe6 46y (339)
AT July 2019 (restated) 101957418 (£ E5) 758 387602 37294 (146200 56,082 7199 140 (224 134798 610129 72504 682,633
Profit for the year EmE - - - - - - - -SRI 135 60310
Other comprehensive loss for he year ERERREES:
Changes in fair value of equity BRLERIALS
investments at far value through other 2ENAHRERE
comprehensive income 2rEERD - - - - -9y - - 9493 - (9493
Changes in fair value of debt investments BLREBIALL
atfair value through other SENANERRA
comprehensive income 2rEERD - - - - - (B - - - (50 -
Exchange differences on tanslaton of TEBNFBNELER
foreign operations - - - - - - - (1,463) - (1,463) - (1,463)
Share of other comprehensive oss of HMi-ERELAN
an asociate Eh2EEE - - - - - - - (37) - (7) - B7)
Share of other comprehensive loss AMi-BRELA
of a joint venture Ah2EEE - - - - - - - () - () - (]
Total comprehensive income fo the year ERZENAAE - - - - - (9500) - (%) %915 e 1395 29015
Acapisiton of non-controllng nterests WEHERER - - - - - - - - 9 o 050
Deregistration of subsidiaries KBARBELR - - - - - - - - - < 49 49
Dividends paid/payable to non-contrlling interests 2/ B 32k X & - - - - - - - - - - 5674 (15674
Final 2019 dividend WIERERR 1 - - - - - - - - (19065 (19,065) - (19,06
Inerim 2020 dividend ANEFERE 1 - - - - - - - - W W - 4
Shares issued nlieu of cash dividend EknURERSRE M 810475 - - - - - - - 1048 - 104
Issue of shares under the share award scheme ~ BERARBHEEERE 36 - (465) - 189 (1,69 - £ S S 260) = (260)
Purchases of shares for the share award scheme ~ BRAEBHAZENORG 36 - - - (708) - - L o o (708) o (708)
Equity-setted share-based payment arrangements [ EXEE # i f3 2
ARnARRE 35,36 - - - - (DY = = = S (1PAL - (Y
Transfr to legal resenve ERTiTER - - - - s = 14 = (124) = = =
At 30 June 2020 1200564308 700 397612 37294 (13430 45151 (22301) 1364 (4019 169409 611846 58,661 670,507
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GmEREEBER

Year ended 30 June 2021

BE2021F6A30HLFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
KARERARE
Shares held
under the  Share-
Share  Capital ~ share  based Fair Exchange Non-
Issued ~premium contrbuon ~ award  payment  value Legal fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
apital  account  reseve  scheme  reserve  reseve  reseve  reserve profit Total interests  equity
Rt
iBid  URGA
BEf Rt g ETER  EEN OQAEE EX FER
Ra iR BE  DRE NHEE BE EERE ROER GRNE &it BE REEE
Notes  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS'000 ~ HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
it Thr TR TEn TR TEr  TEn  TEn TR  TEr TR TET  TER
note 34) (note 37) (note 36~ (note 37) note 37)
(H4) (b7 (e (H37) (i)
AtT July 2020 #00£7R18 766 397612 37294 (13430) 45151 (22301) 1364 (4019 169409 611846 58,661 670,507
Proit or the year EmE S - - - 2 - - S OMBE B B27 35y
Other comprehensive incomel(lss) for the year: ~ ERERZEY )/ (BB :
Changes in fair value of equity BRrEETAER
investments at fair value through other SEYABEEE
comprehensive income MMEBHEEY - = = = S48 = = S48 -4
Exchange diffrences on tanslaton of FEENEHNES 2R
foreign operations - - - - - - - 1n - - m
Release of reserve upon disposal of debt REERDAREFA
investment at fair value through other E2EAAD
comprehensive income [EREEREREE - - - - - 27) - - - 27) - (27)
Total comprehensive income for the year ERZERALE - - - - - 4,806 - 2370 e 4012 (3297 38715
Acquisition of non-contrlling interests e EnRiES = = = = = = = - 09 (1,729 834 (56)
Deemed disposal of nterest inasubsidiary  BfELENERTER - - - - - - - -5 W () 240
Dividends paid/payable to non-contrlling interests 27/ B3 2% %55 2 = - - - - - - = = = (825) (825)
Final 2000 dividend NERERE 1 - - - - - - - - (200600 (20060 - 20060
Interim 2021 dividend NERERE 1 = - - = = - = - 7658 (7659) - 765
Shares issued in lieu of cash dividend KRR ER SRS W4 9 11403 - (233) - - - - -1 - 1IN
Purchases of shares for the share award scheme S REFEEENRN 36 = = - (1,030 = = = = - (1,00 - (1,030
Equity-setted share-based payment amangements w&fmfuwmuw A
ROFRZH 3.3 - - - - - - - - -
Transfer to legal reserve %i/ﬁﬁﬁ - - - - - - 17 - (10m - - -
At 30 June 2021 0156308 715 409015 37294 (14693 47542 (174%) 2571 (1647) 176136 639498 53,556 693,056
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

Year ended 30 June 2021

BZE2021F6A30RILEFE
2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt =E FHET TETT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHNESRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B B¢ B A B 51,320 73,406
Adjustments for: I B IRFE
Finance cost RN 8 3,566 3,825
Share of profits and losses of EiEEERRNBERER
joint ventures (1,333) 167
Share of profits and losses of associates JE & B 2 N B NE K B 1R 1,254 (1,677)
Bank interest income RAT A B A 6 (114) (1,405)
Interest income on financial assets }:ﬁzfiﬁﬁﬁk$§+§ﬁ'ﬂ
at amortised cost TREEMNF WA 6 (2,881) (4,078)
Interest income on investments at fair BRARBERAHEM
value through other comprehensive PHRARKE
income ORI RSN PN 6 (281) (377)
Dividend income from financial assets XA A BEFABZRZ
at fair value through profit or loss TREENRKRSKA 6 - (96)
Dividend income from investments BEAnEBESAEMEZE
at fair value through other WA Z &R B WA
comprehensive income 6 (85) (4,747)
Fair value (gain)/losses on BRAfBEFABRZ
financial assets at fair value TREENAAEE
through profit or loss (M) EHE 7 (188) 677
Fair value loss/(gain) on other assets HiWBEN R AEE
BB (W) 7 910 (6,544)
Fair value gain on derivative financial ~ T4 & T EK
instrument A EEWE 6 - (743)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries BB A A Y Y e 6 (2,610) (1,229)
Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries Bt 8 2 A S A T A W e 6 = (697)
Write-off of items of property, WiEmE - BE K
plant and equipment RIBIER 7 = 445
Write-off of inventories WiETE 475 -
Depreciation of property, ME - BERZENE
plant and equipment 7 21,173 20,877
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 7 51,205 48,135
Amortisation of other intangible assets /HﬁﬂﬂﬁfﬁFﬁﬁﬁ 7 4,490 9,257
Write-off of trade receivables 58 ﬁ%ﬂgqi 7 = 234
Impairment of prepayments, other TEATFRIE Eﬁﬁ}*ﬂﬂz%ﬁﬁ&
receivables and other assets Eﬁﬂﬁ&/ﬁ“ﬁ 7 4,082 =
Reversal of impairment of amounts due 1 [T & Y B 48 1 A 5K I8
from associates RIE 7 - (746)
Impairment of items of property, plant — #% - FE KR &EE
and equipment B 7 — 135
Impairment of right-of-use assets & RH#EE ERE 7 = 57
Impairment of investment cost in an REEE R BRIIREKAZ
associate B 7 — 630
Lease modification HEET 7 (6) -
Impairment of goodwill BN 7 20,015 -
Gain on deemed disposal of previously 31 & 5L AT A B & A 7
held interest in an associate HﬁZf&ﬁnmuﬂl 6 (1,576) -
Rent concessions R 2 15(b) (1,581) (1,987)
Equity-settled share-based payment VAR 25 45 DA RR A7)
expense/(reversal of equity-settled BEBONRALZ
share-based payment expense) (eI EREED
AR BEMA N KAL) 7 2,391 (11,238)
150,226 122,281
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERTRER

Year ended 30 June 2021

BLE2021F6H30BILFE
2021 2020
202145 20204
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FAT
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE EMm), wd (603) 2,164
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables & 5 &Yk IE (3L H0), B (7,552) 31,420
Increase in prepayments, other TR RIE - H At U FRIR
receivables and other assets Ko HAth & EE 2 0 (14,400) (1,310)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due JE W & R R EUIE
from associates (3& )R (1,526) 4,060
Increase in amount due from a FEU & & R R FIB AN
joint venture 451) -
Decrease in amounts FE IR BEESE R B ER IR
due from related companies Vo 118 2,417
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables B 5 T sEg i, Ol ) 25,927 (12,277)
Decrease in other payables Hih B REFTER
and accruals B (4,334) (10,867)
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to  JE{J B & A T 3018
associates CR ) /380 (184) 46
Increase in amount due to a JER—fE &R R FIEE M
joint venture 358 -
Increase in amounts due to related FE A< BEESE R B R IB 1 A0
companies 32,836 1,386
Cash generated from operations CEEEELNIR® 180,415 139,320
Interest received 2 U FE 114 1,406
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEBMEFH (7,858) (10,528)
Overseas taxes paid ERRNERIN TR = (2,454)
Net cash flows from operating activities K& FHELRESREFE 172,671 127,744
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZHNRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Interest income on financial assets at RE K AT ER
amortised cost TREEMNFEWA 2,881 4,078
Interest income on debt investments BAREBAEFAEMEEIEA
at fair value through other BB 1 E B R B A
comprehensive income 281 377
Dividends received from investments BUIZ AR EBEFAEMEE
at fair value through other WARRE RS
comprehensive income 85 4,747
Dividends received from financial assets B UIE A 7 BEE ABZEH
at fair value through profit or loss TREENRS = 96
Dividends received from associates B U & A F R B 2,650 -
Acquisitions of subsidiaries/businesses UK BE KB A A ET 39 (11,710) (8,932)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR 40 (10,425) (808)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests 4 B JF %2 i #E 25 (163) -
Decrease in balances with HE &R R) 2%
joint ventures 8 = 23
Deregistration of a joint venture BE R EIRE W = 947
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEEITRER

Year ended 30 June 2021

BZE2021F6A30RILEFE
2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt =E FHET TETT
Purchases of items of property, BEWE BEK
plant and equipment HEEA (16,861) (13,432)
Additions to intangible assets //J\Eﬁﬁ/QF (2,084) (6,851)
Proceeds from redemption of ORI AT 28
financial assets at amortised cost S REEMMSHE 42,121 20,503
Purchases of financial assets Eﬁ,\&ﬁﬁﬁ}il"u‘f’zm
at amortised cost SREE (19,149) (15,348)
Proceeds from disposal of investments &AL BETA
at fair value through other H 2 MR AR
comprehensive income RE PSR 5,497 -
Purchases of investments at fair value E%,\TE@/LETETE A
through profit or loss BENRE (25,204) -
Deposits paid for purchases of items BEWE KERRHBIEER
of property, plant and equipment XMERE R (6,644) (11,150)
Increase in pledged time deposits 1 7E B 17 38 0 (539) (1)
Net cash flows used in investing RETHFTARERERE
activities (39,264) (25,751)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEZHNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of shares for the A1 B R =T &8 B Ak fp
Share Award Scheme 36 (1,030) (708)
Dividends paid 2 AR (16,539) (13,762)
Dividends paid to non-controlling Eﬁé‘ﬁ HX% AR R
interests (825) (15,675)
Lease payments itk AN 41(b) (47,248) (43,890)
Interest paid EXREIPSN (3,566) -
Net cash flows used in financing RETHARERERRE
activities (69,208) (74,035)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH RE&RRLSZEY
EQUIVALENTS ¥ F 8 64,199 27,958
Effect of foreign exchange rate SNEFE R E B 2 & H R
changes, net 1,942 (4,931)
Cash and cash equivalents of a disposal DEAFBIELE 2 HEHERIZ
group classified as held for sale ReRBASEED (2,838) -
Cash and cash equivalents at FUYRERREEEY
beginning of year 230,671 207,644
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRESRBRSEEY
END OF YEAR 293,974 230,671
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERREEENEHRD T
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Ve MIRTTHE &% 29 293,974 158,771
Non-pledged deposits with original RERERRIBBER/DR
maturity of less than three months =8 A B EEIRF 5K
when acquired 29 - 71,900
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRIE & RIREEEY 293,974 230,671
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M RRM

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited is a limited liability

company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The principal
place of business of the Company is located at 27/F., Wing On
House, 71 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were principally engaged in the
provision of healthcare services which include:

. corporate healthcare solution services;

. medical and dental services;

J medical imaging and laboratory services;

J other auxiliary medical services; and

J healthcare management services

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board

of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 27 November 2015 (the “Listing”).

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ 2021 ANNUAL REPORT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

1.

e B S R MY R

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

PNEAIREEER (&)
B B A T & B

ARREEMBRAZFENT -

follows:
Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and business share capital the Company activities
AL/ R BRTER/ ADFRELE
8 RExHH BT ES RELA IERE
2021 2020
2021 2020
UMP Healthcare Limited Cayman Islands/ US$0.01 100 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong
UMP Healthcare Limited REHS/ A 0.01%7T RERR
UMP Medical China Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$0.01 100 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong
UMP Medical China Holdings Limited EERUHE/ B 0.01%7 REZR
AP Care Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Provision of medical and
laboratory services
AP Care Limited B 10,000/7C REER R BRI
Dr. Lee Dental Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 Provision of dental services
FEEFHTLER R 1T BR{t T MR
ProCare Medical Imaging & Laboratory Hong Kong HKS$1 85 100  Provision of medical imaging and
Centre (Kowloon) Limited laboratory services
ERBETARRIRT O E) AR, R 1T RUBSYERICRRTH
UMP Dental Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Provision of dental services
BaBHIRTLBR B 10,000/ 7 RH I R
UMP Medical Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Investment holding and provision
of medical services
pREHTOARAE R 1007 RARRRREHERRE
UMP Medical Centre (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Provision of medical services
BREHTL(BE)BR! R 100 7T RUERRS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M RRM

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

AEAIREEEE (®)
M B AR E R ()

Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and business share capital the Company activities
AL/ R BRTEE/ AR TR
28 RERHE )8 Ll IERE
2021 2020
20214 2020
UMP Medical Centre (New Territories) Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 100 100 Provision of medical services
BRgBHL (IR BR] R BT R ERRY
UMP Professional Management Limited Hong Kong HK$50,000,012 100 100 Investment holding and
provision of corporate
healthcare solution
BoBBEXEERRAA B 50,000,012/ 72 REERRRACEERRE
BRANR
UMP Professional Management (Macau) Macau MOP10,000 100 100 Investment holding and
Limited provision of corporate
healthcare solution
UMPEXEE (RF1) B RAA BF 10,0002 9% REERRRACEERRE
BRANR
UMP Specialist Medical Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Provision of medical services
BoEBENERTLAR R 1007 RUERRY
UMP Healthcare China Limited Cayman Islands/ Us$1 80 80 Investment holding
(“UMP Healthcare China") Hong Kong
BaBBTEARAR (HABBTE])  REHR/ER [E REARK
T RBEMDHER A A PRC RMB3,500,000 80 80  Provision of healthcare and
medical services
IRRRADBERAF T AFRH3,500,0007T RHEBERELERRS
FARERZEERAR PRC RMB3,500,000 80 80 Provision of healthcare and
medical services
LBERFZBERAFY T AE#3,500,0007 RHEERELERRS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

e

AR REME

B ES MR AR MR

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

B8 @

B ARER(E)

Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and business share capital the Company activities
EMAL/ R BRTER/ ADFEL
£ REXHE ERRAR g Hid] TERE
2021 2020
20215 20208
FERBRMAZHERARY PRC RMBS5,000,000 80 80  Provision of healthcare and
medical services
LERBRADBERAFY f AE5,000,0007T REERRERERRY
238 Day Surgery & Endoscopy Centre Limited  Hong Kong HK$10,000 68 68  Provision of day surgery and
endoscopy services
BSABFHRAREFLERAT B 10,000/ 7T REABFHRARERERE
238 Specialist Medical Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 60 60  Provision of medical services
BEENERFLAERLA B 10,000/ 7T REERRTY
Metro International Clinic Limited Macau MOP100,000 69 69  Provision of medical services
BRXEERMERAA R 100,000 REERRT
ProCare Medical Imaging & Laboratory Hong Kong HK$10,000 62.5 62.5  Provision of medical imaging
Centre Limited laboratory services
ERBEYERIBRTLERAT &k 10,000/ 70 REBBZERILBRE
UMP Central Dental Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$100 90 90  Provision of dental services
FEBBIRDL (FR)BRAR Bk 10070 RRAL TR IR
New Season Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10 60 60  Provision of medical imaging and
(“New Season”) laboratory services
VIEERARAR ([LIB]) &k 1087 REBEYERILRRE
HARINEBLAERAR O PRC RMB15,000,000 80 80  Provision of healthcare training
and consultation services
e (RY) ERFABRAT Y HE AR H15,000,0007C REBESRESE RADRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R MY R

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

AEAIREEEE (®)
M B AR E R ()

Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and business share capital the Company activities
MR/ BRTEE/ AR AR
28 REXBE BN RELHl IRER
2021 2020
2021 2020F
SKP Medical Group Limited (“SKP Medical’) ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 70 70 Investment holding and
provision of medical
physiotherapy services
ERBREEERAR((ENEE]) R 10,0007 70 RERRRRHEERMDARRG
Health Network Medical Centre (Shatin) Hong Kong HK$100 55 55 Provision of medical services
Limited (“Health Network”)
RREHTL (DR BRAR () BR 10027 RRERRS
SkinCentral Limited (“SkinCentral”) Hong Kong HK$ 1,000,000 60 60  Provision of dermatological
services
ENBaREFLARAR(TEMN]) BB 1,000,000 7T PG B R
BEBBBENR(EM)BRART O PRC RMB1,000,000 80 80  Provision of medical services
BaBRERMR (88 BRATY T AE#1,000,00070 RHERRS
Flash Mover Limited  (“Flash Mover”) Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 25 Provision of magnetic resonance
imaging services
REARAR V([RE)) R 10,000/ 7T B R IRA R R
BEMABRENBAERARAR OV PRC RMB?7,000,000 80 - Provision of healthcare
consultation services
AEMARKELRERBRAF T AE#7,000,0007¢ RHBRERERDRY
BEHCERREERTLBR PRC RMB?7,000,000 80 - Provision of healthcare training
services
AEBCERREERTOBRAA il AE%7,000,0007¢ REERRESINRS

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ 2021 ANNUAL REPORT



CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

(a)

These subsidiaries are registered as limited liability
companies under PRC Law. 24% equity interests of these
subsidiaries are held on trust by a former non-controlling
shareholder on behalf of the Group. In the opinion of the
directors, through various contractual agreements entered
into between the Group and the former non-controlling
shareholder, the Group obtains control over these
subsidiaries through a 80% owned subsidiary, UMP
Healthcare China Limited. Accordingly, these subsidiaries
are accounted for as wholly-owned subsidiaries of the

Group.

These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned

enterprises under PRC law.

On 31 March 2021, the Group acquired the remaining
75% equity interest in Flash Mover from an independent
third party. Further details of this business combination
are included in note 39 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The subsidiary was established during the year ended 30
June 2021. As at 30 June 2021, the paid-up share capital
of this subsidiary was RMB1,400.

The subsidiary was established during the year ended 30
June 2021. As at 30 June 2021, the paid-up share capital
of this subsidiary was RMB1,400.

Except for UMP Healthcare Limited and UMP Medical China
Holdings Limited, the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by

the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R MY R

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for equity investments, debt investments and certain
other assets which have been measured at fair value. These
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand

except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June
2021. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in

assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The consolidated financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group:

— Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a Business

— Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-related Rent
Concessions

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.
Impacts of the adoption of the amended HKFRSs are discussed
below:

Amendment to HKFRS 3, Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business and
provide further guidance on how to determine whether a
transaction represents a business combination. In addition, the
amendments introduce an optional “
permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is an asset rather than business acquisition,
when substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group
of similar identifiable assets.

concentration test” that

The Group has applied the amendments prospectively to
transactions for which the acquisition date is on or after 1 July
2020.

Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions

The amendment provides a practical expedient that allows
a lessee to by-pass the need to evaluate whether certain
qualifying rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic (“COVID-19-related rent
concessions”) are lease modifications and, instead, account for
those rent concessions as if they were not lease modifications.

The Group has adopted the amendments and applies the
practical expedient to all qualifying COVID-19-related
rent concessions granted to the Group during the year.
Consequently, rent concessions received have been accounted
for as negative variable lease payments recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which the event or condition that triggers
those payments occurred. There is no impact on the opening
balance of equity at 1 July 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, and a new
standard, HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are not
yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2021 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
developments include the following which may be relevant to
the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework

TR BHRERREIROEFTA - LB 2R
Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and

Equipment Proceeds before Intended Use

e B S R MY R

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

2.3 EEMEEARERZEBUE

4R 45 % B
HEZRLUWEUBHRRAMH g
B AgE B — RINEET R —EHHER
BB BRELEREN7REBEA -
ZIEERREE2021F6A308 EFE
BARER - AEARR L ERBIREPR
Mo LATEBHASEEH -

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
RUATNEHSZBHARZ
SETHIE A

1 January 2022
202291 H1H
1 January 2022

ERGTERB1RNEBRTAN - WX - BERRE  AEHZFZ KR 202241 A1H
Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 1 January 2022
BEGFEAEITRNERT AN BRIEEA —ETTERIA KA 202241 A1H
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle 1 January 2022
EHEM SRS ERI2018-2020F B H 2 F /2 2o 202251 A1H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of liabilities as current or non-current 1 January 2023
ERG BB 1RNEI AN EESEB B X IF R E 202351 A1H

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of

accounting policies

ARG ER RS A R BB F S &R EHZEH
EI B BRI R

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of accounting estimates

1 January 2023

2023%F1A81H

1 January 2023

TG ERE8RHER] NE AT 1351 41 E £ 2023F1H1RH

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising 1 January 2023
from a single transaction

BREGFEAUF12RNETNRGE - BEXZHEER R BRI IFBELHE 202351 1R

The Group is in process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these developments is expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the

consolidated financial statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities

require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made
to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may
exist. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures
is included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and
its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part of

the Group’s investments in associates or joint ventures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted
for under the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate or joint control over
the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any
retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between
the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss
of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the
retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised

in profit or loss.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in

profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within

equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as

a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test
of goodwill as at 30 June. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is,
from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash- generating units (“CGUs”"), or groups of CGUs, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group

are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the CGU (group of CGUs) to which the goodwill
relates. Where the recoverable amount of the CGU (group of
CGUs) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a CGU (or group of
CGUs) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of
is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the CGU retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments and debt
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best

interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable

inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to

the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level T — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either

directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset's or CGU’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R MY R

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same

group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the

other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow

subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the

same third party;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

=

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services

to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R MY R

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal

annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings Over the shorter of 50 years and
the remaining lease terms
shorter of 20% and the

remaining lease term

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and office 20%

equipment
Medical equipment 20%
Computer 33.3%
Motor vehicle 33.3%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at

each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

relevant asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the CGU level.
Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an
intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Brand names
Brand names with indefinite useful lives are stated at cost less
any impairment losses, and are not amortised.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful economic lives of 3 to 10 years.

Software

The development cost is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its
estimated useful economic life of 1 year.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities
to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing
the right to use the underlying assets. At inception or on
reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component
and non-lease components, the Group adopts the practical
expedient not to separate non-lease components and to
account for the lease component and the associated non-lease
components (e.g., property management services for leases of
properties) as a single lease component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M RRM

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:
Leased properties 2 to 9 years

Office equipment 5 years

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments to
be made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a
purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by
the Group and payments of penalties for termination of a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate. The variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change
in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

The Group’s lease liabilities are presented separately in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the recognition exemption for
leases of low-value assets to leases of office equipment

that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.

(c)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in
the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts
with customers, in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

Except for investment in equity securities, in order for a
financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost
or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs
to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPP1”) on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective
of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash
flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling
the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and
measured at amortised cost are held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified and
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding
to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business models
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by

regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on

their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are subject
to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation
and impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and computed in the
same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised
cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative
fair value change recognised in other comprehensive income is

recycled to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation, and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an

instrument-by-instrument basis.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments) (Continued)
Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as other income in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss when the right of payment has been established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably, except when the Group
benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of
the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in
other comprehensive income. Equity investments designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income are not subject
to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as other
income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when
the right of payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M RRM

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

24 EEESTBEME ®)

RERHEMEHMEE (8)
BREE(E)

EEZR LA BEFARMZERALE
BEE(REKE) ()
ZETREENERMERETERE
Fat AR BRER - EX(IEEY - &
REBREBENEAIRERAREER
BB TEENA FTER  RENEA
BaRPRERID/EMEA  EEREE
RAE R E B8 E— & D KRB TS
BT ESEAERIN - RULFBERT
ZFERBENEMEERAALR < H5E S
BARBESAEGE2EKRANBEAR
BN RENGTE -

T

BAABEFAB G EHEE
ARBEFABENEREEAUAR
EBERGAMBIRARIEK ALK

BENESHFERNGEBRERIE -

o
T

S

J

=

It 3R Bl B 15 AN 5 [ 3 B TS R B I 0 1
BRARBEAAHMGEERAETOR
MTETARBARE - DBREAA
BEABRZBEANRENRSESN
e - ER B AR BN s AT RER
AREB BRI T2
TREGABERTERREMBKA -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated

statement of financial position) when:

e  the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have

expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of

the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of

consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows
from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,

including historical and forward-looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, the Group applies the low credit risk simplification.
At each reporting date, the Group evaluates whether the
debt investments are considered to have low credit risk using
all reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation,
the Group reassesses the external credit ratings of the debt
investments. In addition, the Group considers that there has
been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual

payments are more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in
full before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is
no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash

flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except
for trade receivables which apply the simplified approach as
detailed below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as
its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs with policies as described above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at amortised
cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under

the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is

recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair
value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are taken
directly to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Shares held under the share award scheme

Where shares are acquired by the share award scheme from
the market or by electing for scrip in lieu of cash dividends,
the total consideration of shares acquired from the market
(including any directly attributable incremental costs) or under
the scrip dividend scheme is presented as shares held for the
share award scheme and deducted from total equity.

Upon vesting, the related costs of the vested awarded shares
purchased from the market and shares acquired under the scrip
dividend scheme (dividend shares) are credited to shares held
for the share award scheme, with a corresponding decrease
in the share-based payment reserve for awarded shares and a
decrease in retained profits for dividend shares.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be

made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

A provision for reinstatement costs is recognised when a
contractual obligation under the terms of an operating lease
has arisen to reinstate a leased property at the end of the lease.
Reinstatement costs are provided at the value of the expected
costs to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting
period using estimated cash flows and an equivalent asset is
recognised and depreciated over the term of the operating
lease. The estimated future costs of reinstatement are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
Changes in the estimated future costs are added to or deducted
from the cost of the corresponding asset.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group

operates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R MY R
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)
Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

J when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting

profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

J in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences,
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)
J in respect of deductible temporary differences associated

with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When
the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it
is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than
one year, revenue is measured at the present value of the
amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the
Group with a significant financial benefit for more than one
year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction
price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Details of the Group’s revenue recognition policy is described

as below:

(a)

Revenue from the provision of healthcare solution
services is recognised upon the provision of the relevant
services or on a time proportion basis over the terms of
the fixed-fee service contracts (including annual retainer
and capitation plans). Further details are explained in the
accounting policy for “fixed-fee service contracts” below;

Revenue from the below services are recognised as

services are rendered:
- medical and dental services;
- healthcare management services; and
- administrative support services

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of

the financial asset; and

rental income under operating leases is recognised on the

straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Fixed-fee service contracts

The Group has certain medical, dental and other service
contracts, in which the Group agrees to provide specific
services over the terms of the contracts for a fixed fee in which
the level of services depends on uncertain future events (the
“Fixed-fee Service Contracts”). The Fixed-fee Service Contracts
are in general of one to two years and the Group receives the
related service fees upfront. The contract customers cannot
recover the service fee upon the expiration of the respective
fixed-fee service contract periods irrespective of whether the
plan members utilised any services under the Fixed-fee Service

Contracts.

At the end of each reporting period, tests are performed to
ensure the adequacy of the contract liabilities under the
Fixed-fee Service Contracts. In performing these tests, the
current best estimates of future contractual cash flows under
the Fixed-fee Service Contracts are used. Any deficiency is
immediately charged to the consolidated statement of profit or

loss by establishing a provision for losses.

Fees received or receivable under the Fixed-fee Service
Contracts are recognised on a time proportion basis (i.e.,
straight-line basis) over the terms of the Fixed-fee Service
Contracts. At the time of revenue recognition, plan members
may not utilise any services under the Fixed-fee Service
Contracts and hence, no direct cost will be incurred by the
Group in association with the professional services rendered
by the doctors, dentists and auxiliary service providers.
Accordingly, expenses incurred in connection with the Fixed-
fee Service Contracts are charged to the consolidated statement

of profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).

Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes, a share award
scheme and warrants scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors), consultants and a business partner of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees, consultants and a business partner render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled

transactions”).

In situations where the share-based payment transactions
are with employees of the Group, the cost of equity-settled
transactions is measured by reference to the fair value of
the equity instruments at the date at which they are granted,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
these equity instruments are granted. In situations where the
share-based payment transactions are with non-employees of
the Group, the cost of equity-settled transactions is measured
by reference to the fair value of goods or services received,
unless that fair value cannot be estimated reliably. If the
Group cannot estimate reliably the fair value of the goods or
services received, the Group measures the goods or services
received, indirectly, by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments granted.

e B S R MY R

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

24 EESHBEME )

BRERE

BHRERANEEERHEE MRS
AR EP AR BN R (AREE
RE)ERER  BEAKEREASOET
AR (AREFEREEERIIRE

REHIHE) BHBERABR/EA -
LU 7 5% B RE AT K

RABIREBRETE - R EZETE
RABREEE - MANEEEBKR
TEH BERIA G B 2 mE R 42E &R
M- AEBERE (REES)  BERRE
BRAZRUARD AERONF EJE%ZHX
FE - BE BRI REBBHIRMHA
BIERER Iﬁﬁ’]ﬁﬁ(ﬂ%%ﬁu/ﬁéﬁiz
Z51) e

HABRD RERNNRR ZIAREEH
BERYR  AIMBSEREZIRFHHK
A2REaTARRIEANAAEE
AHE WEBMFER T AR GER

R A - BRI RERONRR Z I
FEUREERESYS  RIAEDREE
ZR WA RAEKNE MRS
MR R EBENE  BRIFEAREMGGTHE

NAEE - BEAREEEN ST
WEREIRBOQAEE  AIARNEERK
2REHOERTANL A BEMBE
EMEXEmAR -

2021F% » BMEBBKEERRAA

187



188

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

The fair value of the share options granted is determined by
an external valuer using a binomial model, further details
of which are given in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The fair value of the warrants granted is determined by
an external valuer using a Black-Scholes option pricing
model, further details of which are given in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised either in
employee benefit expense or other expenses, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which
the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions
at the end of each reporting period until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in
the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing
of an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date

of the modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Other employee benefits (Continued)

Pension schemes (Continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentages
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Macau are required to participate in a social security
fund operated by the government of the Macao Special
Administrative Region. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute certain fixed amounts of their payroll costs to
the social security fund. The contributions are charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the social security
fund.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held
for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying amount will
be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and the asset (or disposal group) is available
for sale in its present condition. A disposal group is a group
of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a single
transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets
that will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the above
criteria for classification as held for sale are met, regardless of
whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in the
subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-to-date
in accordance with the accounting policies before the
classification. Then, on initial classification as held for sale and
until disposal, the non-current assets (except for certain assets
as explained below), or disposal groups, are recognised at the
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
The principal exceptions to this measurement policy so far as
the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the
Company are concerned are deferred tax assets and financial
assets. These assets, even if held for sale, would continue to be
measured in accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in
this note.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset is
classified as held for sale, or is included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale, the non-current asset is not
depreciated or amortised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions.

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the
date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries,
an associate and a joint venture are currencies other than
the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the
end of the reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal
of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the
closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities

affected in the future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M RRM

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 30 June 2021 was
HK$164,768,000 (2020: HK$171,264,000). Further details of
impairment testing are set out in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Impairment of indefinite-lived intangible assets

The Group determines whether indefinite-lived intangible
assets are impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires
an estimation of the value in use of the indefinite-lived
intangible assets. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows
from the indefinite-lived intangible assets and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows. The carrying amount of the indefinite-lived
intangible assets at 30 June 2021 was HK$56,958,000 (2020:
HK$65,647,000). Further details of impairment testing are set
out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has

two reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) Corporate healthcare solution services (“Corporate
Healthcare Solution Services to Contract Customers”)
segment engages in the provision of corporate healthcare
solutions to contract customers; and

(b) Clinical healthcare services (“Clinical Healthcare
Services”) segment engages in the provision of medical
and dental services, health check and other auxiliary

services.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax.
The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured consistently
with the Group’s profit before tax except that interest income,
other income and gains, and share of profits and losses of joint
ventures and associates as well as head office and corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude goodwill, investments in joint ventures
and associates, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, financial assets at amortised cost, investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income, other assets and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude derivative financial instrument, and
other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these

liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the
then prevailing market prices.

4.

e B S R MY R

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

rE D HEFR
REEMES  ARBENHES RS
MBEHECEY  AANTRETL

WEEDE

@) EBFEREHERTERS (R

BHEFPRHELCREEREHER

TERBKD DB RANTPIEM
m%%iﬂ%&%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ F R

(b) MRAKBERREIRS ([HRKSEER
{2 BR 75 1) 20 &F B ¥E b 4L B A M 0T
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B MERBBE RS B M EERAS
RE o PERIVERAI 28, HBFE,
EBRT - RERABRRBEAFE BB
MR - SR EBRBAIAE,BRR A
AEERBAAE BT AE -
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RAIRBE R ESARBIHER XD
A X N AZETE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R MY R

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REFTHER @)
(Continued)
Year ended 30 June 2021 BZE2021F6A308 LFE
Corporate
Healthcare
Solution
Services Clinical
to Contract Healthcare
Customers Services Total
BENEF
R
BERERRE
fRRTT R e PR B8 R
BR % =62 IR 7% &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FET FET
Segment revenue: 2HEBULA -
External sales HNEBEH B 237,507 385,258 622,765
Intersegment sales 7 BB 3 & 1,263 100,978 102,241
238,770 486,236 725,006
Reconciliation: SH D -
Elimination of intersegment sales 53 5 R 8 & 4K 8 (102,241)
Revenue W A 622,765
Segment results o EELE 36,316 74,897 111,213
Reconciliation: SHED -
Interest income FLEM A 3,276
Other income H AU A 7,059
Share of profits and losses of: DAEME KRB
A joint venture —H&ERA (1,255)
Associates Bt 2 N A) 1,333
Corporate and other unallocated NA R EAM AR B X
expenses (70,306)
Profit before tax B A0 A1 A1 51,320
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Year ended 30 June 2021 (Continued)

4.

30 June 2021

2021F6HA30H

geEF>FER B

BZE2021%F6H30H L FE (&)

Corporate
Healthcare
Solution
Services Clinical
to Contract  Healthcare
Customers Services Total
AENEF
RELE
BRERRE
R TT R e PR B8 R
PR % =62 IR 7% &t
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
TAET AT FET
Segment assets DEEE 176,009 221,602 397,611
Reconciliation: SHED -
Elimination of intersegment 5> E i FE WK IR 1 8
receivables (31,129)
Corporate and other unallocated REIREMANIREE
assets 603,495
Total assets MEE 969,977
Segment liabilities pHEE 91,676 207,405 299,081
Reconciliation: FE -
Elimination of intersegment payables %3 & 5 & 1< 3k 18 K $4 (31,129)
Corporate and other unallocated REREMADEEE
liabilities 8,969
Total liabilities BEE 276,921
Other segment information: Hft oy MEH :
Depreciation and amortisation T E N 8 8,747 68,121 76,868
Capital expenditure* BEARFET* 13,919 18,376 32,295
Impairment of goodwill R (E - 20,015 20,015
Impairment of prepayment, other AN IR - HibRURIA
receivables and other assets REMEEZRIE - 4,082 4,082
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and & ERHXBREABYE BB RRE (B

equipment (including additions from the acquisition of a subsidiary)
and deposits paid for purchases of items of property, plant and

equipment.

EREKE-—RNBARZAE) RBE
M BERREREXNOHRIES -

20215F % » BaE

BEEBRAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R MY R

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

4, REHSIERE @)

Year ended 30 June 2020 B ZE2020F6A308 LFE
Corporate
Healthcare
Solution
Services Clinical
to Contract Healthcare
Customers Services Total
MEHNER
R E
B IRGE
S B2 K 58 &
AR 7 REE RS AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AT FET FET
Segment revenue: 2HEBULA -
External sales HNER 3H & 245,556 311,928 557,484
Intersegment sales 7 B 3H B 1,526 90,821 92,347
247,082 402,749 649,831
Reconciliation: SHED -
Elimination of intersegment sales 53 5 R 8 & 4K 8 (92,347)
Revenue A 557,484
Segment results P 55,267 31,643 86,910
Reconciliation: SHED -
Interest income FLEM A 5,860
Other income H AU A 19,774
Share of profits and losses of: DAENE KRB
A joint venture —MHEERF (167)
Associates RN 1,677
Corporate and other unallocated NA R EAM AR B X
expenses (40,6438)
Profit before tax B &1 A1 A1 73,406
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Year ended 30 June 2020 (Continued)

4.

30 June 2021

2021F6HA30H

geEF>FER B

BZE2020F6H308 L FE (&)

Corporate
Healthcare
Solution
Services Clinical
to Contract Healthcare
Customers Services Total
A& %R P
Rt
BRRRE
AR R B K 28 7%
PR %5 R AR5 CE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET
Segment assets DEEE 149,406 174,179 323,585
Reconciliation: JHE
Elimination of intersegment 5> E i FE WK IR 1 8
receivables (24,854)
Corporate and other unallocated NEREMADBLEE
assets 592,576
Total assets BEE 891,307
Segment liabilities PWEE 72,322 170,089 242,411
Reconciliation: FER -
Elimination of intersegment payables %3 & 5 & 1< 3k 18 K $4 (24,854)
Corporate and other unallocated REREMADEEE
liabilities 3,243
Total liabilities BAIR 220,800
Other segment information: Hft oy MEH :
Depreciation and amortisation e ey 8,886 69,383 78,269
Capital expenditure* BEARFET* 6,118 20,429 26,547
Impairment of items of property, W BERREHEEB B
plant and equipment AR - 135 135
Write-off of items of property, plant #5471 % - BE &
and equipment RiIER - 445 445
Write-off of trade receivables WIHE S e ERIE 222 12 234
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and E EARXBREAEDE  BERRE (2

equipment (including additions from the acquisitions of subsidiaries/
business) and deposits paid for purchases of items of property, plant

and equipment.

HEREKERE AT EBRE) KB

BEYE  BERRERE XNHNFRES °

fah A\ EE
L=

2021465 o

B REARAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R MY R

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)
Geographical information

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group operates

within three geographical locations, Hong Kong, Macau

and Mainland China. Further details of the geographical

information in respect of revenue from external customers are

set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

4.

REFFER (8

i 35 & B

HZE2021F6A30B L FE - AEBER
=EE (B - BPIRFPEAM) &
BER - BRARAINBEF W ARE
i E R 2 E— S BHRN G E B
RIS -

Non-current assets ERBEE
2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHT T T
Hong Kong BB 353,481 390,409
Mainland China A B A 61,885 51,970
Macau B P 3,294 4,128
418,660 446,507

The non-current asset information

above is based on the

locations of the assets and excludes rental deposits, financial

instruments and deferred tax assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from two major customers which accounted for 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue from the Corporate Healthcare
Solution Services to Contract Customers segment is set out

e B S R MY R

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

geEF>FER B

TEFFESNR

KEMBEREE (AAKEXAERAAG
MEPRHELCEBERRRBIRT ZRS
2 B AT10%IA LR R F) Bl A

below: HEHMT :
2021 2020

20214 2020%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Customer A ZEA 48,141 48,714
Customer B ZFB 23,739 22,959

No individual customers with whom transactions have
exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue for the year ended 30
June 2021 and 2020.

REVENUE

An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:

TEELXFEARAEERHE2021F &
2020F6 A30H IEFE WA #10% 2 B8
BEE -

i A
WAZ AT :

2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Revenue from contracts with customers FEF &4 A
Provision of corporate healthcare solution M&#HTFIEHPEEFRE
services to contract customers: BRRTT RS
Medical services BE RS 215,821 221,079
Dental services TEHR 21,686 24,477
Provision of clinical healthcare services: 2 Ik 2 B (R 2 AR 75 -
Medical services BE RIS 329,831 260,310
Dental services IR RS 55,427 51,618
622,765 557,484

202145% » BHABKEEARAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R MY R

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

5. REVENUE (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers
(i) Disaggregated revenue information

For the year ended 30 June 2021

5.

WA )
EEAHKA
() BHFZBAER

HZE2021F6H8308 L EE

Corporate

Healthcare
Solution

Services to Clinical
Contract  Healthcare

Segments Customers Services Total
MENEF
R E
BRARE
R R R PR 28 AR
7 &R i%3 R 62 iR 7% &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER THER
Type of services MR EE
Medical services BEIR 215,821 329,831 545,652
Dental services I R BR 75 21,686 55,427 77,113
Total revenue from contracts B F & LU A &5
with customers 237,507 385,258 622,765
Geographical markets b 32 T 35
Hong Kong BB 214,788 344,704 559,492
Mainland China R A i 6,383 36,910 43,293
Macau B P 16,336 3,644 19,980
Total revenue from contracts ~ BF A LW A 4258
with customers 237,507 385,258 622,765
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

5. REVENUE (Continued) 5. WA @)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) BEEAHWA (8)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) (i) RBIFZBAER(E)
For the year ended 30 June 2020 B E202066H30R L FE
Corporate
Healthcare
Solution

Services to Clinical

Contract Healthcare

Segments Customers Services Total
& #HEP
RELE
BRRRE
YIS B PR B8
7 &b PR 7% R & PR 1% X
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TETT TETT TETT
Type of services MR mE
Medical services BERS 221,079 260,310 481,389
Dental services o B R 7% 24,477 51,618 76,095
Total revenue from contracts B F & #) W A & 58
with customers 245,556 311,928 557,484
Geographical markets b 38 i 35
Hong Kong BB 223,379 275,078 498,457
Mainland China AR A b 4,125 34,256 38,381
Macau P 18,052 2,594 20,646

Total revenue from contracts BEAAHWALEEE
with customers 245,556 311,928 557,484
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M RRM

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

5.

REVENUE (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period and recognised from performance
obligations satisfied in previous periods:

5.

LONE D
EEAHWA (8

(0]

ROFZBAER (&)

TR 2NN AR E B R IL
AREHRNEHNBERARBE
HIMER W EA R TR A
T

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TET
Revenue recognised that was FFARSHYENEE
included in contract liabilities RN -
at the beginning of the reporting
period:
Provision of corporate healthcare 321> % B (R 2 AR R
solution services LESY 18,645 16,264
Performance obligations (i) BREME

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Provision of corporate healthcare solution services

The Group provides healthcare solution services by
entering into (i) capitation plan contract; (ii) annual
retainer contract; and (iii) fee for service contract with
contract customers. The performance obligation is
satisfied over time as services are rendered. Payment
is either paid upfront for capitation plan contract
and annual retainer contract or billed based on each
treatment incurred for fee for service contract which is
generally due within 30 to 60 days.

Provision of clinical healthcare services

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time
when services are rendered; and payment is mainly on
cash or credit card settlement.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or
partially unsatisfied) which amounted to HK$21,800,000
(2020: HK$23,913,000) as at 30 June 2021 are expected
to be recognised within one year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. HAbW AR WK#=®
An analysis of the Group’s other income and gains is as ZIKE B e E B A KRBT
follows:
2021 2020
20215 20205
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
s THERT FAT
Administrative support fees TEXEER 803 1,330
Bank interest income RITHBIA 114 1,405
Interest income on financial assets at REENAGTENEREED
amortised cost MR BA 2,881 4,078
Interest income on investments at fair value ~ AR BEFAEMEZEKAZ
through other comprehensive income BERFIBMA 281 377
Rental income AN 709 13
Dividend income from financial assets BAREBEFABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss EREAENRBBA - 96
Dividend income from investments BRARBEFAEMEZERAZ
at fair value through other comprehensive BEORBHBA
income 85 4,747
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair BRARBEFABEZEREE
value through profit or loss, net HARBEREFE 188 -
Fair value gain on other assets HihEEA R A BERE _ 6,544
Fair value gain on derivative financial fTEemIANRRBEKS
instrument - 743
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEME R AR 40 2,610 1,229
Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries KB A R Mg - 697
Reversal of impairment losses on amounts 7ol JE Wi R )RR Y
due from associates REBE 27 = 746
Gain on deemed disposal of previously held BIEHE LRI E AR
interest in an associate BAEDORE 39 1,576 -
Others Hit 1,088 3,629

10,335 25,634
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R MY R

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

7. BR® AR

AEEOGKBARENE, GEA) T

(crediting): | &IFEESY
2021 2020
20214 20205
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(i TR FHER
Auditor’s remuneration REAMM S 2,822 2,943
Cost of inventories consumed BERTFERA 34,382 30,851
Cost of services rendered ERERBAA 221,339 216,653
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — #1% « BE K& EINE 14 21,173 20,877
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 15() 51,205 48,135
Amortisation of other intangible assets HitmEE#H 17 4,490 9,257
Employee benefit expense (including directors’  EEBHFEZ (BEEEME
remuneration (note 9))*: (Fsr9)) *
Salaries, allowances, bonuses and e 28 REREMBER
other benefits 166,237 143,660
Equity-settled share-based payment expense DR EE DR BEB
NREY 2,391 3,912
Pension scheme contributions RIKEEBIBR (TRAREE)
(defined contribution schemes)* 9,076 7,937
Less: Government subsidies® W B (14,559) (2,944)
163,145 152,565
Equity-settled share-based payment expense s &R AR /*—'5 ai0kR B
(including employees, professional MY (BEEE SEXBRR
consultants and other business partner)” HhEBRBHE)" 35,36 2,391 3,912
Reversal of equity-settled share-based payment (B A4 25 45 B A DA (7
expense” RERHNREZ 35 - (15,150)
Foreign exchange differences, net EREHHE 1,270 222
Write-off of items of property, plant and MEDE  BERXEHEE
equipment 14 = 445
Impairment of items of property, plant and NE - BERXEHEBMNE
equipment 14 = 135
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEERE 15() - 57
Lease payments not included in the TABREBEABHEL
measurement of lease liabilities HENR 15(c) 3,806 5,988
Write-off of trade receivables W% 2 5 EWUHROR = 234
Impairment of investment cost in an associate Sl NGO 552$Z?J@WE 20 - 630
Reversal of impairment of amounts due from %@EW%%Q TIERE
associates 27 - (746)
Fair value (gain)/losses on financial assets at fair QR EBEFABZNSHEER
value through profit or loss, net* ’D\’*FTE (W) /EBRFE (188) 677
Lease modification HEES (6) -
Impairment of goodwill RS /Jﬁi 16 20,015 -
Impairment of prepayments, other receivables B E « b EUFE K
and other assets HitBERME 25(h) 4,082 -
Fair value loss/(gain) on other assets** HtEENAABE
B/ (a) 25(b) 910 (6,544)
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PROHT BEFORE TAX (Continued)

*k

Inclusive of employee benefit expense of HK$14,308,000 (2020:
HK$11,642,000) paid/payable to the Group’s employees for
the rendering of professional services, which was classified as
“Professional services expenses” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had no material forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the pension
schemes in future years (2020: Nil).

The subsidies were granted under Employment Support Scheme from
the Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and
were deducted in the line item of “Employee benefit expense” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. There were no unfulfilled
conditions relating to the subsidies.

In the prior year, due to certain non-market conditions not being
fulfilled upon expiration of the contractual arrangement, the
conditions relating to the issuance of warrants to a business partner
of the Group, Zheng He Health and Medical Resources Limited had
not been fulfilled. The corresponding equity-settled share-based
payment expense of HK$15,150,000 was reversed in the line item of
“other expenses, net” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Further details are included in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The net fair value gain was credited in the line item of “other income
and gains” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The net fair
value loss was debited in the line item of “other expenses, net” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

FINANCE COST

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B S R MY R

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

Ilf-ﬁ?%ﬂu FE )

sk

BEREBREESEREEMN BN AEERE
SREERA 14,308,000 7T (2020
F 111,642,000 7T) - BRI ELRE
BEEAPHBEERIEXREER] -

R20215F6 8308 » AREBI HE ALK
HRAATARERERFEEYRKSH
Bl R (20205 - &) o

EHAMRRETBERITHE BT
R AR H L ERABRRANE
BRMNAX]ETHEATMNR - LEFE
R R R ER AR -

REFE BRETIHEMGHEEED
ZHEME W ARENX  BRERAANERL
¥ 715 % HZheng He Health and Medical
Resources Limited 37752 f 178 A9 48 BA 15
N EEER - BEALEBRERANN[HA
FIZ %% | B1TIE B $#@15,150,000/8
TR FAE A S S E AR D BER A
HAX - E—FHBHRELRE T HRE
B 535 o

RABERSEFEEGABERANE
AR | EfTRBERER - AR E
BEERFEEARABERANEMAS
FEIBITHBPRBR

BB & AN

2021 2020

20215 20204

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FiE T

Interest on lease liabilities HEaE 7 3,566 3,825

2021FF » BEBEKE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M RRM

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

9.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c)
and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of
the Hong Kong Companies (Disclosure of Information about

Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

EEME
REEESEWEREETBEHER M
BRAFES EMHAR - BBQTUEG
%383(1)() * (b) * (o) RHIEREE QA
(ﬁ%%%ﬂéﬁﬂ)%Eﬁu%z%mé?ﬁu
-

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FAT

Fees o 1,985 1,850

Other emoluments: H A B 25 -

Salaries, allowances and other benefits He o 2 R EMEF 14,517 13,640

Discretionary bonuses By IETEAL - 1,040
Equity-settled share-based NEREENARND &

payment expense B E A X 150 1,452

Pension scheme contributions BRIREET B 86 86

14,753 16,218

16,738 18,068

Certain directors were granted share options and share awards,
in respect of their services to the Group, under the share
option schemes and the share award scheme of the Company,
further details of which are set out in notes 35 and 36 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

The fair values of such options and awards, which have been
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
over the vesting period, were determined as at the dates of
grant and the amount included in the consolidated financial
statements is included in the above directors’ remuneration

disclosures.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

ATEERESMASERERBMIR
BAR R M IR 8 R AR (D SR Ep AT &)
BRERERRGRE  BlE—PF
B BIE RN 4R E B IS MR M FE35 %36 ©

ZEBRENEBO DL BERRER
HETE  DREBHALELEAER

Mat AR M B RERNESHERE
EL IMEFMEIWE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 9. EEM=
(@) Independent non-executive directors (@) BIAFHTES
Salaries, Equity-settled
allowances share-hased Pension
and other  Discretionary payment scheme Total
Fees benefits honuses expense  contributions remuneration
ge- IEREEM
EER URBRER Bfe
Be HitEA MEEL  WAREX BE Heasm
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FHL Tix FHL THL FHIL
2021 20215
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John s FHE L4 265 - - - - 265
(HEHEE
AF4t)
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald sssjp B 4 215 = = = = 215
(REAEE
ATHL)
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike BRERE 215 - - - - 215
695 - - - - 695
2020 20205
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John gesp  FHELE 250 - - 24 - 274
(HEHEE
AF4t)
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald sss p ZH B4 200 - - 24 - 224
(BEAEE
AF4L)
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike BREKE 200 - - 24 - 24
650 - - 72 - 722

o
o>
e
)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M RRM

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 9. EEME )
(b) Executive directors (b) HMITEE

Equity-settled

Salaries, share-hased
allowances and  Discretionary payment  Pension scheme Total
Fees  other benefits honuses expense  confributions  remuneration

R HEREEN

BER HRGAER £
g At EH BERL  NARRX HE I Mess
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TRL T TR TR TR
2021 W21%
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong RBIES 215 7,355 = 25 - 7,595
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen ~ BEE% L 215 4,000 - 2 28 4,268
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick wELs 25 = = 25 10 250
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael IS L 215 = = 25 10 250
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix TRERE 215 3,162 = 25 28 3,430
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick Ediorid Lo 215 - - % 10 250
1,290 14,517 - 150 86 16,043
2020 20205

Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong RRIEE 200 7,340 - 600 - 8,140
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen ~ BEE% L 200 3,960 40 240 28 4,468
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick e Sk 200 - - 120 10 330
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael BNZEE 200 - - 120 10 330
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix FREL4 200 2,340 1,000 180 28 3,748
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick Tk 200 - - 120 10 330
1,200 13,640 1,040 1,380 86 17,346
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10.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

During the year, no remuneration was paid or payable by the
Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2020: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2020: Nil).

During the year, professional services fees were paid/payables
to Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael and Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick,
the executive directors of the Company, in relation to the
rendering of healthcare services to the Group. Further details
of which are set out in note 43(b) to the consolidated financial

statements.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
The five highest paid employees during the year included three

(2020: three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of
the remaining two (2020: two) highest paid employees who are
neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as

follows:

10.

e B S R MY R

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

EEME ()
ER AEEBEDNKENESHE

TERIMARNEE S IIA N K E 1% Y 2B
S IF R BER A (E (2020 : &) °

FAMEEERERRBRETMHE
H % BE (20209 : &) o

RAFE  SAXBELENFHEE
RASEREBRERRERBHAEN,
ENEENERRGE - E—PFBEH
RERE M 5K M TE43(b) ©

hTEEeTFMES

FARA TFEEaiMEERIE=S
(2020 =R EE  BFENHESHE
BN X9 - FRER TMA (2020
FMB)RFERARAEENIETTERE
HOESTHEENMESFBLT

2021 2020

2021% 20204

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Salaries, allowances and other benefits # & - FZBL K EH M 1g 3,243 3,139

Discretionary bonuses BB TE4L 30 483
Equity-settled share-based DS EEN ARG BERD

payment expense IR 2 80 103

Pension scheme contributions RRE R 36 42

3,389 3,767

20215% o BABHEEARAH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R MY R

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following

bands is as follows:

10. EEBRSHFMES @)

EErMFEERFTREARERET
SRR B ABOE

Number of employees

BEAY
2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7C & 2,000,0007% 7T 2 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7T E 2,500,0007% 7T - 1
2 2

Share options and share awards were granted to a non-director
and non-chief executive highest paid employee in respect of
her services to the Group, further details of which are included
in the disclosures in notes 35 and 36 to the consolidated

financial statements, respectively.

The fair values of such options and awards, which have been
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
over the vesting period, were determined as at the dates of
grant and the amount included in the consolidated financial
statements is included in the above non-director and non-chief
executive highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ 2021 ANNUAL REPORT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%

(2020: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in

Hong Kong during the year except for one subsidiary of the

Group which is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits

tax regime effective from the year of assessment 2018/2019.

The first HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits of this subsidiary

is taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable profits are

taxed at 16.5%.

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated

at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in

which the Group operates.

11.

e B S R MY R

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

PiREE

ERNEHERNFENEEBEENGR
FERRFEI%16.5% (20204 : 16.5%)
MR RHEEE  BEAEE—HHBA
AIBRAN - Z B A B A H2018/20195%
MEERBEBOMAFEHEGE TH

BEMERE -

Z BB A A A B 2,000,000/ JT E R
8. 25% M R E T - HRERMF
I 16.5%F REF -

St 30 8 8 ARG M0 BIE B A S
BAERR AR RTB R

At
= o
>

2021 2020
20215 20205
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT TETT
Current — Hong Kong BVER— &%

Charge for the year FAXZH 18,994 12,835
Overprovision in prior years BIEFEBEERE (12) (519)

Current — Elsewhere BER— H it =
Charge for the year FAXH 697 1,575
Withholding tax A 69 69
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBERE (31) (192)
Deferred (note 32) BRI (M95E32) 66 (672)
Total tax charge for the year FABIAX L ERE 19,783 13,096

20215% o BABHEEARAH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R MY R

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

11. INCOME TAX (Continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax using the Hong Kong statutory tax rate (the statutory tax
rate for the jurisdiction in which the majority of the Company’s
subsidiaries are domiciled) to the tax charge at the Group’s
effective tax rate is as follows:

11. Fi8 % (@)
REBMUBEBSETHE (MAATDAS
BB 2 7 AL SL PR AE AR B B 3%
TR HEE AR BB AR B S
B B A RSB SR A 0 B TS B S M R
/N

2021 2020
202146 20205
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT TET
Profit before tax B % il A1) E 51,320 73,406
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate &£ & %816.5% (20204 : 16.5%)
of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) HY R TE B R Pt B B8 8,468 12,112
Difference in tax rates for specific I RIVARE B ok E H R S 1K
jurisdictions or enacted by local tax Bl R ZE 55
authority, net (1,897) (1,919)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of i@t HAf &) & BRI B IEFH &
previous periods (43) (7171)
Profits and losses attributable to joint & & A & M Bt 4 N &) FE 15 F1 8
ventures and associates & EE (13) (249)
Income not subject to tax BEAGMTIAZ WA (1,853) (6,625)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR Z 32 H 1,450 2,968
Tax losses utilised from previous periods B &+ B8 B 2 i EHE 18 (1,086) (499)
Tax losses not recognised AERZRIEAER 13,549 6,612
Others H A 1,208 1,407
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate EZ RSB ERH X EH o MBI M 19,783 13,096
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

12. DIVIDENDS 12. KB
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT THEIT
Dividends recognised as distribution FAERBD IR
during the year:
Final 2020 - HK2.65 cents 2020 KRR B — BT B
(2019: HK2.55 cents) per ordinary 2,658l (20194 : 2.5571l)
share 20,293 19,324
Less: Dividend for shares held under & : & BBt 2B FIEE K
the share award scheme & 17 &9 B B (233) (259)
20,060 19,065
Interim 2021 — HK1.00 cent (2020: 2021 FHIR B — BT B
0.65 cent) per ordinary share 1.007 L (20204 : 0.65/5 1) 7,754 4,985
Less: Dividend for shares held under & : & BB TBE N
the share award scheme &1 B9 AR B (96) (64)
7,658 4,921
27,718 23,986
Dividend proposed after the end of the 3R BB R 1% R A% B
reporting period:
Proposed final 2021 (with scrip option) #&20214F & 8 3% B (K %5 LA %
- HK2.80 cents (2020: HK2.65 cents, B 3EIR) — SR & BK
with scrip option) per ordinary share  2.807%lll (20204 : 2.657 1l
(M AR B8 TR)) 21,710 20,293
The proposed final 2021 dividend of HK2.80 cents per FARF2021FREREERERBR
ordinary share for the year, with a scrip dividend alternative, 2.8078 Il (P A AR BIRIR) AfF AR
is subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the AR EERRBEF RS L& -

forthcoming annual general meeting.

202145% » BHABKEEARAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M RRM

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 13. RAFREBRERSEAEMNE

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company of HK$34,834,000 (2020: HK$58,915,000),
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
760,907,224 (2020: 756,478,586) in issue during the vyear,
as adjusted to exclude the shares held under the share award

scheme.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company of HK$34,834,000 (2020:
HK$58,915,000). The weighted average number of ordinary
shares used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares
of 760,907,224 (2020: 756,478,586) in issue during the year
and excluded the shares held under the share award scheme,
as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of nil (2020:
2,596,315) assumed to have been issued at no consideration
on the deemed exercise of all share options and warrants
(2020: share options and warrants) into ordinary shares.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the years
ended 30 June 2021 and 2020 have been adjusted to reflect
the bonus element in respect of scrip dividend during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

e B S R MY R

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

14. Y% - BERZE

Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Medical Motor
Buildings improvements  equipment  equipment  Computer vehicle Total
ke
i RER
B NERE BOERE BERR ! HE ait
HK§000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS$'000
TEn T Tin TEn Thn T Thn
30 June 2021 2021564308
At 30 June 2020 and at 1 July 2020: 2020F6A308 R
102057818 :
Cost B 57,15 50,408 7,280 59,217 25,164 509 199,703
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (169  (35746) G440 @021) (1967 (09)  (103,279)
Net carrying amount BAFE 55,426 14,662 1,839 19,005 5,492 - 96,424
AUT July 2020, net of accumulated B02057A18 -
depreciation TkgirE 55,426 14,662 1,839 19,005 5,492 = 96,424
Additions 52 - 7303 933 711 5,979 - 21,366
Acquisitions of a subsidiary (note 39)  WE-FHEAE (H3k39) - 61 18 4,201 5 - 4,285
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-BHBAT - (213) - - - - (213)
Depreciation provided during the year ~ ERzFR1TE (927) (6,740) (1,089) (8,563) (3,854) = (21,173)
Reclassified to assets held for sale ENABARELEEE - (%40) (99) (811) (26) - (1,875)
Exchange realignment ERA% - 37 03 253 63 - 616
At 30 June 2021, net of accumulated 2021564308
depreciation and impairment ENBEHTEREE 54,499 14,390 1,686 21,19 7,659 = 99,430
AL 30 June 2021: 2021564308 :
Cost wA 57,15 57,538 7,739 74179 31,060 64 228,205
Accumulated depreciation and impaiment ~ Z:7E R E (2,626) (43,149) (6,053) (52,983) (23,401) (564)  (128,775)
Net carrying amount FHFE 54,499 14,390 1,686 21,19 7,659 - 99,430
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R MY R

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. % - BERSKE@®

(Continued)
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold ~ and office Medical Motor
Buildings improvements  equipment  equipment  Computer vehicle Total
i
HE RER
BF  MERE  BOERE  BERE gk it aif
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEL ThEL TER TEL TEL TER
30 June 2020 202056A30R
At30 June 2019 and at T July 2019: 12019564308 &
R2019%7A18 :
Cost R 57,125 4,717 7,276 53,192 22,200 531 186,041
Accumulated depreciation 2itnE (772) (30,105) (4,501) (32,284) (16,787) (531) (84,980)
Net carrying amount EESE 56,353 15,612 2775 20,908 5413 - 101,061
At 1 July 2019, net of accumulated 201957418
depreciation HARZHAE 56,353 15,612 2775 20,908 5413 - 101,061
Additions hE - 6,586 415 4814 3,903 - 15,718
Acquisitions of a subsidiary (note 39) WE-EHEAR (Hi39) - - - 2,561 35 - 2,59
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 40) e -EMERA (o) - (657) (8) (354) (26) - (1,119
Write-off i - (62) (74) (1) (291) - (443)
Depreciation provided during the year — F U842 (927) (6,638) (1144) (8,652) (3,516 - (20,877)
Impairment HE - (1) (28) (106) - - (135)
Exchange realignment Eid% - (178) (23) (148) (26) - (375)
At 30 June 2020, net of accumulated 2020564308 -
depreciation and impairment BABEFTERRE 55,426 14,662 1,839 19,005 5,492 - 96,424
At 30 June 2020: R2020%67308 -
Cost A 57,125 50,408 7,280 59,217 25,164 509 199,703
Accumulated depreciation and impaiment ~ Z3H17E R E (1,699) (35,746) (5,441) (40,21 (19,672) (509 (103,279)
Net carrying amount FHFE 55,426 14,662 1,839 19,005 5,49 - 96,424
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

15. LEASES 15. HE
The Group as a lessee REBEEREEA
The Group has lease contracts for its medical centres, office AEBREBEERD - HAEWE K
properties and office equipment. The leases are negotiated for NERBIEHESLY - HENKR_-ZF
terms ranging from two to nine years. NEHRRER -
(@) Right-of-use assets @ FHEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets AEEERAEEENREENSF
and the movements during the year are as follows: WEBHMT :
Leased Office
properties  equipment Total
HEWME BRLERE &t
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(i FHERT FTHER FHERT
As at 1 July 2020 20207 A1H 80,332 1,820 82,152
Additions RE 58,012 - 58,012
Acquisition of a subsidiary Yo i — I P B 2 7 39 2,796 = 2,796
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMNERQA (4,404) - (4,404)
Lease modification MEEH (243) - (243)
Depreciation charge FEXH 7 (50,691) (514) (51,205)
Reclassified as disposal EMOBERFIELE
groups held for sale ZHEMAR 47 (16,265) = (16,265)
Exchange realignment PE W E 2,823 = 2,823
Aa at 30 June 2021 7202146 A30H 72,360 1,306 73,666
Leased Office
properties  equipment Total
HEME MAERE aF
Note HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
5 THETT FTET THET
As at 1 July 2019 20197518 99,003 2,333 101,336
Additions NE 27,591 = 27,591
Acquisition of a subsidiary U & — FE B /B 2 A 39 3,324 - 3,324
Disposal of a subsidiary & — B AR (804) - (804)
Lease modification HEEHK (52) = (52)
Depreciation charge wESH 7 (47,622) (513) (48,135)
Impairment R 7 (57) S (57)
Exchange realignment bE 5 % (1,051) - (1,051)
Aa at 30 June 2020 72202056 H30H 80,332 1,820 82,152
202155 » MaBEBRERRA 219



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M RRM

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

15. LEASES (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

Lease liabilities

15. HE @)

ZIK%lﬂfﬁﬁﬁﬁk(f

(b)

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the

HERE

HERBENEREERFRES N

movements during the year are as follows: I
Lease
liabilities
HESE
Note HK$’000
B 5 THETT
Carrying amount at 1 July 2020 202057 AW REE 86,565
New leases FEE 58,012
Acquisition of a subsidiary Yo i — [ B B & A 39 2,805
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—EME R (4,861)
Lease modification HEEBNK (249)
Accretion of interest recognised during FRRERH N SN
the year 3,566
Payments N (50,814)
Rent concessions HERE \ (1,581)
Reclassified as disposal groups BENHBERFIELEZ
held for sale & 28 Rl 47 (18,447)
Exchange realignment PE S0 R B 3,031
Carrying amount at 30 June 2021 MR2021F 6 A30H M EREE 78,027
Analysed into: DHTIE -
Current portion BN EAEE 7 38,731
Non-current portion FERNERER & 39,296
78,027
Lease
liabilities
HEAE
Note HK$’000
B 5 TETT
Carrying amount at 1 July 2019 M2019567 AW EREE 103,504
New leases wiHEE 27,591
Acquisition of a subsidiary Yo g — FE1 B /B8 & &) 39 3,350
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HWNE LA (855)
Lease modification HEENR (52)
Accretion of interest recognised during F AR F S0
the year 3,825
Payments (N (47,715)
Rent concessions Ha R 2 (1,987)
Exchange realignment bE 5 58 B (1,096)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2020 720206 A30H W EREE 86,565
Analysed into: DHTHE
Current portion B ERER 43,420
Non-current portion SERNEREB 7> 43,145
86,565
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in HEBENIAINMNES B

note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

15. LEASES (Continued) 15. HE @)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBEREBAE)
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to (c0 EFEEEREZEINESENT:

leases are as follows:

2021 2020
202146 2020%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAET
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENHE 3,566 3,825
Depreciation charge of right-of-use FREEENITES D
assets 51,205 48,135
Rent concessions Hew e (1,581) (1,987)
Lease modification HEB®H (6) -
Expense relating to short-term leases 5 B3%2 Hif1 & & & T~ 78 &5
and other leases with remaining lease #202196A30H,
terms ended on or before 30 June 202096 A30H =k 2 A JE # AY
2021/30 June 2020 (note 7) HmBE 2 (MaE7) 3,806 5,988
Total amount recognised in profit or ~ RIE & ERAEEE
loss 56,990 55,961
(d) The total cash outflow for leases are disclosed in note (d HEMRSRLBENEGEETB
41(c) to the consolidated financial statements. HERMTFF41 () EE -
16. GOODWILL 16. BE&
2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
At beginning of year REF A 171,264 163,711
Acquisitions of subsidiaries/business WM B AR, %%
(note 39) (PfF7¥39) 18,768 7,553
Impairment upon initial classified as RN ERFELER
held for sale (note 7) 2 E (FEEE7) (20,015) =
Reclassified as disposal groups BB RFIELEZ
held for sale (note 47) & AR (MsE47) (5,249) =
At end of year RER 164,768 171,264
Impairment testing of goodwill 77 8RR B
Details of the impairment testing of goodwill have been set out B R ERFHH IR R R e IR E
in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements. MizE18 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R MY R

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Brand Customer

17. BB EE

names* relationships Software Total
mEEE EFER B4 &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET R FET TET
30 June 2021 202156 A30H
Cost at 1 July 2020, net of K20205F7 A1 BB BA -
accumulated amortisation Mk 288y 65,647 11,325 = 76,972
Addition RE - - 2,084 2,084
Amortisation provided during FN G
the year = (2,4006) (2,084) (4,490)
Reclassified as disposal groups BNABERFELE
held for sale Z B EEH (8,689) (4,196) - (12,885)
At 30 June 2021 2021F6H30H 56,958 4,723 - 61,681
At 30 June 2021: M2021F6A308 :
Cost B AR 56,958 9,472 5,285 71,715
Accumulated amortisation St = (4,749) (5,285) (10,034)
Net carrying amount REFE 56,958 4,723 = 61,681
30 June 2020 20205 6A30H
Cost at 1 July 2019, net of 7201957 R 18 BIBCA -
accumulated amortisation M 2T 65,647 13,731 - 79,378
Addition NE - - 6,851 6,851
Amortisation provided during FRFTRE
the year - (2,406) (6,851) (9,257)
At 30 June 2020 1202056 H30H 65,647 11,325 - 76,972
At 30 June 2020: 2020F6A308 :
Cost DN 65,647 15,260 6,851 87,758
Accumulated amortisation REti#y - (3,935) (6,851) (10,786)
Net carrying amount REDEE 65,647 11,325 76,972
S Brand names are regarded as having indefinite useful lives as they * mIEEBIR ARG ERAERFS -

are expected to generate net cash inflows to the Group indefinitely.
As at 30 June 2021, brand names with indefinite useful lives were
tested for impairment (note 18).

222 UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

RAAETEHANERBAREEES
FIEE A » R2021F6 A308 © BB
PR AT {5 A 4F HA A0 dn bR 2 TR B s 7T URL(E A
2 (MsE18) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND

INDEFINITE-LIVED INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets acquired
through business combinations are allocated to the following
cash-generating units for impairment testing:

J Hong Kong medical services cash-generating unit;
J PRC medical services cash-generating unit; and
o Hong Kong dental services cash-generating unit.

In June 2021, the Group has committed transactions to dispose
certain subsidiaries (note 47). Accordingly, the Group has
reclassified a group of assets and liabilities relating to those
subsidiaries as held for sale as of 30 June 2021. Write-offs
of goodwill relating to the Hong Kong medical services and
PRC medical service CGU amounting to HK$9,697,000 and
HK$8,602,000 have been made upon the initial classification
to held for sale based on the lower of fair value less amount to
sell and carrying amount of the disposal group. Please refer to
note 47 for details.

The respective carrying amounts of goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangible assets allocated to each of the
cash-generating units are as follows:

18.

e B S R MY R

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

BERERFHNETLEER
RS

7 BB E A G IR H
ERAEDHREN TR EEB#
R ER S -

BEBERGRSEL BN
e TEREBERBREELBEM: K
o BRIMRBASELEM-

M2021566H  REEERHBETRS
NHEETHERR (FisE47) o At
R2021F6A308 » KE@MDKEZE
WBAR BN —4MEENBBEETD
BEABIELE RS EABELE
BERBELEHEBZAABERLES
HEEAEZEEEMEEEEERS
MhREEREESELEM ZEEE
2 £ 19,697,000 7T 128,602,000 JT
2 o FEIB B2 BM 47 -

THRESERCELBUNHENERSF
HWETEENSAREENT

Hong Kong medical services PRC medical services Hong Kong dental services Total
ERBRER L ERTNER ait
2021 200 2021 200 2021 200 2021 200
WNE 2020 W1E 20005 WNE 20005 W1E 20006
HKS'000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK§000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TEn TR TR Tin TR TERL Tin TERL
Carrying amounts of goodwill ~ BENFEEE 141,666 137,644 - 8,602 23,102 24,818 164,768 171,264
Carrying amounts of EREHNEY
indefinite-lived intangible assets  AEMEEE 56,958 65,647 - - - - 56,958 65,647
202155 » MEBEHKEERRAR



224

18. IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND

INDEFINITE-LIVED INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(Continued)
The recoverable amounts of the Hong Kong medical services

and Hong Kong dental services cash-generating units have
been determined based on a value in use calculation using
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
senior management covering a five-year period. The basis used
to determine the value assigned to the budgeted revenue is
the average revenue achieved in the year immediately before
the budget year, taking into account the expected growth rate.
The growth rates and discount rates applied to the cash flow
projections are as follows:

18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M RRM

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

BHERERFHNEFLEER
B @)

EEBERRELRBETIMREREESE
Bumr k@ BREEBEELETH
EMETE - DHERSREEE LR
ENFHRMNVRAEFERS AR
Al AREERERAEBEENESE
BERBEFEN —FHRRENTFHIK
A ARGREHERX - EARRS
MBARIER R RITBRROT

2021 2020
20215 20204
Hong Kong medical services BEBERS
Growth rate 188K 5-13.4% 3-10%
Discount rate W= 11.2% 15%
Hong Kong dental services BB T RRS
Growth rate 188K 5-6% 5%
Discount rate Wi xR 11.2% 14%

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculations of
the cash-generating units for 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020.
The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible

assets:

Growth rate — The growth rate is determined with reference
to the growth rate for the relevant unit, adjusted for expected

business, market development and economic condition.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant unit which is
determined with reference to the weighted average cost of
capital of the Group.
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18.

19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND
INDEFINITE-LIVED INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(Continued)
Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate

to the estimation of cash outflows for key operating expenses.
Such estimation is based on historical performance and/or

amounts stipulated in underlying contracts, where applicable.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, for Hong Kong
medical services CGU and Hong Kong dental services CGU,
any reasonably possible change in the above key assumptions
would not cause the carrying amounts of the respective CGUs

to exceed their recoverable amounts.

18.

e B S R MY R

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

BENERFHNELEER
BRI @

ERAEEFENEBERRRETIER
ERXMBASRLENGAEH - %F
B IRBBEXRRR,LEEE L
(AER) FETRZ S BIEH -

ARBBEERR RELBERGRE
EEBURERTINRERCELEN
MmE @ EAEFEREOETAAIEAEE
Bre8RsRieELEUNREER
BEAKEEE -

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19. REEAQATINKRE
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBx FHT
Share of net assets EIEFEE 7,970 -

Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures as at 30 June 2021 are

KEBEEGE QT NR2021F6H308 M5

as follows: (=R OENE
Place of Percentage of effective interest
registration/ BREZEIL
incorporation Ownership Voting Profit
Name and business interest power sharing  Principal activities
A ff, R L
=1 REEHH ERERER ®RE FMEIK EEEXR
UMP Dental Centre Hong Kong 50 50 50  Provision of dental
JV Limited (“UMP Dental JV”) services
BEBGINAEARAA B R4 T BER TS
((HEBBIHMAERR])
Acton Digital PET-CT Hong Kong 31 31 31  Provision of medical
Centre Limited (“Acton”) imaging and

B

laboratory services
REBEZERCRE
AR 75

The above investments are indirectly held by the Company.

FRRERARFREEFTE

202145% » BHABKEEARAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M RRM

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

19.

20.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of
losses of UMP Dental JV because the share of losses of the
joint venture exceeded the Group’s interest in the joint venture
and the Group has no obligation to take up further losses.
The amounts of the Group’s unrecognised share of loss of
this joint venture for the current year and cumulatively were
HK$152,000 (2020: HK$204,000) and HK$1,348,000 (2020:
HK$1,196,000), respectively.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s joint ventures that are not

individually material:

19. REEQATNERE @)

REBDRIEBEREELBEERT
BMea&ERamEE REAREEZA
ARANEBBEEBEAEERZEE
NAIMER  ASELEEFREE
—HBE c REBRAFERZFES
EERRIMNABEREESEI A
152,000/ 7T (20204 : 204,000/ 7T.)
51,348,000/ 7T (2020%F : 1,196,000
BT °

TRUPENTBEAHAEEAED
AIME BTG AR -

2021 2020
20214 2020%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TET
Share of the joint venture’s loss and total [EH A ERAFEE R
comprehensive loss for the year FRAXEHEBEER (1,255) 211)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s A&EBREE QA
investments in the joint ventures KRER® A 7,970 -

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. REFE R TINRE
2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FET
Share of net assets BEFEE 5,131 9,176
Impairment* VERE (630) (630)
4,501 8,546
* As at 30 June 2020, the recoverable amount of the Group’s interest * K2020F6A308 - AEERFIIEER

in an associate, &Y 55 ZEIFIZ BB A A], was assessed to be
minimal and less than its carrying amount. Accordingly, the Group
recognised an impairment loss of HK$630,000 for the year ended 30
June 2020.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

RPF2HBERA AR E S EL
FEBERRMENEERME - At - &
EEREE2020F6 8308 |- FE R
{EE18630,000/8 7T °



20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Particulars of the associates are as follows:

Place of registration/
incorporation

e

B ES MR AR MR

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

20. EAHﬁ%% DRENERE @

N\

Yl

Percentage of
ownership interest

N
B

NGl

ERWT

Name and business attributable to the Group  Principal activities
0 Vg 31132 FREFREREERER
28 REXBE BOl TEXHR
2021 2020
2021%  2020%
Causeway Bay MRI Centre Limited Hong Kong 20 20 Provision of medical laboratory
scanning services
HEBHNHRPLOERAT Bk REBECRFHRS
Sunny Wealth Consultants Limited Hong Kong 30 30 Provision of surgical services
HEBERARAT BE BRAL T 10 AR 7%
Tiger Era Limited Hong Kong 30 30 Provision of surgical and
consultation services
BERARLA BB AT Rk AR5
UMP Eyecare and Optometry Hong Kong 50 50 Provision of medical services
Centre Limited (“UMP Eyecare”) and sale of spectacles
BABHREHREREEF O BB REBERELEERR
BRRA ([BAERR])
UMP Medical Centre (Tsing Yi) Limited ~ Hong Kong 50 50 Provision of medical services
BAEKHL(BR)ARA Bk RALE R RG
UMP Medical Centre (Grandiose) Hong Kong 50 50 Provision of medical services
Limited (“UMP Grandiose”)
BEBBTL(EHE)ARAF BB REBRRS
(TBaERE])
RYBERMPIZHERRA PRC 20 20 Provision of medical services
h Rt BB R
* The associate was a limited liability company under PRC law. * ZHERARATBEERTHNAERES
NG

The above investments are indirectly held by the Company.

PR ERAQRBBERFE

202145 3F o MEEKRE

fah A\ EE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R MY R

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of
losses of associates, UMP Eyecare and UMP Grandiose (2020:
UMP Eyecare and UMP Grandiose), because the share of losses
of these associates exceeded the Group’s interests in these
associates and the Group has no obligation to take up further
losses. The amount of the Group’s unrecognised share of losses
of these associates cumulatively was HK$3,759,000 (2020:
HK$3,718,000).

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s associates that are not individually

material:

20. REEE A RINIRE ()
AEEDRIEEREEEHEQRBE
R REE S E U (20205 : BEEBRE
B EZEHE NEE AREMIESE
B AmBED BEAREER IS
ENEIRERD - MASE B I8 S EAEE
E—FEE AEERBRANEEZE
By & N RIBIBRET 2% R3,759,0008

7t (20204 : 3,718,000/ 7T) °

TERHEAENTBEANAEE B Z A
Al E AR TS B 1Y

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FET

Share of the associates’ profit and total FREMLEERATFER
comprehensive income for the year EEWR AR 1,333 1,640

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s 7K & @] A Bt & 2 7] )

investments in the associates REEREE 4,501 8,546

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST

21. RBERARTENESHEE

2021 2020

202145 20204

HK$000 HK$’000

FERT THET

Financial assets at amortised cost RBERAFTENSREE 33,071 55,852
Analysed into: DHITE

Non-current portion FEENEAES o 19,025 20,206

Current portion BER &R 9 14,046 35,646

33,071 55,852

As at 30 June 2021, the Group’s financial assets at amortised
cost represented listed debt investments with fixed maturity
dates between 2022 and 2023 (2020: 2020 and 2023) and
fixed interest rates ranging from 4.25% to 8.5% per annum
(2020: 4.25% to 8.5% per annum).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

30 June 2021

2021F6HA30H

22. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 22. BAREESAREMEZEEA

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME K&
2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Investments at fair value through other QX ABEFAEMEE
comprehensive income WAHKRE
Unlisted equity investments, FEETRAKRE
at fair value* BAREEE 5,367 4,745
Listed equity investment, FHRARE
at fair value* BAREBETE 18,236 12,948
Listed debt investments, at fair value EHEBEE
BRAREBEEFE - 5,494
23,603 23,187
* The above investments were designated at fair value through other * NEREBEEETEREARBEIT AR
comprehensive income as the Group considers these investments to FTHRA BRAEERBLEREL
be strategic in nature. ME FERBRE -
During the year, the Group received dividends in the FAARERE-AFLTRARER
approximate amounts of Nil (2020: HK$4,200,000) and — I8 E T IRAIRE 5 B W B B R4
HK$85,000 (2020: HK$547,000) from an unlisted equity (2020% : 4,200,000/% 7T) % 85,0007
investment and a listed equity investment, respectively. 7t (20204 : 547,000/87T) °

20214 3R o FpAEE

BEEBRAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M RRM

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

23.

24.

INVENTORIES 23. B &
2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$’000 HK$/000
FET FET
Pharmaceutical supplies B aE e 9,198 9,083
TRADE RECEIVABLES 24. B S EWFIE
2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Trade receivables g S EWFE 83,364 74,354

The Group’s trading terms with its contract customers are
mainly on credit. The credit period is generally one month,
extending up to two months for certain customers. Each
contract customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
and has a designated policy to monitor and minimise credit
risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade

receivables are non-interest bearing.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables are trade
receivables due from related companies of HK$612,000
(2020: HK$360,000), which have the same credit period as
other contract customers. Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited
(“CTFE”) is a major beneficial shareholder of these related
companies in which Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick, an executive
director of the Company, is the Chief Executive Officer of
CTFE.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

An aging analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

e B S R MY R

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

24. EZEWFIE (&)

RBEHRNE F RUGRIRIREZ B
HRRER DT T

2021 2020

202145 2020%F

HK$/000 HK$'000

THERT FET

Within 1 month R EDERA 50,580 54,404
1 to 2 months 12218 R 13,710 6,235
2 to 3 months 2E3fE A 6,230 6,861
Over 3 months 3ME A A 12,844 6,854
83,364 74,354

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns. The
calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for more
than two years and are not subject to enforcement activity. As
at 30 June 2021 and 2020, the Group assessed that the loss
allowance under the application of HKFRS 9 was immaterial.

REHRE B RRAREEEEITRED
W UEr2BEMEEERE - BEXDE
RAEEUBERANZEREP 5 A
RIEYE BRI R B o ZATE R T 8L Nk
ER ERBHEEEMNREEUES
WAERAEEMN - BRI RARRAE
AT S IE Al STIFMEE R o —f& T
T B SRWGFEMEHBAMmE BT
SHITIEENIRBRAS T AR o 7R20214F
N2020F6H308  AEBFGHEAS
B REERFEORE N 2 BIBRE
WRERK °

20215% o BABHEEARAH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M RRM

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

25. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 25. BARIE - HttERRIERH

OTHER ASSETS L& E
30 June 30 June
2021 2020
20215 2020%F
6H30H 6H30H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt = THERT FET
Prepayments B FRIE 3,597 4,266
Deposits paid for purchases of items of BEWME  WFER&E
property, plant and equipment HEZNHMRES 6,644 11,150
Deposits RES® (a) 23,354 19,855
Other receivables H fth j& R IE (a) 5,037 9,540
Other assets Hip&E (b) = 9,589
38,632 54,400
Less: Portion classified as W DBERIERDEE
non-current assets =Rz (20,544) (21,977)
Current portion BN AR 18,088 32,423
Notes: B &E
(@) Impairment of deposits and other receivables (@ REDREMEBRFIENRE
The above balances relate to deposits and other receivables for b5 45 8 2 B P 1E20214F }2020%F 6 A
which there was no recent history of default and past due amounts 30H A MENRERABEE R
as at 30 June 2021 and 2020. The loss allowance was assessed to be FehHMEWKIE - BEREGELSTE
minimal. BEIE -
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25. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

Hit W RERHE

OTHER ASSETS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) Details of other assets are as follows:

25. FA{FFIE -
& E (@)

e ()

by HMEENFBOT

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FHET

At beginning of year REH] 9,589 3,045

Settlement e (4,597) -

Impairment (note 7) AE (BiE7) (4,082) -
Fair value (loss)/gain recognised in profit or RIEZFHERH QA EE (FE),/

loss (note 7) Wzt (i 5E7) (910) 6,544

At end of year RER = 9,589

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

26. gﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁéﬂ’ﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ

2021 2020
2021%F 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Listed equity investments, at fair value FHRAERE

(RAREEFE) 1,852 1,723

Unlisted but quoted investment fund, FELITEERENKEES
at fair value (BARBEFE) 25,263 -
27,115 1,723

The above investments were classified as financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss as they were held for trading.

fah A\ EE
L=

2021465 o

PR ERAFIEEEM D BARAAE
B ABEZNEMEE -

B REARAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R MY R

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

27. BALANCES WITH ASSOCIATES AND A JOINT 27. HEZ AR R —RBEELQATN

VENTURE REER
2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH& T FET
Due from associates JFE Ui Bt 2% R B SR IE 10,502 8,976
Impairment B (6,772) (6,772)
3,730 2,204
Due to associates JE < Bt 2 R B SR8 - 184
Due from a joint venture FEW — & & R AR 451 -
Due to a joint venture et —E& B R A® 561 203

The balances with associates and joint ventures are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. Except for the amounts
due from associates which are individually impaired, the
expected credit losses were assessed to be minimal.

The movements in provision for impairment of amounts due
from associates are as follows:

HEBERNRIRAEERAIZEBRREIE
e REREBRERER - RERBEQ
AIFIERERDRES - BEEEEEL
FEBEM -

\

e 2 R ORRLE 2 B B
-

2021 2020

2021%F 20204

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET TETT

At beginning of year NG 6,772 7,518
Reversal of impairment losses BB R (M 5e, 7)

recognised (note 6, 7) = (746)

At end of year RF R 6,772 6,772

Included in the above provision for impairment of amounts
due from associates is provision for individually impaired
amounts of HK$6,772,000 (2020: HK$6,772,000) with a
carrying amount before provision of HK$7,570,000 (2020:
HK$6,806,000), of which the related debtors were in financial
difficulties and only a portion of the receivables is expected to
be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. BALANCES WITH RELATED COMPANIES

e B S R MY R

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

28. EEREAEE D T M A ER

2021 2020

20215 20204

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET THET

Due from related companies JE IR BEBSE R R BB 1,220 1,220
Due to related companies FEAST BAESE R F) 5,618 2,020

The balances with related companies are unsecured, interest-

free and repayable on demand.

Particulars of the amounts due from related companies,
disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Hong Kong Companies

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)

Regulation, are as follows:

AZREBRERR 2B RE

ﬂmlﬁﬁi’% CRBEEB QA
1|7n<&?§>%ﬁﬂ (T&Eﬁ%

Maximum Maximum
amount amount
At outstanding At outstanding At
30 June during 30 June during 1 July
Name e 2021 the year 2020 the year 2019
20215 FRE&EE K20206  FARS  R2019F
6A30H KREEHER 6308 REEHE 7R1H
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TET TET TET
Guangzhou Ruian Enterprise BMNEZ ﬁ%
Management Company Limited ~ EEHRQ
(“GZ Ruian”)* (& M3 J) 6 70 124 128 17
Healthcare Assets Management ~ EZEEEEER LD A
Limited (“HAML") and ([BBEEEE]) R
it subsidiaries® HfB DA 1,214 9,837 1,096 8,970 3,516
2021F % » MAaBBEEARA 235
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R MY R

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

28. BALANCES WITH RELATED COMPANIES 28.

(Continued)
* GZ Ruian is controlled directly by Dr. Sun Man Kin, an executive
director of the Company.

: HAML and its subsidiaries are jointly controlled by a subsidiary of
CTFE. Mr. Patrick Tsang, an executive director of the Company, is
the Chief Executive Officer of CTFE.

The amounts due from related companies are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

HEB AT &SR
* EMNmLES AR NITERRACERE
BT o

BREAEEENAMBARZARNEL
KRB QR KXRES - RARH
TEEELERERBARNBELENTR
A

JiE U B B
2

RIFEAEER 2B NA

29. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 29. RERRSEFEYRIBFER
PLEDGED DEPOSITS

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET
Cash and bank balances & RIRIT AR 293,974 158,771
Time deposits EBE R 1,893 73,254
295,867 232,025

Less: Pledged deposits (note) A AR AE AR (PR RE) (1,893) (1,354)
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 293,974 230,671

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted
to HK$20,744,000 (2020: HK$5,773,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct

foreign exchange business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED DEPOSITS (Continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The bank balances and time deposits are deposited with

creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

Note: Included in the pledged deposits as at 30 June 2021 are deposits of
HK$500,000 (2020: HK$500,000), HK$529,000 (2020: HK$529,000)
and HK$864,000 (2020: nil) in connection with surety bonds
issued by a bank in favour of independent third parties for potential
damages of dental equipment and potential disruption of medical
services, respectively.

Included in the pledged deposits as at 30 June 2020 was another
deposit of HK$325,000 in connection with a bank guarantee issued
by a bank in favour of a landlord for leasing of a medical centre of
the Group.

30. TRADE PAYABLES

e B S R MY R

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

29. BERRSEB/YREFFR

(&)

BITERRERGHRITERMEY
FEF R R o AT BFE RO EET
T BH—BAE=ZEATE HITEAEE
WENRRSFE - RERAATHFERF
EEEUF S o RITHEH R TE BT RIFH
REERFBIBYHEENDHENR
1 e

MEE  72021F6 308 IR ER FJEEEEE
—FHRTREEFR R EEERE
BRI TERABIE =8N mm@%
FHEENER - 255 51/500,0007 T
(20204 : 500,0007% 7T) * 529,0007% 7T
(2020%F : 529,000/ 7T) %864,0007% T
(2020%F : &) -

R2020F6 A30AMEMGERETES—F
HBA—HRTREEAER —BEKF
DA —BEITFHOBITERBENT
K & FEA325,0008 7T ©

30. E5 B FOR

An aging analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the RBRERRNEZ RN FIBRERAH
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: BERE DTN T

2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FET
Within 1 month 1ME A A 37,560 23,861
1 to 3 months 12318 A 23,860 11,392
Over 3 months 3B A E 765 1,117
62,185 36,370

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on terms ranging from 30 to 90 days.

BZRNFEREE R —RN30E9I0K
Wzikk
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30 June 2021
202196 A30H

31. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 31. HttERN RIEREFER
30 June 30 June
2021 2020
202145 20204
6H30H 6H30H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Mo =E THET FAT
Contract liabilities EHBE (a) 21,800 23,913
Other payables H fth & A 5/ I8 (b) 24,215 23,147
Accruals fEstE A (b) 12,179 10,533
Deposits received EWRE S 3,820 218
Due to non-controlling shareholders JE 1~ FE 128 AR A% R I8 (c) 2,362 4,773
64,376 62,584
Notes: MI5E
(@)  Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (@) AHBENFBOT :
30 June 30 June
2021 2020
20215 20204
6A30H 6H30H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEx FHET
Advances received from customers REFRENBER
Provision of corporate healthcare solution MENBEPIRHPERE
services to contract customers REERR R T RS 16,120 18,645
Provision of clinical healthcare services REHRKREZERERSE 5,680 5,268
21,800 23,913
(b)  Other payables and accruals are non-interest-bearing and are (by EHvENRBEREFERTFE  B—
normally repayable on demand. RRBRER -
(c)  The amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries are () ENMBARIFEKKENSEAER

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. TR ERIREREE -
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30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

32. DEFERRED TAX 32. B IR
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the FANBEEMBEEERBBEEHNOT :

year are as follows:

Gross deferred tax assets FEEFEEEHAT

Depreciation
in excess
of related
depreciation

allowance Total
A
wEREBN
e aat
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TAET
At 30 June 2019 and at 1 July 2019 7K2019%F 6 H308 &
2019%7A1H 1,300 1,300
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated FRARGEEBRERTAN
statement of profit or loss during the EFERIA (M EE11)
year (note 11) 391 391
At 30 June 2020 and at 1 July 2020 202056 H308 &
202057 A1H 1,691 1,691
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated F RR4RABZE RN
statement of profit or loss during the EIERL A (MiaE11)
year (note 11) (274) (274)
At 30 June 2021 7202196 A30H 1,417 1,417
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30 June 2021
202196 A30H

32.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Gross deferred tax liabilities

32. EEFIE ()

Depreciation

EEREBEEERE
Fair value
adjustments

allowance

in excess of

arising from

related business
depreciation  combinations Total
B AE R EBEH
TEN BEEN
TERE LAEBEEHAE &&t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET THET THET
At 30 June 2019 and 201956 H30H &
at 1 July 2019 2019 7H1H 1,343 13,266 14,609
Deferred tax charged/(credited) FARGEEBERIR
to the consolidated statement S (GEA) BT 18
of profit or loss during the year (FFaE11)
(note 11) 214 (495) (281)
Acquisition of a subsidiary I g — BB A A
(note 39) (FfsE39) - 422 422
Disposal of a subsidiary s —FERE R A
(note 40) (Pif#£40) (178) - (178)
At 30 June 2020 and 7202056 4308 &
at 1 July 2020 20207 A 1H 1,379 13,193 14,572
Deferred tax charged/(credited) FARGEEBERTR
to the consolidated statement /(GEA) BB E R IH
of profit or loss during the year (BFaE1T)
(note 11) 316 (524) (208)
Reclassified to a disposal group ~ BEF D EABIEHE 2
classified held for sale (note 47)  H&HR (K 7E47) - (2,126) (2,126)
At 30 June 2021 MR2021F6A30H 1,695 10,543 12,238
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32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

At 30 June 2021, the Group had unrecognised tax
losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$23,252,000 (2020:
HK$24,495,000), subject to the agreement by the Hong Kong
Inland Revenue Department, that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in
which the losses arose. The Group also had unrecognised tax
losses arising in Mainland China of HK$68,189,000 (2020:
HK$33,674,000), subject to the agreement by the relevant
taxation authority, that will expire in five years for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses due to unpredictability of future taxable
profit streams.

e B S R MY R

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

32. IEERIE (@)

R2021F6A308  AEBEBRBEE
B R BE SR B 18 B5 18 /R23,252,0007% 7T
(20204 : 24,495,000 L) (B FEE
MERRAR)  ZSHIEE B &R
FAEBEEEBBNARMNRKRER
RANE - NREE A LR EAMEED
RIERBIEE 868,189,000 7T (2020
£ 133,674,000/ 7C) (B AR EET S #
HRE)  ZEHEEESRAFARE
m o PR E £ BB A R ARR
FERRFRFE o f A K TERI R R EER T
FURRIR - Bt Sz F BB ERIE
EFIBEE °
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32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%
or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established
in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

At 30 June 2021, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion
of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. The
aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled
approximately HK$21,325,000 at 30 June 2021 (2020:
HK$32,233,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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32. EEFIE ()

BIEFRBREMETE - RABEARMK
V2R ECEMIIEKEETIR
Z R BERI0%E U TEINR o IR E B
20084F 1 A1 H #8 & & + I i A 72007
F12A318& 2 BF o e B A E Ik
B & & P ALARE R 2 fAET L BB {5
4 R AREZTENBIE - KXE
EE AR BN EA5%310% ° ALt
RNEEBE BT B A A KT E A F
BL2008F1 H1HREE Z BF 9IRS
&R AN FB 0TS -

MR2021F6H308 » WEFLEAREBER
FR B 7 b B 37 O BT B A B 9 A BE S 28 F
(EHMTEMTE) M EMS BN E
REERE -EERE  ZEMBAF
RA] B RE T RAIgE D IR B RERT o
MR2021F6H308 - IR E R P H A
MHEARBENABRECHEAE
BRI ER S HAA21,325,000/8 7T
(2020%F : 32,233,000/ 7T) °

R B [A) B BRI 3% M9 BB 3 S 2P AS AR

B2 48R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. PROVISION

e B S R MY R

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

33. &%

2021 2020

20215 2020

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

Bt 3 THET FET

At beginning of year REH] 3,308 2,813
Acquisitions of subsidiaries Lt B Bt /28 1 ) 39 = 200
Disposal of a subsidiary & — M E QA (250) (53)
Additions during the year F RGN = 475
Amount utilised during the year F X&) ¢ & (493) (102)
Exchange realignment PE 5, & 62 (25)
At end of year RER 2,627 3,308

Pursuant to the terms of the respective tenancy agreements
entered into by the Group, the Group is required to return
certain of its leased properties to the conditions as stipulated in
the respective tenancy agreements at the expiration or sooner
determination of the corresponding lease terms as appropriate.
The provision for reinstatement costs was estimated based on
certain assumptions and estimates made by the directors with
reference to quoted prices and/or other available information.
The assumptions and estimates are reviewed on an ongoing

basis and revised as appropriate.

REBEASBMIIZHABEEHHEK
R RARRATH Sk EE B R LB
(RFBEREEME)  AREEKEE
THEWRREEZEMHEERHZRTAN
R - ERRABEBDHENEEZER
BR,/REMATSERPTIELENSE TR
R R G M IEA © RERRAFTE T AR
BRI EREE B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R MY R

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. R
Shares fi% 13
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Authorised: JETE ¢
5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000/%
(2020: 5,000,000,000) (2020 : 5,000,000,000%)
ordinary shares of S EE0.001E T
HK$0.001 (20204 : 0.0017%7T)
(2020: HK$0.001) each Y & 3 Ak 5,000 5,000
Issued and fully paid: 2ETRER
775,350,089 775,350,0890%
(2020: 765,759,953) (2020%F : 765,759,953 /%)
ordinary shares of FAE(E0.001E T
HK$0.001 (20204 : 0.001/87T)
(2020: HK$0.001) each EOR=R 775 766
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Shares (Continued)

The movements in the Company’s authorised and issued share
capital during the years ended 30 June 2021 and 2020 are as

e B S R MY R

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

34. BRA ()
BB (&)

ARRAFIREE2021F KX2020F6H30H
HFEZEERBREITRAESHWNT :

follows:
Nominal
Number value of
of ordinary ordinary
shares shares
BB EmmE
Notes HK$’000
B 5 TETT
Authorised: JETE
At 1 July 2019, at 30 June 2020 R2019F7A18 -
at 1 July 2020 and 2020566 H30H -
at 30 June 2021 20207 H18 &
202156 H30H 5,000,000,000 5,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRER
At 1 July 2019 20197 A1H 757,818,000 758
Shares issued in lieu of cash BIIRHOUARE (a)
dividend WERE 7,941,953 8
At 30 June 2020 and 202056 A308 &
at 1 July 2020 202057 H1H 765,759,953 766
Shares issued in lieu of cash BIIRHOUARE (b)
dividend b L 9,590,136 9
At 30 June 2021 202156 HA30H 775,350,089 775
(@ On 20 November 2019, the Company’s shareholders approved at the (@  RK2019%11 A208 - AR AR IR
annual general meeting a final dividend of HK2.55 cents per ordinary BERE EBEIR %E‘Z 2201 9%6A30
share payable in cash with a scrip dividend alternative (“the Scrip Eﬁfﬁfﬁm*ﬁﬂﬂﬁ@ﬁﬁ\j{%i_ﬁﬁZ.SS}%\
Dividend Scheme”) for the year ended 30 June 2019 (the “2019 Final ili - Eﬁaﬂf«% L\Aiﬂﬁiﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁu fise (X
Dividend”). During the year ended 30 June 2020, 7,941,953 new ,%ﬁ}%ﬁ%(!’l;{\ﬂﬁﬁ,%\ﬁ%\u)(]’2019&
shares were issued by the Company at a deemed price of HK$1.32 Xgﬁﬂﬁﬁj):ﬁ%ﬁ £2020%6A30H IEF
per ordinary share, credited as fully paid, to shareholders of the E $@1&H§%@HQT.327\%EE@7§VE
Company who had elected to receive scrip shares in lieu of cash to E%m%?’%”&/ﬂr}&%ﬁ%ﬁ URBREH
settle the 2019 Final Dividend of HK$10,483,000. The remaining ﬁﬂ?&%%rﬁﬂ‘”,953%)\«%\5”{:’5%&
balance of the 2019 Final Dividend of HK$8,841,000 was satisfied R ZHRR 7 LA 1410,483,0007%8 7T 9
by cash. Further details of the Scrip Dividend Scheme are set out in 3019¢$3ﬂ5§% ° 2019%F REIR 8 #O #2
the Company’s circular dated 20 December 2019. 778,841,000 TLEE AR S XA o UK
REFENE—SHBIHNAHR2019
F12R20H AR REEK ©
(b)  On 20 November 2020, the Company’s shareholders approved at the (b)  ®2020%11H208 - AQ AR BE

annual general meeting a final dividend of HK2.65 cents per ordinary
share payable in cash with a scrip dividend alternative (the “Scrip
Dividend Scheme 2020”) for the year ended 30 June 2020 (the “2020
Final Dividend”). During the year ended 30 June 2021, 9,590,136
new shares were issued by the Company at a deemed price of $1.19
per ordinary share, credited as fully paid, to shareholders of the
Company who had elected to receive scrip shares in lieu of cash to
settle the 2020 Final Dividend of HK$11,412,639. The remaining
balance of the 2020 Final Dividend of HK$8,880,000 was satisfied
by cash. Further details of the Scrip Dividend Scheme 2020 are set
out in the Company’s circular dated 14 December 2020.

20214F5R o

BERE EHEREHZE2020F6 4308
IEFERRARS SR MAR2.6551
AR B AR & A IH A ARA BE
BEHE([2020F AR B5TEI]) (12020
FRERRE]) - HE2021F6A30A LF
B AREREREER 198 THRE
BREAEERRARERMURERESH
AN E PR EE179,590,1360% ABRTIES
T2 BN - A 511,412,639 7T &9
20204 KR HARK B ° 20204 K HA A B ) £2
¥E8,880,000% L E AL LAIR £ 2 1 © 2020
FURRBEE A E—FFBHABH
2020512 B14B AR BB ©
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND WARRANTS

Share option schemes

The Company operates a pre-initial public offering share
option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”)
and a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
(collectively, the “Schemes”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. The principal terms
of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are similar to the terms
of the Share Option Scheme except that (i) no further options
could be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme;
and (ii) the exercise price and the exercise period of the share
options are different as further detailed below.

Eligible participants of the Schemes include the Company’s
directors, including independent non-executive directors, other
employees of the Group, consultants of the Group, suppliers
of goods or services to the Group, customers of the Group, the
Company’s shareholders, and any non-controlling shareholder
in the Company’s subsidiaries. The Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme was approved and adopted on 18 August 2015. The
Share Option Scheme became effective on 27 November 2015
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Schemes is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in
the Schemes within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders” approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the
closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant)
in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.
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BRETIARIARERE

fB IR Rt
ARBEEF XA E /B E
(TERARBEEABRETS ) MEK
A& ([ERERT &8 )) (s[5t 8 ]) -
BRI RMEAREEZEKRDBAERD
BEBR2EERERB LB - EAQ
FA 3% &5 A B O A 81 = B RN B A2
FTEMEFAEU - EATERIN - (VAR F
REBEEXAHZENBREFEREE
B + R (i BB R ROTTRE(E AT
BRZERN T -

EAER2HEEREARRES (B
BRIIENTES) AEBHAME
B AEEMER - mALERESER
SRIEHEER  AEEREF - ARQF
B P& BRI B 7R BB BB A B R (T fa] FE 4%
REARER - X AR E R BIRET SR
20158 H18 AR E RN - AR
HEI 2015511 278 A3 B IE
HihHABUHSEE] - BRIEZHEE
B WI0F o

B BRI A IR K RTTE B &
2 8B HERETREEARR R MR
B2 BT 10% © RIZERBE A RE
m2EA BEARESaERS RS
BTN ESHE - RRARBNE
fa] B PR 2 B 1T AR 19 1% © fEfal B bt IR
HNE-—TIRUBEREAERRAS
PR R A -

FMARBESE  THAHIETZMRK
EAREBHEARLNBREAFELE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND WARRANTS

(Continued)

Share option schemes (Continued)

The exercise price of share options under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is HK$1.2228 and the share options are
exercisable after a vesting period of one to two years in the

following manner:

Vesting period of
the relevant percentage of the options

BIREERE D LR

e B S R MY R

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

35. B AESTEIRRARESE @

MR REET 8 ()
BXAFBER BT SITE TR
RTEE A1.22288 7 - BB K —
EMFREBHEEATHRITE :

Maximum
percentage of
options
exercisable
AT 158 B A HE Y

R AN

From 18 August 2015 to 17 August 2016

From 18 August 2015 to 17 August 2017

2015 8H18H 220168 A17H 10%

20158 H18A E2017F8H17H 90%

The offer of a grant of share options under the Share Option
Scheme may be accepted upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme is determinable by the directors, and commences after
a vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than 10
years from the date of offer of the share options.

The exercise price of share options under the Share Option
Scheme is determinable by the directors, but may not be less
than the higher of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (ii) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of offer of
the share options; and (iii) the average of the closing prices
of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends

or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

RIBBRESRLE TRBRER
EREAXNRBARES K BTRE
B - RIFEEERT S| ERBRENTT
EHARESET  REFEBHRFHER
REREZOERENPRI0FENA
H o

BRETSETERENTEERES
BE - HASERORDHEE ()
RS RRERAMRARFRDNRE
PREEA R E - R
BHBERAMRARRRNDNEEE
REELH R RER S H KT
EABRSERE) -

AR B R TR A ABIREE AR
RREEREZRERN -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R MY R

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND WARRANTS 35. BREFE R RER &)

(Continued)
Share option schemes (Continued)
The following share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option

Scheme were outstanding during the year:

BRESE (8
FR - BRARABREHBREEET
ARTTE R BN T -

2021 2020
20215 20204

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
hnREF 33 BRE  ETH R
THREE #E TEfE 2B

HK$ HK$
per share 000 per share 000
BRAET T4 SERET T
At beginning of year REH 1.2228 27,008 1.2228 27,008
Exercised during the year FARITRE = = - -
At end of year RER 1.2228 27,008 1.2228 27,008

No share options were exercised during the years ended 30
June 2021 and 2020.
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30 June 2021
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND WARRANTS 35. BERESERIABRER &)

(Continued)
Share option schemes (Continued) BRESE (8
The following share options under the Share Option Scheme FA - BRETSIETHARTENER
were outstanding during the year: W
2021 2020
2021 20204
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
InREF 15 BRE TS B
TEE L 4= TE(E %A
HK$ HK$
per share 000 per share 000
BRER T#H  8RET T1n
At beginning of year REH] 1.91 19,270 1.91 19,270
Granted during the year FAKH 0.772 20,686 — -
Exercised during the year FRITE - - - -
Lapsed during the year FRKRK 1.65 (3,670) - -
At end of year RER 1.28 36,286 1.91 19,270
No share options were exercised during the years ended 30 B ZE2021F %2020F6 A308 IEFER
June 2021 and 2020. I E B AT
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30 June 2021
202196 A30H

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND WARRANTS 35.

(Continued)

BRESTERIRESE @

Share option schemes (Continued) BRESE (8
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options R¥RE R BB T HATTERBERERN
outstanding under the Schemes as at the end of the reporting TR ERITERANT :
period are as follows:
2021 20214
Number of Exercise
options price*  Exercise period
BREE TEE* 1T
HK$
000 per share
T BRETT
1,358 1.2228 18 August 2016 to 26 November 2022 20164851880 £20224 117268
25,650 1.2228 18 August 2017 to 26 November 2022 2017488188 20224115268
12,600 2.06 30 June 2019 to 5 November 2023 20196 H30H £2023F11 A5H
500 1.56 4 May 2020 to 3 May 2025 202055 H4H £20255H3H
1,000 1.56 4 May 2021 to 3 May 2025 202155 H4H E202555H3H
1,500 1.56 4 May 2022 to 3 May 2025 202245 H4H E20255%5H3H
8,274 0.772 26 May 2022 to 25 May 2029 202245 H26H E20295H25H
6,206 0.772 26 May 2023 to 25 May 2029 2023%F5H26H %2029 5H25H
6,206 0.772 26 May 2024 to 25 May 2029 202455 H26H E2029%5H25H
63,294
2020 2020
Number of Exercise
options price*  Exercise period
BAESE TEE*  17EH
HK$
000 per share
T BRETT
1,358 1.2228 18 August 2016 to 26 November 2022 20164851880 £20224 115268
25,650 1.2228 18 August 2017 to 26 November 2022 20174881880 £20224 117268
340 2.06 30 June 2017 to 29 June 2022 201756 H30H £202256 H29H
330 2.06 30 June 2018 to 29 June 2022 201856 H30H £202256H29H
12,600 2.06 30 June 2019 to 5 November 2023 20196308 £2023F 11 A5H
1,000 1.56 4 May 2020 to 3 May 2025 202055 H4H £20255%5H3H
2,000 1.56 4 May 2021 to 3 May 2025 2021455 H4H £20255%5H3H
3,000 1.56 4 May 2022 to 3 May 2025 2022455 H4H E2025%5H3H
46,278
e The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in * BB R 1T (E(E A A AR R AT AR B 1T 3

the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company’s share capital.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND WARRANTS

(Continued)

Share option schemes (Continued)

The fair value of the share options granted during the year
(ranged from HK$0.33 to HK$0.37 per each share option)
was amounted to HK$7,232,000. No share options were
granted during the year ended 30 June 2020. During the year
the Group recognised a share-based payment expense of
HK$1,833,000 (2020: HK$2,056,000).

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during
the year was estimated as at the date of grant using a binomial
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. The following table lists the
inputs to the model used:

e B S R MY R

30 June 2021
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35. B AESTEIRRARESE @

MR REET 8 ()
AEEAREBRENAABERS
7,232,000/ 7T (B D BEARE N F0.3378
JLE0378TT) © # E202066H30H
IEFERLEEHERE  REBRAK
FEANBERAURODAERNONRAX
1,833,0007% 7T (20204 : 2,056,000/8
TT) °

RAFERINABSEENBEREND

AEEREKEAAUN —BARAEE

A R R IR T AR A 1B R R AR A o
TRIEPAAEANGASE

2021

20214

Dividend yield (%) A& B 2 (%) 1.46
Expected volatility (%) Tﬁi\ﬁﬁ B (%) 53.99
Risk-free interest rate (%) % 1] 2 (%) 0.93
Expected life of options (year) ﬁﬁﬁx%fﬁ/ﬁﬂigﬂ () 8
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) IN#E T RE (BB L) 0.772
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND WARRANTS

(Continued)

Share option schemes (Continued)

The expected life of the options is not necessarily indicative of
the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility
reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative
of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual

outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into

the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
63,294,000 share options outstanding under the Schemes. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 63,294,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional share capital of approximately HK$63,000 and
share premium of approximately HK$79,568,000 (before issue

expenses).

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the Company had 63,294,000 share options
outstanding under the Schemes, which represented
approximately 8% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that
date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND WARRANTS

(Continued)

Warrants

On 24 October 2018, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement (“Subscription Agreement”) with Zheng He Health
and Medical Resources Limited (“Zheng He”), whereby
the Company agreed to issue the unlisted warrants for the
subscription of 110,411,000 shares of the Company to Zheng
He (or any company or trust under the control of Mr. Law
Siu Wah, Eddie nominated by Zheng He). The warrants will
rank pari passu in all respects among themselves. Zheng He
is ultimately controlled by Mr. Law Siu Wah, Eddie, and his
investment strategically focuses on the future technology
for medical and healthcare ecosystem. The vesting of
such warrants is subject to the fulfilment of certain agreed
milestones. The agreed milestones included: (i) technology
enhancement to leverage on Mr. Law’s experience and
network to bring the Group with strategic relationship; (ii)
granting a right to the Group to invest into a joint venture to
be established between Zheng He for building up a Hong Kong
based patient centric hub; and (iii) utilising Zheng He's global
capital market reach to optimise and enhance the Group’s
existing shareholding structure, including but not limited to the
introduction of strategic investors and elite financial investors,
and assist the Group in identifying future expansion and
acquisition opportunities.

The corresponding agreed number of warrants (varied on
different milestones) shall be vested with an exercise price
of HK$2.06 per warrant option. The warrants would vest and
become exercisable upon satisfaction of the above agreed
milestones within the 12 month period (subject to extension)
as specified in the Subscription Agreement. If the agreed
milestones are not satisfied during this period, the warrants
will lapse. Further details of which are set out in the circular
of the Company dated 29 October 2018. As a result of scrip
dividend distributed by the Company during the year ended 30
June 2020, the exercise price per warrant option was adjusted
to HK$2.0136 in January 2020. The exercise price per warrant
option was further adjusted to HK$2.0042 in April 2020 as a
result of the Company’s distribution of interim dividend. As
a result of scrip dividend distributed by the Company during
the year, the exercise price per warrant option was adjusted
to HK$1.9609 in January 2021. The exercise price per warrant
option was further adjusted to HK$1.9382 in April 2021 as a
result of the Company’s distribution.
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35. B AESTEIRRARESE @

M2018F10A248 * &N QA #Zheng
He Health and Medical Resources
Limited ([#8A0]) 5T 37 — I8 R B8 15 &
(IREHZ] Bl ARFREMR
BOAN (S BRI & R A B S A 1T
WEM AR HEFT) FTHELETARRK
- AR R R10,411,0000% I%
e RREFRILLAESEFTEEER
[E i o BF AN FR 48 55 3 % A & IR E
#l o HIR BRI R AN R EE AR
R ZARKREE - BEHRREE 2 5B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M RRM

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND WARRANTS 35. BREFE R RER &)

(Continued)

Warrants (Continued)

The fair value of warrants granted during the year ended 30
June 2019 was estimated as at the date of grant using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the warrants were granted.

The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

RIRER (E)
HZE2019F6 A30H L FEABE 2R
BEEZAARBENEIMAIE -8
Bl AT ERA G  BRERER
tH SRR AE FE WA IR R AR - T RESIE
FA 9 18 7Y ) A B o

2019

20194

Dividend yield (%) % B 2 2 (%) 1.60
Expected volatility (%) T8 HA R 18 (%) 56.32
Risk-free interest rate (%) A R B M) K (%) 2.57 - 2.60
Expected life of warrants (year) RIREB AR FH (F) 3.5 -4.44
Exercise price (HK$ per share) INEF I IRE (BB L) 2.06

On the date of grant, the fair values of warrants to be issued
for each milestone were HK$22,362,000, HK$25,226,000 and
HK$25,226,000, respectively.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, upon the fulfilment of
one of the vesting conditions, 36,803,667 warrants were issued
which were exercisable between 6 June 2019 to 6 June 2022.
The remaining vesting conditions were not fulfilled by Zheng
He upon expiry on 14 November 2019. There was no exercise
of warrant options during the current and prior years.

During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Group recognised a
reversal of share-based payment expense of HK$15,150,000
while a share-based payment expense of HK$37,512,000 was
recognised during the year ended 30 June 2019. There was no
change/reversal of share-based payment expenses during the
current year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
36,803,667 warrants outstanding. The exercise in full of
the outstanding warrants would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 36,803,667
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional
share capital of approximately HK$37,000 and share premium
of approximately HK$75,779,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the Company had 36,803,667 warrants outstanding
under the schemes, which represented approximately 5% of
the Company’s shares in issue as at that date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 30 June 2016, the Company adopted a share award scheme
(the “Share Award Scheme”) for the purpose of recognising
the contributions by certain eligible participants and providing
them with incentives in order to retain them for the continual
operation and development of the Group and to attract suitable
personnel for the growth and further development of the
Group.

Eligible participants of the Share Award Scheme include the
Company’s directors, senior management and other employees
of the Group, and employed experts of the Group. The Share
Award Scheme will remain in force for 10 years from 30 June

2016, unless otherwise cancelled or amended.

The maximum number of shares currently permitted to be
granted under the Share Award Scheme is limited to 2% of
the issued share capital of the Company at any time. The
maximum number of shares which may be awarded to each
eligible participant in the Share Award Scheme is limited to
1% of the issued share capital of the Company in each year.

The eligible participant for participation in the Share Award
Scheme (the “Selected Participant”) is selected and the number
of shares to be awarded under the Share Award Scheme is
determined by the board of directors. The shares to be awarded
under the Share Award Scheme will be purchased by a trustee
(the “Trustee”) from the open market out of cash contributed
by the Group and be held on trust for the Selected Participant
until such shares are vested with the Selected Participant in

accordance with the provisions of the Share Award Scheme.

The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect
of any shares held on trust for the Group or the Selected
Participant.

During the year, the Group purchased 1,130,000 (2020:
518,000) of its own shares through the Trustee from the open
market. The total amount paid to acquire the shares was
approximately HK$1,030,000 (2020: HK$708,000) and has
been deducted from equity. As at 30 June 2021, such shares
were classified as treasury shares of the Company as they were

not yet vested.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M RRM

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

36. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued) 36. R REEE ()
During the year, 600,000 (2020: 1,390,000) share awards have FR BREKRMER R T
been granted under the Share Award Scheme and 196,002 600,000/ % 22 B) (20204 :
(2020: 185,609) shares of the Company were scrip dividends 1,390,0000%) M 196,002% (20204 :
with respect to shares of the Company held under the Share 185,6090% ) AN 12 B AR 19 7% AR 17 B2 B 51
Award Scheme. EIETIER 2 AR R RHAIERER SR
e
The movements in the Company’s shares held under the Share RNRFIRR D BB 818 TR MR G5 R
Award Scheme during the years ended 30 June 2021 and 2020 HE20219F X2020F6 A30B IEFE 2
are as follows: SEIT
Shares held
under the
Number of Share Award
ordinary shares Scheme
iR 17 2 B 5 &l
ZRREAE HTHEENRAG
HK$'000
FAT
At 1 July 2019 20197 A1H 9,366,000 14,620
Purchases of shares for the share award  FtR% {7 ZEN T 2IE E % (5
scheme 518,000 708
Allotment of scrip shares fid 3 X B A% 19 185,609 260
Issuance of share awards immediately ITENES 53 B I A% 1 22 D
vested (1,390,000) (2,158)
At 30 June 2020 and at 1 July 2020 72020468308 &
20207 A1H 8,679,609 13,430
Purchases of shares for the share award — FtA% 5 BB =1 2188 B I 15
scheme 1,130,000 1,030
Allotment of scrip shares fid 2 B AR D 196,002 233
At 30 June 2021 7202146 A308 10,005,611 14,693
As at 30 June 2021, 6,180,000 (2020: 5,630,000) awarded R2021F6H30H - 6,180,000H§(2020
shares are outstanding and these awarded shares were included F 1 5,630,0000%) ZEIIK 9 A& 1 K TT
in 10,005,611 (2020: 8,679,609) shares of the Company held - ZEEFRMNDBIEERD EZEBT
under the Share Award Scheme. 2178 TFE ¥ #910,005,6110% (20204 :

8,679,6090%) KRB MDA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued)

Details of the awarded shares outstanding as at 30 June 2021

and 2020 were set out as follows:

30 June 2021

36.

e B S R MY R

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

B% 7 s B Et &l (@)
A20214 K2020%6 A308 » 31T
R EEENAR D SEB AR

2021%F6H30H

Number of awarded shares

ZRRGEUE
Share price
as at As at Granted Vested  Forfeited As at
the date Grant 1 July during during during 30 June
Date of grant of grant price 2020 the year the year the year 2021  Vesting period
R A8 #2020% ®2021%
R A NROER BREER 7A1B FaRiM FAEE FRRW  6A30E HEH
HK$ HK$
BT BT
30 June 2021 0.93 - - 600,000  (600,000) - - Granted and
immediately
vested on 30 June
2021
2021%6A308 B&RH RR20214F
6A30RAKEE
— 600,000  (600,000) - -

202145% » BHABKEEARAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30 June 2021
202196 A30H

36. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued) 36. RIPEBIETE ()
30 June 2020 20206 A30H

Number of awarded shares

RBROHE
Share price
as at As at Granted Vested  Forfeited As at
the date Grant 1 July during during during 30 June
Date of grant of grant price 2019 the year the year the year 2020  Vesting period
REEAH 20195 72020%F
REBAH WROER RHEK 7A1B FEaRH FAEE FRRW  6A30E HEH
HK$ HK$
BT BT
17 July 2018* 1.78 1.5 1,165,000 - (1,165,000) - - 17 July 2018
to 30 June 2020
2018F7H178* 201857H17HE
202056308

27 September 2019 1.2 - - 1,290,000 (1,290,000) - - 27 September 2019

2019%9H27H 2019%9A27H

28 February 2020 1.45 - - 100,000 (100,000) - - 28 February 2020 to

20 March 2020
2020%2A28H 202092H28H %
202043 A20H

1,165,000 1,390,000 (2,555,000) - -

* During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Company passed an * REZE2020F6 A30R FFE - RAFB
ordinary resolution to extend the exercise period of a total of BEBRER  SEREBRO B
5,630,000 awarded shares, which have been vested under the Share 558 2 A ££5,630,000/% 22 E AR (D O T {E
Award Scheme, from the original expiry date of 30 June 2020 and 30 BA @ IR 7] I B8 H2020%F 6 A30H %2021
June 2021 to 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2022, respectively. F6A30H D RIER E2021F6H30H &

2022F6H30H °

The Group recognised a share-based payment expense of REERBZE202156H30R ILFE#

HK$558,000 (2020: HK$1,856,000) during the year ended 30 B IAR A7 /3 BB 0 5 R B 5 558,00078

June 2021. 7T (20204 : 1,856,000/ 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 145 to
146 of the consolidated financial statements.

Capital contribution reserve

Capital contribution reserve represents (i) the fair value of
the shares of the then ultimate holding company that were
used to satisfy the consideration of the Group’s acquisition of
equity interests in certain subsidiaries and additional interests
in certain subsidiaries in 2014; (ii) the waiver of amounts
due to the then ultimate holding company and a major
beneficial shareholder of the Company for the acquisition of
a subsidiary; and (iii) the waiver of other payable by a former

non-controlling shareholder.

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value
of share options, warrants and share awards granted
which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payments in note 2.4 to the
consolidated financial statements. The amount will either be
transferred to the share premium account when the related
share options or warrants or share awards are exercised, or be
transferred to retained profits should the related share options
or warrants or share awards expire or be forfeited.

Details of the Company’s share option schemes and warrants
are included in note 35 and share award scheme are
included in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements,

respectively.

Legal reserve

The legal reserve represents (i) the transfer of the profit
generated from subsidiaries incorporated in Macau from
retained profits to the legal reserve in accordance with article
377 of the Macao Commercial Code until the legal reserve
balance reaches half of the capital of the relevant subsidiaries;
and (ii) pursuant to the relevant laws and regulation in
Mainland China, a portion of the profit of the Company’s
subsidiaries in Mainland China has been transferred to legal
reserve which is restricted to use. The legal reserve is not
distributable.
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e B RS R MY R

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

38. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 38.

AREARFERESHNIZE

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material

non-controlling interests are set out below:

B /8 2 =]
BEEEXREERESHNAEBKNE R R
FEESAT

2021 2020
20214 20204
Percentage of equity interest held by FEE A A 25 15 A B AR
non-controlling interests: Elga
SkinCentral Limited (“SkinCentral”) ZNBa R EROERAA
(r=mn 40% 40%
UMP Healthcare China and its subsidiaries  H& B 755 Bl & E i B A A
(the “UMP Healthcare China Group”) ((MeBBrPEHEHR)) 20% 20%
2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHET
Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to DB TFIEERERNFA
non-controlling interests: A/ (E18)
SkinCentral = 3,616 4,000
UMP Healthcare China Group B BBhEEE (12,788) (6,507)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests: B 13RSm0 % 5 -
SkinCentral =0 - 10,178
UMP Healthcare China Group BeBBhEEE = -
Accumulated balances of non-controlling R R4 B 2 JF 128 IEHE 25 &Y
interests at the reporting date: E
SkinCentral =8 17,665 14,049
UMP Healthcare China Group BaBBETEER 16,294 28,609
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(Continued)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial

information of the above subsidiaries, modified for fair value

e B S R MY R

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

38. AREAFERBENFEZE

ff B A = (@)

TRFAALHB AR5 E R
Z WHARKBERENAABERENE
HER] - I BESERAREBEIMAF

adjustments on acquisition. The amounts disclosed are before

any inter-company eliminations:

R

UMP Healthcare

SkinCentral China Group
EN BEBBTEER
2021 20214 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THBT
Revenue WA 62,674 43,293
Profit/(loss) for the year FRFE (&) 9,041 (63,939)
Total comprehensive FAZEBA(E8)
income/(loss) for the year FEEE 9,041 (61,562)
Current assets mENE B 25,439 74,467
Non-current assets ERBEE 62,729 35,327
Current liabilities mEEE (21,570) (79,343)
Non-current liabilities JEMEBBE (16,418) (9,515)
Net cash flows from operating RETFHRERS
activities e R 26,095 (13,091)
Net cash flows used in investing wEFHFARE
activities e (3,274) (11,449)
Net cash flows used in financing MEFSMARS
activities Di=PE:E-E! (15,799) (11,518)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RekReZEEY
cash equivalents g, O ) #58 7,022 (36,058)
UMP Healthcare
SkinCentral China Group
ZEl BMEBKTEREE
2020 2020%F HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
Revenue WA 58,091 38,380
Profit/(loss) for the year FERFE, (EE) 10,680 (32,536)
Total comprehensive FR2EEA(EE)
income/(loss) for the year 1B %E 10,680 (34,329)
Current assets mBEE 15,733 69,198
Non-current assets EMEBEE 50,429 54,839
Current liabilities mENBE (17,363) (17,347)
Non-current liabilities EmBBEE (7,683) (23,840)
Net cash flows from operating KRB RE
activities =R 30,904 80,561
Net cash flows used in investing wEFHFARS
activities P=PE:E=C! (9,983) (7,625)
Net cash flows used in financing MEESMAR S
activities mEFE (19,778) (5,387)
Net increase in cash and RekBEeEEY
cash equivalents 1 0F 58 1,143 67,549

20214 3R o FpAEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M RRM

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

39. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

In order to develop the Group’s corporate healthcare solution
and clinical healthcare businesses and to continually provide
comprehensive and integrated healthcare services for the
benefit of the patients, the Group entered into the following
transactions during the years ended 30 June 2020 and 2021:

(a)

On 1 November 2019, the Group acquired 100% equity

39. ¥ 46t

interest in Axon from several independent third parties for

a consideration of HK$12.5 million. Axon is engaged in

the provision of magnetic resonance imaging, scanning

and laboratory services in Hong Kong.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of

Axon as at the date of business combination was follows:

(a)

RERAEENDEZRREBRRT R
RERARBRREEB I RESBERMR

AN
%\T\Cl

Z2020%F N2021F6HA30B IEFEE
WTER5 :

TEBERERY  AREREH

R2019F11 818 » REELA12.5
BEBATHRERNEEBLIE=
7B 215 2 100%M8 4 - ZI=7E
BEANERHEAOKLIRKE - FHE
MG AR -

REBAFAMRENAI#AEE
ERBENAREBENT

Fair value
recognised
on business
combinations
HEXKE G
[k YY)
AREE
Notes HK$’000
MI=E FHETT
Property, plant and equipment mE - BE KRB 14 2,596
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15(a) 3,324
Trade receivables 2 5 W IR 950
Prepayment, deposits and other BN REE K
receivables E b & W FR IR 2,139
Tax recoverable GRS qEE 7R 66
Cash and bank balances Re RIBTTHER 568
Other payables and accruals Hth &~ 518 N EAHE B (715)
Lease liabilities HEaE 15(b) (3,350)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIAAE 32 (422)
Provision il 33 (200)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 22 £ BB EH
Al AFE E R 4,956
Goodwill on acquisition WHEEL R 16 7,553
12,509
Satisfied by: AT 5 & IEER
Cash consideration HeRE 9,500
Other payables H b & 1< 5K I8 3,009
12,509

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ 2021 ANNUAL REPORT



39. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B S R MY R

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

39. ¥ &6t

(Continued) (@ (&)
The fair values of the trade receivables and other B 5 W IR & H ) WRIE R
receivables as at the date of business combination XA EHNRRBESRR
amounted to HK$950,000 and HK$10,000, respectively. 950,0007% 7T 510,000 7T © & 5)
The gross contractual amounts of trade receivables and JE W R IR B oA FE MR IE Y & K48
other receivables were HK$950,000 and HK$10,000, €55 5 £950,0007% 7T 210,000
respectively. BT e
The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$60,000 for AEERBBEXEBAHEERS
this business combination. This transaction costs have X 760,000/ 7T ° b R 5K AN E
been expensed and are included in other expenses, net in XEWAAGZERERROEME
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. SR
Goodwill arose from the acquisition of Axon represented WEZEESNEEHEMAHRK
the premium paid for the benefits of expected synergies A1§?§F&$'§ B R B EIRMLS
from combining operation of Axon and the Group to BRI L ETROT
provide comprehensive and integrated services for the HxﬁUEE’])& ST E)E (B - B
patients. None of the goodwill recognised is expected to CHERABERPAIENH A -
be deductible for tax purposes.
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the HZEAHERIREREDN
combination of Axon is as follows: LU
HK$’000
FETT
Cash consideration BeRE (9,500)
Cash and bank balances acquired P B3R & MER1T 45 84 568
Net outflow of cash and cash FAREEBAERS
equivalents included in cash flows mEANNRE KR
used in investing activities ZEYIRLFRE (8,932)
Since the combination, Axon contributed HK$4,334,000 B& AR - ZEEHH E20209F
to the Group’s revenue and loss of HK$1,638,000 to the 6ﬂ 30H IEFERAREBR I A MK
consolidated profit of the Group for the year ended 30 B 4R & N E 5 Bl & Bl4,334,000
June 2020. %75&)%%@1,638,000;‘%7‘5 ]
Had the combination taken place at the beginning of fid & BE P S 11T - B E20205F
the year, the revenue of the Group and the profit of the 6 A30H IEFEM AL B A KA
Group for the year ended 30 June 2020 would have been E B F 5 Bl A£560,461,00075
HK$560,461,000 and HK$60,490,000, respectively. 7T }.60,490,000/5 T °
On 25 March 2021, the Group entered into a sale and (b)y H2021F3A25H8 * AEEVE

purchase agreement to acquire the remaining 75%
equity interest in Flash Mover at a total consideration of
HK$15,120,000 (the “Step Acquisition”). The principal
activity of Flash Mover is the provision of MRI services.

202145 3F o MEEKRE

179 3% LA15,120,0005% 7T B9 42 1%
BUEERE 7 82 N75%RHE ([D
RUEE]) - REX BRFIREY

N IR ERTS -

fah A\ EE

EARQA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M RRM

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

39. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 39. ¥ &/
At 31 March 2021, the fair value of the Group’s 25% M2021%F3A31H BB EMH A

shareholding in Flash Mover was estimated by management at EERRE225%REN DR EE
#%4,305,0007% 7T - £ fl {8 A1 & 18 B
BREEMRL EERLIABEKSR
1,576,000/ T °

HK$4,305,000. Compared with the respective carrying amount
before valuation, a fair value gain of HK$1,576,000 was

recognised.

PR2021F3 A31B =MD R KEE - &
B (REBER2S%EZMEZE AT BEAK
BAEENZENBEAR -

Upon the completion of the Step Acquisition on 31 March
2021, Flash Mover, a former 25% associate, became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

RUEEEHMERBZEERDREZA

The fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the

acquisition date were as follows: BERNAREBEAT
Fair value
recognised
on business
combination
HEXKE 6
mERKN
AREE
Notes HK$’000
F 5 FHT
Property, plant and equipment E R E 14 4,285
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15(a) 2,796
Trade receivables B 5 WA 1,895
Prepayments, other receivables and TERIA - HEREER
other assets Hin &= 473
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEEEEYD 3,410
Lease liabilities HEBRE 15(b) (2,805)
Other payables and accruals H fth & A 508 K e 5T B A (8,590)
Tax payable JE& 5 15 38 (807)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value AR BESERWA] R
FEERE 657
Goodwill on acquisition WHEEL D HE 16 18,768
19,425
Satisfied by: ATHIEIEER
Fair value of the Group's existing shareholding ~ AEEIBEREN QA EE 4,305
Cash consideration REaRE 15,120
19,425
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)
The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$15,000 for this

business combination. This transaction cost has been expensed
and is included in other expenses, net in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.

Goodwill arising from the acquisition of Flash Mover
represented the premium paid for the benefits of expected
synergies from combining the operations of Flash Mover and
the Group to provide comprehensive and integrated services
for patients. None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be
deductible for tax purposes.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the combination of
Flash Mover is as follows:

e B S R MY R

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

39. ¥ &6t

AEBRBEXEBEEHEERIHA
15,0008 7T ° LR ZKAD T A
A BnRNHEMAI FE -

BEREELMABERBBHIREHR
ERAKERBERNREE R —BILR
75 O 2 18 T DR B 195 [R) 2080 ) Sk P S A+
HE(E o BB D R B R A EMR
ZH e

HRBSHABZRSRENTWT -

HK$’000

THETT

Cash consideration BeRE 15,120
Cash and cash equivalents acquired and net cash XU — B R R Z IKRER < &

inflow from Step Acquisition of a subsidiary REeFEWARRESRAFR (3,410)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included 5 AKREFEFARESREANANRES X

in cash flows used in investing activities ReFEYRLFRE 11,710

Since the combination, Flash Mover contributed HK$4,254,000
to the Group’s revenue and profit of HK$789,000 to the
consolidated profit of the Group for the year ended 30 June
2021.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year,
the contribution to the revenue and the profit of the Group for
the year would have been HK$14,847,000 and HK$3,296,000,
respectively.

BEPAR - REEH E20215F6H4
30BEFEHARERKARAKEBEL
& FE 9 Bl = Bk4,254,0005 7T & FE
789,000/8 T °

e HRENET  HAFENAEKHE

WARFEZ BB D B A14,847,000
BT K3,296,000/8 7T ©

2021F% » BMEBBKEERRAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R MY R

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

The Group disposed of its equity interest in certain subsidiaries
during the years ended 30 June 2020 and 2021.

(@)  On 1 August 2019, the Group disposed of its 60% equity
interest in United Oncology to an independent third party
for a consideration of HK$440,000. United Oncology was
engaged in the provision of oncology services as at the
date of disposal.

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents

40. HEKE QA
REE B R E E2020F 202166 A30H
IHFERNHEENE THEB R RIMAE -

(@) M2019F8AH1H  AN%EEU
440,000 TR EM —BELE
—HHEHERBEAHBEERY L
BI60% X1 - BB A BBEHOR
HERHRESREERRRE -

HEMBRARMNAS RS EE

in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows: MmANFBEIFTOT
HK$’000
FET
Cash consideration HeRE 440
Cash and bank balances disposed of FTHER & RIRITH & (1,248)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in BRIHEHBRAFTMNIERE K
respect of the disposal of a subsidiary ReEBYR L FE (808)
Year ended 30 June 2020 HE2020F6A30R LFE
Notes HK$’000
B 5 FHET
Net assets disposed of: P& FEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BE MEE 14 1,119
Inventories FE 560
Cash and bank balances R& MIRITHER 1,248
Trade payables B 5 RN HRIE (955)
Due to fellow subsidiaries JFE AT [R) Z BT /& & RIFRIE (2,576)
Deferred tax liabilities REHIBEE 32 (178)
Other assets and liabilities EMEELAGE (499)
Non-controlling interests FEVE R M A 492
(789)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FEME QR WS 1,229
Total consideration BB 440
Satisfied by: IAT3IE B ER -
Cash Re 440
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a)

e B S R MY R

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

40. HEMEB QT (@)

(Continued) @ (&)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents HEWNBARNRERREEE
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: MRAFEITOT
Health Excellent
Network City Total
25 Excellent City &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET
Cash consideration and net inflow ReREBERFTAKREZEAM
of cash and cash equivalents included ~ E£BRE&RENRE R
in cash flows from investing activities ReEBWRANFE - 65,920 65,920
On 31 December 2020, the Group entered into a (b)y FH2020F12A31H  AEEHHE

shareholders’ agreement with 6 independent third-parties
in relation to a previously 100% held subsidiary of
the Group, Acton. Pursuant to the agreement, the
6 independent third-parties would inject additional
capital into Acton and become shareholders of Acton.
Subsequent to the transaction, the Group’s shareholding
in Acton decreased from 100% to 30.5% and the Group
ceased control over Acton. As a result, Acton has become
a joint venture of the Group from upon completion of
the transaction on 1 January 2021. A resulting gain on
disposal of HK$2,610,000 was recognised in profit and
loss during the year.

o A —

BB E = ARAEER Z A
100%%5 A &) Fff |8 22 BlActoni] 32
—HEBRREWE REBEZME - Z
6% B E =75 1 FActon)E A FR
INE R A AK AActonBI R R o X
T 1E - N & B L Acton’ ik
REF100% P& Z30.5%im A &
THEIZESIActon » Allt » BT
% > ActonBE2021%F1B1HRERK A
AEBNEERR - AHEED
2,610,000 T K E W m B HEF
M) 18 & R -

20215% o BABHEEARAH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M RRM

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(@) Major non-cash transactions

(i)

(ii)

During the year, the Group had non-cash
additions to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities of HK$58,012,000 and HK$58,012,000,
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements
for leased properties (2020: HK$27,591,000 and
HK$27,591,000).

During the year, the Group entered into tenancy
agreements in respect of certain of its medical
centres and office premises. Pursuant to the terms
of respective tenancy agreements entered into by
the Group, the Group is required to restore the
leased properties to the conditions as stipulated in
the tenancy agreements. Accordingly, a provision
for reinstatement costs in respect of the leased
properties of the Group amounting to HK$nil (2020:
HK$475,000) was recognised and these costs
were included as part of the cost of the property,
plant and equipment of the Group and reflected as
additions to leasehold improvements of the Group
during the current year.
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41. ZEREREBRME

(@)

FEFRERS

(i)

(i)

REFEAN  ZEBBHER
HENEZHERENER
BEERMEBGENIERS
ANE D R A58,012,0007% 7T
558,012,000/ 7T (20204F :
27,591,000/ 7T £27,591,000
EIT) °

REAFERN AEEREE
FEBROLRPERNEMEE]
VHEERE o BIEAEE
AIVEBRBEEREAGIR
REBEBHEMEBLER
THEBRTETEAIMEE -
I EERAEEHEYE
BRAEEZT AT (2020
1 475,000 70) - Mt E
PR AVERANEBE Y -
BB MR ERAR—E5
YHRAFERBAREEM
EYERIEREN -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 41. 8B ERERXRME »)
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b)

activities

METHELENAEEH

Lease liabilities

HE&SE
HK$’000
FET
At 1 July 2019 (restated) M2019F7A18 (& E5) 103,504
Changes from financing cash flows MERSRNEY (43,890
New leases WEE 27,591
Lease modification HEBN (52)
Rent concessions HE e (1,987)
Increase arising from acquisition of W iE — R M B A B EE £ R N
a subsidiary 3,350
Decrease arising from disposal of & — R BB A B E A R A
a subsidiary (855)
Exchange realignment P& 5 % (1,096)
At 30 June 2020 and 1 July 2020 7202056 4308 &2020F7A1H 86,565
Changes from financing cash flows MERSRNED (47,248)
New leases MHEE 58,012
Lease modification HEBN (249)
Rent concessions HERR (1,581)
Increase arising from acquisition of Uit i — Fil BfT J88 2 ) 2 Ak #9038 0
a subsidiary 2,805
Decrease arising from disposal of s - E QR EERIRD
a subsidiary (4,861)
Non-current liabilities reclassified as ~ EH D BARFHHELHEEEZERDEE
assets for sale (18,447)
Exchange realignment bEE 5 58 B 3,031
At 30 June 2021 72202146 H30H 78,027

20214F5R o

e B RERRAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R MY R

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases
The total cash outflow for leases included in the

41. GEBRERERMT 3

(c HENRERHAR
IAREREXRNBEERS R

statement of cash flows is as follows: wWERE R
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT T T
Within operating activities KEEHA 3,806 5,988
Within financing activities BEEEA 47,248 43,890

42. COMMITMENTS 42. EIE

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end
of the reporting period:

RB|ERK > AEEWEAAEWT

2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$000 HK$’000
FERT FET

Contracted, but not provided for: BET 4B R B
Leasehold improvements HEYEE 1,859 21
Fixtures and office equipment RERBRERE - 44
Medical equipment B - 16,276
Computer equipment and software BHERR 8 B - 115
1,859 16,456

The Group’s share of capital commitments of the joint ventures

not included above are as follows:

VEFALXZAKEDIERERFZ
BAREPENT

2021 2020

20215 20204

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Contracted but not provided for BRI KB R B 548 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@)

In addition to the transactions, arrangements and

balances detailed elsewhere in these consolidated

financial statements, the Group had the following

43. BB AR S
YT PN

FHHR 5 « R RAERIN

(@)

30 June 2021

2021F6HA30H

TSR E M7 A

R

N AEEEERTETHEAR

material transactions with related parties during the year: S0
2021 2020
20214 20205
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
i THET TAET
Associates: BE QT
Administrative support fee income THXFHERKA (i) 548 505
Professional services expense HXERBGER (i) 2,743 2,663
Healthcare services income BERRERBE KA (iii) 650 240
Joint ventures: E&RQA
Administrative support fee income TERXFHERKA (i) 97 142
Professional services expense EXRBER (i) 526 872
Related companies*: 2 /N R
Lease payments/property rental and MERNR/ MEBRE (v
related expenses SR § 6,826 6,603
Contract healthcare solution A X B RIRERR
services income ES N (v) 17,497 20,548
Management fee income EEERIA (vi) - 1,014
Administrative support fee income THRXFHERKRA (i) - 81
Professional services expense EXRBER (vii) = 2,054
Purchases of property, plant and BEEYE BEXK
equipment R (viii) = 519
* Certain directors and/or beneficial shareholders of the * KARETERER AEHZRE
Company are also directors and/or beneficial shareholders of NARZEWEBARNES R
these related companies. BmRR -
2021F % » BAaBKEERRAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M RRM

30 June 2021

202196 A30H

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(Continued)

(@)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The administrative support fee income was related to
administrative support services, such as payroll services,
rendered by the Group and was charged at terms mutually
agreed between the relevant parties.

The professional services expense was related to healthcare
services rendered by associates and joint ventures and was
charged at terms mutually agreed between the relevant parties.

The healthcare services income was related to medical
services rendered by the Group and was charged at terms
mutually agreed between the relevant parties.

The lease payments/property rental and related expenses
were related to the leasing of certain medical centres or
premises for the Group’s operation and were charged at
terms stipulated in the respective tenancy agreements. Lease
payments included depreciation charge of right-of-use assets,
interest on lease liabilities and rental expense amounting to
HK$5,233,000 (2020: HK$6,249,000), HK$201,000 (2020:
HK$354,000) and HK$1,392,000 (2020: Nil), respectively.
The corresponding right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
as at 30 June 2021 are HK$2,202,000 and HK$2,949,000,
respectively.

Contract healthcare solution services income was related
to the provision of healthcare services to the employees of
related companies and was charged at terms mutually agreed
between the relevant parties.

The management fee income was related to the administrative
and management services rendered by the Group and
was charged at terms stipulated in the respective service
agreements.

The professional services expense was related to healthcare
services rendered by the related companies and was charged
at terms mutually agreed between the relevant parties.

The purchases of property, plant and equipment from related
companies were negotiated on an individual transaction basis
as mutually agreed between the parties.
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43. BB AR Z (&)

(@)

(&)

CEX

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

THXHERRARREERHEN
HOHAR 75 % B2 S RIS BRI N
LAEEAERETT B A0 TE VIR E -

EXRBEADBERRARAE
REAAEERENREERS - 1%
18 B8 75 M8 E 1 B IR FRRE -

BB R 2 AR S A B R 52 [ 4R
BB R RIS ERBE L ABRE AR
MR E -

MENR WERERIEEERHR
FES TEERLHAEBMUOLEE
HAER - WEMNBERE RN
FTRAMGERIKE - HENRBEE
AREEZNESZL  HEBEZ
FERBEERZ S A /5,233,000
7T (20204 : 6,249,000/ 7T) -
201,000/ 7t (20204 : 354,000
7 70) 51,392,000 7T (2020
£ 4E) 0 2021966 A308 2 48
EEAEEERAEAES A
2,202,000 7T 52,949,000/ 7T ©

BHBERREBERTRRIEEA
HEREBARNERRMNER
RIERFB AR ZAEITEE
HTE MR E -

EEEBRAEREBRIRMANT
Bk EERFEBLRIEE R
GAE RS

SERBE M EEEB R EEND
BRREREARE  XAREEBS
HEAENERLE -

REBARBEDE  BE &R 1%
RBANHTAEREZ BRI
AR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Other transactions with related parties
Professional services fees paid to the executive directors
of the Company in relation to the rendering of healthcare

e B S R MY R

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

43. BB AR B (@)
(b) HEBAES X3
BN B IR 4 B R (R AR A5 1
FAAFRTEENILRLE

services to the Group are as follows: ol
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael A EBRE A 2,803 1,508
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick THREEE 4,137 4,394
6,940 5,902

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

(0 AEEETREBASHRM :

2021 2020

2021% 2020%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT THTT

Short term employee benefits % B B E A 19,084 16,640

Post-employment benefits BB 1R 48 A 77 80
Equity-settled share-based AR S E W BARR 1)

payment expense RERONRFX 192 1,116

Total compensation paid to key ERNEFZERAE
management personnel Z RN e 19,353 17,836

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in
note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items (a)
(iv), (@)(v), (a)(vi), (a)(vii) and (b) above also constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

MREFHMZE—FHBIARN
REMBRKRMEI

B L 3@)(iv) ~ (@)(v) * (@)(vi)
(a)(vii) K.(b)IE 2 BRH 75 22 5 TN K
ETRAIFI4AAZERTE ZBER

202145% » BHABKEEARAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M RRM

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

4. TR TESE
RIFEHF S4BT ANEEEN

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2021
Financial assets

Financial
assets at fair value
throu§ profit or loss

™

20214
tRMEE

Financial assets at
fair value through other
comprehensive income

BARBETARE BRABEGA
HemEE H2EUANEREE
Designated Financial
Mandatorily as such assets at
designated  upon initial Deht Equity ~ amortised
assuch  recognition  investments  investments cost Total
RERBAR s ¥
BHEEAR EEARR RAGHER
BRUFAE  WEAMHE BHRE Rxk& SREE CHI
HK§000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TiEn TR TR TR TR TR
Financial assets at amortised cost % % 3K A £ 4
LREE = = = = 33,071 33,071
Investments at fair value through ~ BAAEEH AL
other comprehensive income 2ARARRE - = = 23,603 = 23,603
Trade receivables BHEMTE - - - = 83,364 83,364
Financial assets included in SABRTE - £ft
prepayments, other receivables FERFIE R A
and other assets BEMSREE = = = = 28,391 28,391
Financial assets at fair value through 2 # BB ABE
profit or loss Zimﬂ?ﬁ? - 27,115 - - - 27,115
Due from associates e & DAl = = = = 3,730 3,730
Due from a joint venture EY—RaERRINE - - - - 451 451
Due from related companies ) UNG r)\ - - = = 1,220 1,220
Pledged deposits BRER - - - - 1,893 1,893
Cash and cash equivalents BeRELEEN = = = = 293,974 293,974
- 27,115 - 23,603 446,094 496,812
Financial liabilities cTREE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
BRBERATE
NEmMaE
HK$’000
THERT
Trade payables g 5 & RIA 62,185
Financial liabilities included in other payables FT A H At FE A 5RIE &
and accruals EErERONTREE 28,297
Due to associates JE Bt i X ) FRIE =
Due to related companies JE& 1<t R BsE X ) SRIR 5,618
Due to a joint venture T —fE&a& R RIHKIE 561
Lease liabilities HEBE 78,027
174,688
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 44. ST A28 @)

(Continued)
2020 20204

Financial assets

Financial
assets at fair value
through profit or loss
BAnBEGAER

TREE

Financial assets at
fair value through other
comprehensive income

BOABEA

MemEE EeAlANERERE
Designated Financial
Mandatorily as such assets at
designated  upon initial Debt Equity amortised
as such recognition investments  investments cost Total
RERERE REH
HHETA BT AR AT ER
REFRE  HFRE EXRE RARE SREE Rt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FEL FHL T T THL
Financial assets at amortised cost ~ RE# R AT EH
PRARE - - - - 55,852 55,852
Investments at fair value through %24 BE AE A
other comprehensive income 2EUANEE - - 5,494 17,693 - 23,187
Trade receivables 2 S RIE - - - - 74,354 74,354
Financial assets included in STABRTE £t
prepayments, other receivables YR A
and other assets BENMSREE 9,589 - - - 29,395 38,984
Financial assets at fair value through %24 BEF AER
profit or loss Z?pﬁﬁ? - 1,723 - - - 1,723
Due from associates [ A NGE e - - - - 2,204 2,204
Due from related companies [ NGE e - - - - 1,220 1,220
Pledged deposits BAER - - - - 1,354 1,354
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBELZEY - - - - 230,671 230,671
9,589 1,723 5,494 17,693 395,050 429,549
Financial liabilities o=
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
RS KA 2
HerAaE
HK$’000
FET
Trade payables 2 Z RN HIA 36,370
Financial liabilities included in other payables ET A EL & 5RIE
and accruals EirEAMNsREaE 29,492
Due to associates JE ST B & R R 3NIE 184
Due to related companies J& 1~ BA B 1~ A FRIE 2,020
Due to a joint venture FEN—REaE AT A 203
Lease liabilities HEAE 86,565
154,834
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45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 45. ERHITEMNAREBERAALE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BEEM®
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial rEENeREE (REAERAREE
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that are AEBAENTREERIN NEREEN
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows: ARBENT :
Carrying amounts Fair values
ARMEE DMREE
2021 2020 2021 2020
20214 2020%F 20214 20204

HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$’000
TERT TAET TERT TAET

Financial assets cRMEE
Financial assets at amortised R HK A2
cost WEFEE
— Listed debt investments — L EBKRA 33,071 55,852 33,053 55,970
Investments at fair value through %A 7 BEFT A E At
other comprehensive income 2 E W AR E
— Unlisted equity investments ~ —3F EF IR AL E 5,367 4,745 5,367 4,745
— Listed equity investment — ERAEKRE 18,236 12,948 18,236 12,948
— Listed debt investments —LFmEBKRE - 5,494 — 5,494
Financial assets at fair value BRARBERAEBR
through profit or loss " @A E
— Listed equity investments — R AEE 1,852 1,723 1,852 1,723
— Unlisted but quoted —JELMERRE
investment funds WIREES 25,263 - 25,263 -
Other assets EmEE - 9,589 - 9,589
83,789 90,351 83,771 90,469
Financial liability £ 3R

Derivative financial instrument $7T4 &gl T A = - - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade receivables, trade
payables, other financial assets included in prepayments
and other receivables, financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals, balances with associates, related
companies and a joint venture approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities/repayable on
demand of these instruments or the effect of discounting is not
material.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The fair values of listed equity and debt investments are based
on quoted market prices.

The fair value of unlisted investment funds is based on price
quoted by financial institutions with reference to quoted price
in an active market of the listed securities comprising the fund
portfolio being valued.

The fair values of unlisted equity investments are estimated
based on either the market approach or recent market
transaction price. The market approach is based on price
multiple determined with reference to comparable public
companies and includes appropriate risk adjustments for lack
of marketability.

45.

e B S R MY R

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

ERMITENAABERAAE
BEH @

ERECTE HARBLEEY.
KRER  BIREKTIE - B SENK
TG EF ATE A ER0B R L e U 2R IE A
e REE - st AH RN RIE R E
ERMORMARE  HELAT  BHA
AR—WMABATMBHRN DA BESR
HEFEMAS TSRS TAREE
RIS, R E R RT B ET
TEK o

TRHEENBENOABEKBBERS
7 (MIFRAHBREE) RERRZ ST
RBZTENESBEAR - BEA TS
ERBREFAAEE:

EHBRAREBRENAABERERA
M5 MEETE -

FLETHREESHAABERSENER
BENRE T2EERABENES
AN EMESEEREMIZHRE -

FLETBRAREZ AR BEDERTS
EHTEIR M EEITREE - WA
B2ENELR EM AR REERARE
T35 7 4B 1 T 1F th A8 2 R B B T
EZERBEAER -
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30 June 2021
202196 A30H

45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 45.

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The fair value of other assets has been estimated using Monte
Carlo simulation method.

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the
valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative
sensitivity analysis as at 30 June 2021 and 2020:

MARBERARE
()
EENLA A BEDEARIL RS
%&ﬁﬁo

wmm»
o
%H

TR A2021F £2020F6 A30H &
BT EEENEAXT OB A SEE
RTEEHXES

Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair
technique unobservable input Range value to the input
EER EXTUERBARE BE MRBEEHBABEZBRE
As at 30 June 2021:
71202166 A30H :
Unlisted equity Market approach  Enterprise value- to-Sales 3.19 10% increase/decrease in EV/
investment multiple (“EV/Sales Sales multiple would result in
multiple”) increase/decrease in fair value by
HK$164,000/ HK$164,000.
FELEMRERE M5 TCEBEHHERS 3.19 EV/HEREIEM D 10%E 2
(Tev/BHERH) HRREEEN/ B 164,000
7T/164,000/8 T °
Discount for lack of 20% 10% increase/decrease in DLOM
marketability (“DLOM”) would result in decrease/increase
in fair value by HK$139,000/
HK$139,000.
RREREFER ((RBRE  20% Kﬁ%%ﬁf&i’l‘i%ﬁi M/ WA 10%#
HIERR)) LERABERD,E10139,000
/%75/139,000/% °
An unlisted equity Recent financing  Third party pricing - -
investment information
FEMBRARE AHRE F-NEBER
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45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

e B S R MY R

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

45. TRITENAAREBERAIAE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) BEEHR @
Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair
technique unobservable input Range value to the input
EER EXTUERBARE EE MEEBHAANEZHBE
As at 30 June 2020:
12020F6 4308
Unlisted equity Market approach  Enterprise value- to-EBITDA ~ 2.07 to 23.63 10% increase/decrease in EV/
investments multiple (“EV/EBITDA EBITDA multiple would result in
multiple”) increase/decrease in fair value by
HK$426,000/ HK$426,000.
FLEDMBEARE Mm% CEEEYBITDAGH 2.07£23.63 EV/EBITDATE B2 0,/ 5 210%#
(TEV/EBITDARE#]) LHRABEEM/ B 426,000
B 7T,//426,000/ T °
Discount for lack of 20% to 40% 10% increase/decrease in DLOM
marketability (“DLOM") would result in decrease/increase
in fair value by HK$258,000/
HK$258,000.
RBBHETER ((RBE 20%E40% REREHIETRIE N, WL 10%8
IR ]) LA EER D,/ 0258,000
B 7T,/258,000/ T °
Other assets Monte Carlo Volatility 16.35% to 42.06% 1% increase/decrease in volatility

simulation method

S REREZE KB

Discount rate

ek

Risk free rate

BR BN =

16.35%%42.06%

19.80% to 19.82%

19.80%%19.82%

1.8%

1.8%

would result in increase/ decrease
in fair value by HK$62,000/
HK$91,000.

RIREN/ RP1%ELE DA E
B30,/ 562,000/ 7,791,000
oy

1% increase/decrease in discount
rate would result in decrease/
increase in fair value by HK$85,000/
HK$40,000.

WREEM/ B1%ELEDAE
&3,/ 1 1185,0007% TT,/40,000%

TC °

1% increase/decrease in risk free
rate would result in decrease/
increase in fair value by
HK$210,000/ HK$163,000.
BRRFEEM,/HD1%H2 5
R BERD,/EM210,000%
7T,/163,000 T °
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45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 45. TR TENARBERAIAE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) BEER
Fair value hierarchy RARBEER
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TREBINAEESRT AN ABER
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: EFR:
Assets measured at fair value: BARBEEFENEE
As at 30 June 2021 7"2021F6A30R

Fair value measurement using
AREETERANEE
Quoted
prices  Significant  Significant

in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERmE EATEE EXTTEER
BE [IPN ¢ WAYE

(25—-8) (5=8) (B5=8) B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THET TExT TET
Investments at fair value through AR EEF AL
other comprehensive income: Z2HBARIRE :
— Unlisted equity investments —EETRARKRE - - 5,367 5,367
- Listed equity investment —EmBRARE 18,236 - - 18,236
Financial assets at fair value BRARBEFABRED
through profit or loss TREE
- Listed equity investments - FTREAKRE 1,852 - = 1,852
- Unlisted but quoted investment ~ —JE FT{EBREM
funds REES - 25,263 - 25,263
20,088 25,263 5,367 50,718
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45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 30 June 2020

e

B ES MR AR MR

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

45. T T ENAREBERARE

BEFEHR@E
AR ()

LD

202056 H30H

LAV ETE.#EE’J&F :

Fair value measurement using

AABEABRANEE
Quoted
prices Significant  Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EETY  BAAER EANAER
wE W A\ BUE PN ¢
(5—F&) (B=@) (B=E) At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TAET TAET FET FAT
Investments at fair value through &2 R EBEFAEM
other comprehensive income: PHBANKE :
- Unlisted equity investments —FLETRARE - 4,745 4,745
— Listed equity investment —EERAKRE 12,948 - - 12,948
- Listed debt investments - ETEBERE - 5,494 - 5,494
Financial assets at fair value BRAREEFTABZEN
through profit or loss TREE
— Listed equity investments —FHRARKRE 1,723 - - 1,723
Other assets Hi&E - - 9,589 9,589
14,671 5,494 14,334 34,499
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value RERN cREEFEHE_EMH

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 for financial assets

WER 2 EEFTEER (2020%F &) -

(2020: Nil). The movements in fair value measurements within ZRANAABETENZEHNOT
Level 3 are as follows:
2021 2020
20214 20205
HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT THET
Equity investments at fair value through BARBEFAEMEZE
other comprehensive income: WABRAIRE
At 1 July w7A18 4,745 17,828
Purchase HE 494 _
Fair value gain/(loss) recognised in other R E A 2 H AR A
comprehensive income DrEEKE (BE) 128 (13,083)
At 30 June R6H30H 5,367 4,745
Other assets: HAh & E -
At 1 July ®7A1H 9,589 3,045
Settlement *E (4,597) -
Fair value (loss)/gains recognised in the RigeBERKxT BN
consolidated statement of profit or loss (note 7) 27 E{E (E18) Wz (i E7) 910) 6,544
Impairment B (4,082) -
At 30 June 76 H308 - 9,589
202143 » BABKEREGRAR
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45.

46.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value:

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at
fair value as at 30 June 2020 and 2021.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash
and cash equivalents and short term deposits. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which
arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they

are summarised below.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not

significant.

With respect to listed equity and debt investments, the Group
purchases and holds them only through various creditworthy

financial institutions.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 30 June. For listed debt
investments, the Group also monitors them by using external
credit ratings and ensures that investments are only made in
debts meeting a certain credit rating to minimise credit risk.
The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial
assets.
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MHEREREBERBX

FEENTESRTIABERE RS
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Z N FRA

AEBeRIAEANTIERARAEER
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EEEHEZFRBRMBERIL AN T

FEERRE
AEBERERAREEANENE=]
TR G - WRAKEOEGR - FTA #
REBGRETRINEP LEBBIE
ERERRFE  HAMEE - 1IN AE
EenaEERRRFREHRNER - 2
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AEEEEBAEERFNMBHERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 46. I RBEEBER XK (#)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued) EERMK (&)
As at 30 June 2021 M20215F6H30H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A
FEER 2HESEEES
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
P Ex1 P Ex2 P& ER3 LR[S &t

HK$'000  HK$’000  HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER

Financial assets at amortised — 1Z# 55K Azt £

cost: ETREE

- Normal % 33,071 - - - 33,071
Trade receivables* g 5 e W RaEx - - = 83,364 83,364
Financial assets included SATER IR - Hiph

in prepayments, other FE Wk IE R At

receivables and other assets  EEMLREE

- Normal** — [E s 28,391 - - - 28,391
Due from associates JE W Bk 2 A R 3R I8

- Not yet past due - Hﬁiﬁ,ﬁﬂ 3,730 - - - 3,730
Due from a joint venture ER—EEER ﬂt b} 451 - = = 451
Due from related companies & U BE 5 D 7]

- Not yet past due - ﬁﬂiﬁ?ﬁ 1,220 = = - 1,220
Pledged deposits BRET

- Not yet past due — AR 8 1,893 = = - 1,893
Cash and cash equivalents HekhBieEEY

- Not yet past due — AR A 293,974 = = = 293,974

362,730 -

83,364 446,094
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 46. i EREEEERBE &)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued) EERE (%)
As at 30 June 2020 7202056 A30H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A
EEER 2HRHBEEEA
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
=329 P B2 P B3 B Ll

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAET TAT TAT TAET TAT

Financial assets at amortised &3 S5 N5t 2 8

cost: TREE:

— Normal —F$ 55,852 - - - 55,852
Trade receivables* B 5 W R - - - 74,354 74,354
Financial assets included EPATER IR - HA

in prepayments, other FE U R IE K B At

receivables and other assets BEMNTHEE

— Normal** —IEFE** 38,984 - - - 38,984
Due from associates JE U B & 1 B RIR

- Not yet past due — &) 7 780 5P 2,204 - - - 2,204
Due from related companies & B3 8¢ 2 7] 3R

- Not yet past due — i AREHA 1,220 - - - 1,220
Pledged deposits BERER

— Not yet past due — &) AR 78 A 1,354 - - - 1,354
Cash and cash equivalents BekBeEEY

— Not yet past due — AR 230,671 - - - 230,671

330,285 - - 74,354 404,639
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix
is disclosed in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

** The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when
they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note

24 to the consolidated financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentrations of credit risk as 10% (2020: 14%) and 34%
(2020: 42%) of the Group’s trade receivables were due
from the Group’s largest debtor and the five largest debtors,

respectively.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors and maintains a sufficient level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuation in cash flows. Management reviews and monitors

the Group’s working capital requirements regularly.

e B S R MY R

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

MERBEEERRBE®

EERRE(E)

REEBRRFEER (E)

< RAEEEBAEHLRETEZNE S ER
FIE ERBERBOENNGE MK
WA 249K E o

o FEATRNFOR - Efh @R R A M E E
MERMEECERERNEYBAHA
UBEMBRIZEEREESNTER
EEERRAEANENSREINER] -
B ERMEEZEEERRUEIFE] -

AEEELEESERFENSERR
MO i — S B BUR R BN B A B
WEH 324 o

REBEHR  REAAEETEEET
Rk AAEBONESHREWHIES 2
BB 10% (2020%F : 14%) }34% (2020
F:42%) BRERRAEBEZEKER AR
AREBABRIE o

7 B L B

AEBEEMMBEEBRASRANEA
S RBASEEY  UERALEEMNEE
REBECUERRCRERINTE -
ERETHERREEAEENSESR

THEK e

20215% o BABHEEARAH
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BHEEREEEBRREE @)

/}Ibibﬁnm (it
RI|BEHR - AEBIRE QORERA K

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 46.

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at

286

the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

BTWERAE

FEHB RS

2021
202145
Less than 1to5
On demand 1 year years Total
RERME PR1E 1256 Ch
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THER THER TER TERT
Trade payables B 5 IR 765 61,420 = 62,185
Financial liabilities included in FEACE fth T FRIE &

other payables and accruals fEETE A E’]é%ﬁ}’é & 28,297 - - 28,297
Due to related companies F’iﬁ B2k /NG 5,618 = = 5,618
Due to a joint venture }*H*F'EJ/—\éf /NG TAIE 561 - - 561
Lease liabilities HEBE 41,316 40,418 = 81,734
76,557 101,838 - 178,395

2020

20204

Less than 1to5
On demand 1 year years Total
BRERER NS 1255 aat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FHET THET
Trade payables B 5N RIE 1,117 35,253 - 36,370
Financial liabilities included in TAEMEMNFIEBER

other payables and accruals EBEENSRAE 29,492 - - 29,492
Due to associates AR Tm 184 - - 184
Due to related companies AL NGRS 2,020 - - 2,020
Due to a joint venture BN —Rea&RR TAIE 203 - - 203
Lease liabilities MEAE 46,186 40,910 3,263 90,359
79,202 76,163 3,263 158,628
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital structure in order to support
its business and maximise shareholders’ value. The Group
primarily funds its operations by cash generated from operating
activities. As at 30 June 2021, the Group did not have any

bank borrowings or outstanding bank loans (2020: nil).

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020.

The capital of the Group represents equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

e B S R MY R

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

6. HEEMEEBERBXE®)

BEXRER
AEBEAEENEZARAREARAS
EFBCENE N T HEBRENEARRE
B USRHEEB R ARREIERKE
B AEBEFZEALEEHEELENR
EREEZERMESR - R2021F6H30
A AEEYEFMARITEERRESR
RITER (20204 : 48) o

REBBRBEERRECREAREEDN
ERREHRERERAEREERERE - B
HTPREMRE REER TR
TTHRTRRAD o 2N & B 52 A N30 e N
BB AR ZRI[E - NELE2021F6H30
A &2020F6A30H IEF[E - BAERE
B BENEFIWREEZE -

N

SENERAARBES AEIGE

o

B
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47. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL 47. P EAREHENLEEARND

GROUPS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
As at 30 June 2021, the Group classified the assets and

liabilities of two subsidiaries, Health Network Medical Centre
(Shatin) Limited (“HNMCL") and E&REERFIZEHAR A A
(“BRERIR"), as assets and liabilities of disposal groups classified
as held for sale.

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group entered into
separate negotiations with prospective buyers to dispose of
its 55% and 100% equity interest of HNMCL and R & {&
respectively.

HNMCL is engaged in the provision of general practitioner
services and RER{R is engaged in the provision of health

check-up services.

The associated assets and liabilities of the two subsidiaries
were consequently presented as held for sale in the 2021
financial statements. At the timing of reclassification, the
assets and liabilities of the disposal groups were remeasured
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost
of disposal. Accordingly, an impairment loss on goodwill
associated with the disposal groups of HK$14,653,000 was
recognised.

Subsequently, the Group entered into a disposal agreement
with an independent third party on 2 July 2021 in relation to
the sale and purchase of 100% of the equity interest in BRE R
and RER{R has since ceased to be a subsidiary of the Group
since.

On 13 September 2021, the Group entered into a disposal
agreement with the non-controlling shareholder of HNMCL
in relation to the sale and purchase of the Group’s 55%
equity interest in HNMCL. The transaction was completed
on 13 September 2021 and HNMCL has since ceased to be a
subsidiary of the Group.
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47. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL 47. 7 BRFFELENHEE RN
GROUPS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE EERER®
(Continued)
The following assets and liabilities were reclassified as held for NTEEKRBBEE2021F6H308 EH
sale in relation to the disposal group as at 30 June 2021: DRREHEEMNEENIFIELE
Note HK$’000
B 5 FET

Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB RZRE 1,875
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 15 16,265
Goodwill (net of impairment loss recognised EMEMBRROYBEAFELERZ

upon classification as held for sale) E R EEE) 16 5,249
Other intangible assets Hip E & E 12,885
Inventories & 1
Accounts receivables & W R 3R 202
Other receivables and deposits Hoth JE R IB R ARFE & 427
Bank deposits and cash RITERRBEE 2,838
Assets classified as disposal group held for sale ZEAIFEHENHEARNNEE 39,742
Liabilities A&
Trade payables B 5 e RIE (145)
Other payables and accruals Hofth f& 1 5RIE R 5B A (2,077)
Provision B (493)
Tax payable e B 1R (1,153)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIAEE (2,126)
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 (18,447)
Liabilities associated with the disposal group  ER#EFEHEN HEABIEREN

held for sale afE (24,441)
Net assets associated with the disposal group EERF{EHENHEHAFIEBHN

held for sale EEZFE 15,301

20215% o BABHEEARAH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M RRM

30 June 2021
202196 A30H

48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 48. A1 T B AR R &

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

ARANBEBRAR A BHARRENE
BT

2021 2020
20215 2020%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Financial assets at amortised cost REEKNATTENESREE 19,025 20,206
Investments at fair value through other BERAREERA
comprehensive income Hih 2 EKRARKE 18,236 18,442
Total non-current assets IERBEEREE 37,261 38,648
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Prepayments and other receivables TEA 5ROR K E A Wk IR 1,200 1,457
Financial assets at amortised cost REHENATTENSREE 14,046 35,646
Financial assets at fair value through BARBEFABRD
profit or loss TREE 25,263 -
Due from subsidiaries FEUL KT B A B FRIE 465,070 433,749
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 25,612 15,033
Total current assets MEEELT 531,191 485,885
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENA R
Other payables and accruals H i & 3R N AT B 1,127 1,988
Due to subsidiaries FERT BT B A B 318 52,102 38,305
Total current liabilities mE B EARE 53,229 40,293
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENVE EFRE 477,962 445,592
Net assets BEFRE 515,223 484,240
EQUITY fEa
Issued capital BEEBITRA 775 766
Reserves (note) it (F ) 514,448 483,474
Total equity B 515,223 484,240
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

THE COMPANY (Continued)

48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

e

B ES MR AR MR

30 June 2021
2021F6HA30H

48. AR A B B AR R | ()

Notes: B 3
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RARBEHRENT
Shares held
Share under the  Share-hased
premium  share award payment Fair value Retained
account scheme reserve reserve profits Total
RH%R DYk
FEET HRH DAREE
ReEER HENRG AREE 1] BENA &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TATL TER TER Ti#n Ti#n
(note 36) (note 37)
(Mi736) (M5E37)
AUT July 2019 1201957718 387,602 (14,620) 58,082 103 27,458 458,925
Profit for the year FRFIE - - - - 66,934 66,934
Other comprehensive income for the year: ~ FREMZEAYA :
Changes in fair value of equity BoABEFAAMZERAN
investments at fair value through other REAZENDLBES
comprehensive income - - - (16,412) - (16,412)
Changes in fair value of debt BRRBEHARMBZELAL
investments at fair value through other ERRENDLEBEED
comprehensive income - - - (256) - (256)
Total comprehensive income for the year — FRZENALE - - - (16,668) 66,934 50,266
Final 2019 dividend 20195 RS - - - - (19,005) (19,065)
Interim 2020 dividend 20205 HR 2 - - - - (4,921) (4,921)
Shares issued in lieu of cash dividend BIRAARER RS 10,475 - - - - 10,475
Issue of shares under the share award RERHD RBH HBTHRN
scheme options (465) 1,898 (1,693) - - (260)
Purchases of shares for the share award BERM REEEERR
scheme - (708) - - - (708)
Equity-settled share-based payment IR EMURG AR
arrangements ¢ - - (11,238) - - (11,238)
At30 June 2020 and 1 July 2020 2020564308 k202057 A1A 397,612 (13,430) 45,151 (16,265) 70,406 483,474
Profit for the year ERFE - - - - 41,400 41,400
Other comprehensive loss for the year: EREMEEER:
Changes in fair value of equity BRAABEGAEMEARAL
investments at fair value through other BRARENA L BEED
comprehensive income - - - 5,346 = 5,346
Changes in fair value of debt }QﬁEE#AHMQEWAm
investments at fair value through other EBRENALBEE
comprehensive income - - - - - =
Release of reserve upon disposal of debt ~— REERA A BEGFAZMEZE
investment at fair value through other WARMBRERERBRES
comprehensive income - - - (27) = (27)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for FR2EHN/(BR)4E
the year - - - 5319 41,400 46,719
Final 2020 dividend 2020 RAMRS - - = = (20,060) (20,060)
Interim 2021 dividend 20215 P8RS - - = - (7,658) (7,658)
Shares issued in lieu of cash dividend BOIRDUARER SRS 11,403 (233) - - - 11,170
Purchases of shares for the share award RGBT EEERN
scheme - (1,030) - - - (1,030
Equity-settled share-based payment IEREER RN AERN
arrangements Hm;zﬁ = - 1,833 - 5 1,833
At 30 June 2021 202156 A308 409,015 (14,693) 46,984 (10,946) 84,088 514,448

49. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and

49. #tEHZE

authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 September

2021.

| R

FEAMEHERN2021FE9A23 R EES
o HE A R AR RE T EE o

2021465 o

48T SEARAR



292

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B HE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-

controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as &f&

extracted from the published audited financial statements, is set out

below.

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

K IR R a1

AEEREEZAEAMBFENRENREE

BE (Ra 0 2 hRER

MBHR)FINAT ©

Year ended 30 June
BZ6HA30ALEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
20214 20204 20194 20184 20174
HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$’000  HK$000
THER T T FHET FET FHET
Revenue A 622,765 557,484 567,377 463,441 399,817
Profit before tax W %5 B A1 51,320 73,406 34,275 48,505 57,094
Income tax expense FRiEHi = (19,783)  (13,096) (14,726) (11,003) (8,850)
Profit for the year FRFE 31,537 60,310 19,549 37,502 48,244
Attributable to: AR &5 L
Owners of the Company ZN/NEIE/ RSN 34,834 58,915 12,798 37,555 44,085
Non-controlling interests JEFE IR RE 25 (3,297) 1,395 6,751 (53) 4,159
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EERAE
As at 30 June
R6H30H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
202145 20204 20194 20184 20174
HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$’000  HK$000
THER FH T FHT T FHIT
Total assets BEE 969,977 891,307 842,100 737,620 698,439
Total liabilities maRr 276,921 220,800 156,138 103,215 102,825
Net assets BEFHE 693,056 670,507 685,962 634,405 595,614
Equity attributable to: UTEHEGER
Owners of the Company KATEEA 639,498 611,846 612,995 567,136 532,619
Non-controlling interests  JF 2 f% 1 25 53,558 58,661 72,967 67,269 62,995
Total equity T & %R 693,056 670,507 685,962 634,405 595,614
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“THFY2021”
[2021 8 BRF & £ 4F |

“IHFY2021"
[2021 B FE T F

“2021 AGM”
[2021F R EBEF A |

“Affiliated Clinic(s)”

(BB P )

“Affiliated Doctor”,
“Affiliated Dentist”,
“Affiliated Auxiliary
Services Providers”

(MEELE]  [MET&®
5t 18 8 B AR TS PR 1

“Articles” or “Articles of
Association”

EsEUINEARANCIESEUN

“Audit Committee”

[EREE]
“Auxiliary Services”

[ %5 Bf Bk 75 |

“Auxiliary Services Provider”

[ %5 B AR 75 he 1 &

GLOSSARY
Gk

the six months ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A318 1 ~EA

the six months ended 30 June 2021
HZE202156A30H IE/XME A

the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 26 November
2021

AARER2021F11 268 (EBR)BITHRERBEF RS

clinic(s) which is/are not operated by the Group but which has entered or will
enter into an agreement directly with the Group to offer Medical Services, Dental
Services and/or Auxiliary Services to the Plan Members
WIMAEELZEC KRB S E R BNEERT L0 AR 8K 8 2 HERR
% TRRS RSB RIS 2 P

doctor(s)/dentist(s)/Auxiliary Services Provider(s) who has/have entered or will
enter into an agreement directly with the Group to provide services to Plan
Members and who, in accordance with the terms of such agreement, has/have
received or will receive an amount from the Group based on the volume of Plan
Members treated
ERABEERBEAEET I HE AR EXBRERTERBEBH GRS LR
KeREZOTEKEHEMAEREDMFIBENELE T8 WERGRHAE

the amended and restated articles of association of the Company currently in force
BRI AR AR BEER REI AR AR

the audit committee of the Board

R N S

includes imaging and laboratory services, physiotherapy, traditional Chinese
medicine, vision care and optometry and child health assessment
BRESTERMEBRRE WEAE B BRHEERBAUANZTERREER
A

auxiliary services provider(s) who is/are or will be engaged directly by the Group
as a consultant to provide Auxiliary Services in the UMP Medical Centres in
accordance with the terms of a consultancy agreement with the Group, and the
Affiliated Auxiliary Services Providers

ERABEERBAEELREREF AR SR & B 2R 5] 70 B8 73 2 10 15 50 B
BEBRORNREBRENBB R RME - URBEHB R RME

2021F% » BMEBBKEERRAA
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GLOSSARY
A

“B2B2C”

[B2B2C]

“BBS”
[ARMEE]

“Board”

Ex 20

“Chairman”

[E&]

“Chief Executive Officer”

[TTER A%
“COVID-19”

[ B AR =5

“Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions by Employees”

[EEHETESFR HHIRTER]

“Company”

RAVNCIR

“Contract Customers”

“Corporate Governance Code

(e~ Al

means an e-commerce model that combines business to business (B2B) and
business to consumer (B2C) for a complete product or service transaction. B2B2C
is a collaboration process that, in theory, creates mutually beneficial service and
product delivery channels

M (B2B) MEXHHESE B20) A UNETRENERXRBRHH
ETEMHEN - B2B2CU HIFBREAER LAER BB RS RE MR RE

Bronze Bauhinia Star
fﬂn:b*—*— B8 =

mAHEE

the board of Directors

5%

the chairman of the Board

EEXRFR

the chief executive officer of the Company

RRBITHARE

means coronavirus disease 2019, a disease caused by a novel virus designated as
severe acute respiratory syndrome coronavirus 2

2019BRBERRE  —BAREASRESUETREAGSAECRBET2NMILRS
S| B K 9

the Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by Employees adopted by the
Company

RRFI TR EEET R 5T R

UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of the
Cayman Islands with limited liability on 5 November 2014

BABBEEERAR  R2014F 1 ASEREFESHESXEMKINERAF

collectively, insurance companies and corporations which have entered or
will enter into corporate plans with the Group for healthcare benefits for Plan
Members

ERAK SR ENBRREENEARAKEEFTLEEFENRR AR RER
H At 1

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

EHRRBIMEE TN E X ER TR
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“CR Medical”

[ EZ]

“CTFE”
DERGIEN
“Dental” or “Dental Services”

[oF R e [ oF BEAR 7

“Dentists”

[ &

“Directors”

[E%]

“Doctors”

[&4 |

“FY2020”
20208 Bt X |

“FY2021”
[2021BF L [Z |

“general practitioner”

(2R E]

GLOSSARY
Gk

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited, a company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability and listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock code: 1515)

EHBEERARAR  RESHESEMAZERNERAER EHNERQE (R
5% - 1515)

Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of
Hong Kong with limited liability
BAREBEEBR QR REFEEIZMRINERLQF

include primary dental services such as scaling and polishing and secondary
dental services such as crown and bridge, orthodontics, implants and whitening
BREERIT RS (R RWE) ARE ZEBABRSE (T ERITE - ABELE
B EENITEEXA)

dentist who is or will be engaged directly by the Group as a consultant to provide
Dental Services in the UMP Medical Centres in accordance with the terms of a
consultancy agreement with the Group, and the Affiliated Dentists

BRSNS EREARERE SRR ARIRE A S B2 5T /0B 5 /0 (R i
ABEBHORNREIMREHOITE  UNBETE

directors of the Company

ARAES

doctor who is or will be engaged directly by the Group as a consultant to provide
Medical Services in the UMP Medical Centres in accordance with the terms of a
consultancy agreement with the Group and the Affiliated Doctors
ERFBEERERNEEZERRERMARE B A S E AT 6 B R 15 3 0 R B
EEBPLOARUBERENEL  UNKEBE

the financial year ended 30 June 2020
B E2020F6 A30H IEHTBFE

the financial year ended 30 June 2021
HE2021F6 308 LW EBFE

Doctors trained in general practice and best suited to act as first point of contact
for patients, having the required knowledge to refer patients to the appropriate
specialists or services required

EXE2MIIRNEBE  ECRBERHERZH  AGHSABRTEENE
EEZEREMHMRE

2021F% » BMEBBKEERRAA
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GLOSSARY
A

“Global Offering” or “IPO”

[2REEIHERAFEE]

“Group”, “we”, “UMP” or
“UMP Healthcare Group”

[AEE] -~ [3F] -
(BB s HeBEHE]

“Healthcare Ventures”

[Healthcare Ventures ]

//HK$//
&)

“Hong Kong”
(&%)

“Hong Kong & Macau Clinical
Healthcare Services”

[ 28 N B P i PR 28 R AR 2 R 7%

“Hong Kong & Macau Corporate
Healthcare Solution Services”

[BERRPTEBRERE
BRIR T FR IR TS

//JP//
[ K4t

“Listing Date”
[ B E)

“Listing Rules”

[EmARA

“Macau”

[RFT ]

the offer of the shares of the Company to the public in Hong Kong and outside
the United States of America in offshore transactions in reliance on Regulation
S, the details of which are set out in the section headed “Structure of the Global
Offering” of the prospectus of the Company dated 17 November 2015
ARBRBEARALRERBSROIEXBRINBEEZZHEERD - #HEHR
AAA2015F 11 AI7EMARRBRER2HEENRRE] — T

the Company and its subsidiaries

ARA R EK B QA

Healthcare Ventures Holdings Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of
British Virgin Islands with limited liability, which is a substantial shareholder of
the Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CTFE

Healthcare Ventures Holdings Limited * 1R #5258 i X B S /AP HBR A
A RARBNEBERREAAREENZEMBRF

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BREEEHAET

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
FEBEBFRITERE

provision of clinical healthcare services to Self-paid Patients in Hong Kong and
Macau

REB KRR B B B E R R R B R R IE RS

provision of corporate healthcare solutions services in Hong Kong and Macau
RE B RORFIR b X B R R E AR RARES

Justice of the Peace

AN

27 November 2015
2015411 8278

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B R PrRE 5 £ AR A

the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC
BB P BT IR
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“Mainland China” or “PRC”

[FREIA sE

“Medical” or “Medical Services”

[B8 % ok [ BB AR
“Model Code”
[1Z2E=<F Al

//NWS//

“NWS Subsidiary”

[#relEMEna]

//OzO/I
[020]

//Pinyu//

[an 4]

”

“Plan Members

&I E |

“Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme”
[BRAFESERERERTS

“Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme”
[ B R AR SR BR8]

GLOSSARY
Gk

the People’s Republic of China (excluding, for the purpose of this report, Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan)

PEARKNE RARETHS - FREES  AFIRAE

include general practice and specialist practice

BREMBEERENER

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
EHRAMSETAE LM ETAESETESFRZNRETA

NWS Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability
and listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 659)
MEZEEARAR  EARETMAINERDF] - PREERER BT (RMH K
5% : 659)

Dynamic Ally Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability which is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of NWS

Dynamic Ally Limited - REBZMAZAER QA - AFMEIENHEE2ENBR
=]

means a business model that draws potential customers from online channels to
make purchases in physical stores

BEEEFPELRERSIZERELETBEZHERA

Pinyu Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability, which is a substantial shareholder of the Company and an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CR Medical

MW BRAR RERBRABEENZEMAZINERAE  BRARRETERRE
TARAEREENHEZENBLRF

members of the Group’s corporate healthcare benefits plans, who typically
include group medical insurance policyholders and employees of corporations
and/or their dependants
AEBIEBERRERENGEKE
BER/LERE

—REERSEBERBRERAEARKED

the post-IPO share option scheme approved and adopted by the Company on 2
November 2015
ARAR2015F 1 A2BHERFKANE R AREERBIRES

the pre-IPO share option scheme approved and adopted by the Board on 18
August 2015
EEZgMN2015F8 18 #L/E RIRMH) B R QG 3 & B A A 8

2021F% » BMEBBKEERRAA
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GLOSSARY
A

“Remuneration Committee”

[HFWEE g

“RMB”
AR

“Rich Point”
[ = fE ]

“Rich Point Group”
[EESH]

//SBS//
[REFEE]

“Self-paid Patients”
(BEEE]

“Shanghai He Dun”
[EEAaR]

“Share Award Scheme”

[ A% o 52 By aT & )
“Share(s)”
[ A% 15 ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[ A5 |

”

“Snow Lake Group

SHEE ]

the remuneration committee of the Board

i%AiiT @ﬂﬁl‘/\a

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

TEAEEBARSE

Rich Point Investment Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability
BEREEBEARAR  REAEMAINERAF

Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong and his associates including Rich Point

FRIBEREBEA(BHEEE)

Silver Bauhinia Star
REMEE

patients who visit a UMP Medical Centre operated by the Group and pays for
services using cash or credit card

AAGEEEENBABRTUONRALERARES K ERRINRBEERANES

EBABEZRIEAER AT, a company established in the PRC
FEAHBEMRARDR - NP BEKIZHRA A

the share award scheme approved and adopted by the Board on 30 June 2016
EEEM20165F6 308 HE RERM AR ) 2B 5+ 3

ordinary share(s) with a nominal value of HK$0.001 each in the share capital of
the Company
AR AR A R E {E0.00178 T A & E AR

holder(s) of Share(s)
BHBEFE A

based on the publicly available information so far, Snow Lake China Master Long
Fund, Ltd., Snow Lake China Master Fund, Ltd., Snow Lake China Offshore Fund,
Ltd. (which holds 80.93% of Snow Lake China Master Fund, Ltd.), Snow Lake
Capital (HK) Limited (as investment manager of Snow Lake China Master Long
Fund, Ltd. and Snow Lake China Master Fund, Ltd.)

AR BRI AMAISER - Snow Lake China Master Long Fund, Ltd. - Snow Lake
China Master Fund, Ltd. * Snow Lake China Offshore Fund, Ltd. (35 Snow Lake
China Master Fund, Ltd.f80.93%) &K (FE) BR 27 (A Snow Lake
China Master Long Fund, Ltd. % Snow Lake China Master Fund, Ltd.H)3& & EIEA)

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ 2021 ANNUAL REPORT



“specialist practice” or
“specialist services”

[EREE S FERIR]

“Stock Exchange”
[ 56 32 P

“UMP Healthcare China”

(A BHHE]

“UMP Healthcare China
Group”

(Bt e B BEE]

“UMP Medical Centre(s)”

(A BT L]

“UMP Network”

[UMP#8 %% |

//U5$//
=Sl

GLOSSARY
Gk

the range of specialist practice offered by UMP, including Cardiology,
Dermatology, Endocrinology, Diabetes and Metabolism, Family Medicine,
Gastroenterology and Hepatology, General Surgery, Internal Medicine,
Nephrology, Neurology, Neurosurgery, Obstetrics and Gynaecology,
Ophthalmology, Orthopaedics and Traumatology, Otorhinolaryngology (ENT),
Paediatrics, Paediatrics Surgery, Radiology, Respiratory Medicine, Rheumatology
and Urology, an updated list of which is available on www.ump.com.hk
BABBKREEN -—RINENEER SR OEM  KER - AW - BREKAH
B RKEBE  BERITHEE - @I A BRE - LR NN 7
ER R BRRAIEH - BERWMER - 2R NIV SR HIRAR
JE )R Bt Bl PR A} - 48 5 ETE B www.ump.com.hk = 7] 4 & 3]

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMARGMERAA

UMP Healthcare China Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of
the Cayman Islands with limited liability and a 80%-owned subsidiary of the
Company

%é%%¢lﬁ@ Al REASEHSEVEMRIOBRAF > SEARRES
80% 1 2 i) Y B8

UMP Healthcare China and its subsidiaries
BeEBBETRRENEMNBAF

medical centre(s) offering Medical Services, Dental Services and/or Auxiliary
Services which is/are operated by the Group

RUBERY  TEBREE LBHHREOBEHHL  AAEELE

consists of (i) UMP Medical Centres which are operated by the Group and (ii)
Affiliated Clinics which are clinics not operated by the Group but each of which
has entered into an agreement with the Group to offer Medical Services, Dental
Services and/or Auxiliary Services to Plan Members
BREOASELENBEBBTOLMNEBZM (LIIFBAEERENDH - EX
BB AR BT A a8k B R M BB IRES - T B RS RSB RES)

US dollar, the lawful currency of the United States of America

ENBERBAEEHET

2021F% » BMEBBKEERRAA
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GLOSSARY
A

“Zheng He”

[ &5 70 ]

“Zheng He Party(ies)”

(&3 —7 ]

Zheng He Health and Medical Resources Limited, a Private Company Limited by
Shares incorporated in the British Virgin Islands

Zheng He Health and Medical Resources Limited * 72 % & & 22 B & = it A <2 89 Fl
AR BR A A

the company(ies) or trust(s) which is under the control of Mr. Law Siu Wah, Eddie
or his family trust or estate

HEREFELAETSERGERIEEEFE TR G
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